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SIGNIFICANT STRISES

In 2005, Cymer increased
shareholder value through
improved profitability & efficiency.
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Shareholders:

In 2005 we accomplished much, made
some significant improvements in our
financial performance and operations,
and positioned ourselves very well for
the future.

As we entered 2005, we prepared
ourselves for a difficult year. Although
the previous year had begun strongly
and appeared to promise a solid
upturn, the semiconductor industry
slowed abruptly in the final months
of 2004. The market gave every
appearance of entering a cyclical
downturn, and we prepared the
company to deal with a lower demand
environment during 2005.

By the end of the first quarter of 2005,
however, we observed a substantial
increase in light source utilization at
chipmakers, and our direct customers’
forecasts began indicating that the
year might be considerably stronger
than originally anticipated. As we
progressed through 2005, light source
utilization rose steadily, quarter-over-
quarter, and though light source
shipments remained relatively flat
through the year, our average selling
price (ASP) rose substantially. The
growing utilization rate and rising ASP
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yielded small sequential quarterly
revenue increases. As the year ended,
it was evident that overall, 2005 was
a fairly good year for our business.

More important than the pace of our
business in 2005, however, were
the numerous achievements and
milestones that we reached during
the year.

* We strengthened our market
leadership position with the
introduction of several new, higher-
value added advanced argon fluoride
(ArF) products.

* We shipped our 3,000th production
light source.

* We launched an initiative to improve
financial performance that resulted in
guarter-over-quarter gross margin
improvement throughout the year.

* We generated a record amount of
free cash flow. (Free cash flow is a
non-GAAP financial measure that is
arrived at by subtracting the
acquisition of plant and equipment
from cash generated from operations.}
¢ We bought back a large amount of
our stock and convertible notes.

¢ We brought a new president and
chief operating officer (COO) on board.
* We launched a joint venture to enter
the market for flat panel display
manufacturing process tools.

In sum, we made good progress during
2005 and significantly contributed to
enhanced shareholder value.

Financial Focus
For the year ended December 31,2005,
total revenue was $383,648,000, an

8 percent decline from $418,079,000
in total revenue recorded in 2004. In
spite of the year-over-year revenue
decrease, net income increased almost
8 percent in 2005 to $46,552,000,
equal to $1.27 per share (diluted),
compared to net income of
$43,154,000, equal to $1.15 per
share (diluted) in the prior year. We
believe this higher profitability on
lower revenue demonstrates the
effectiveness to date of our improved
efficiency and execution, our success
in managing costs, and the cost-saving
benefits of our XL platform.

Throughout 2005, we continued
to increase shareholder value
through improved profitability and
efficiency. We focused on gross
margin improvement and achieved
quarter-over-quarter improvements
throughout the year, reaching 42
percent in the fourth quarter of 2005.

We intend to maintain this focus
during the current year and anticipate
ongoing improvement.

Additionally, early in 2005, we
launched an initiative to improve
overall asset management and
generate substantial free cash flow.
As a result, we generated a record
$95.3 million in free cash flow in
2005, and will continue our efforts in
this area in 2006.

For a more detailed discussion of our
successful financial initiatives in 2005,
and what we expect to achieve
moving forward, please see the
section entitled “Creating Shareholder
Value” beginning on page 16 of
this report.
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CYMER CUMULATIVE
INSTALLATION BY REGION
Total = 2,741

© AMERICAS 31% 828 installs
® JAPAN 16% 447 installs
* KOREA 168% 445 installs
* TAIWAN 18% 438 installs
© EUROPE 13% 363 installs
0 SINGAPORE 6% 1B5 installs
© CHINA 2% 55installs
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Free Cash Flow
Reconciliation

Cash provided by

operating activities $114,022,000

Less aquisition of

plant and equipment $18,750,000

Free cash flow $95,272,000
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Strengthening
Market Leadership

In 2005, we shipped a total of 207
light sources, 49 percent of which
were ArF, compared with 2004
shipments of 301 light sources, 27
percent of which were ArF. The
product mix shift toward our higher
value-added ArF light sources drove
our 2005 average selling price to
$984,000, a 21 percent increase over
our $816,000 ASP in 2004.

We demonstrated our ongoing
commitment to aggressive
development of more advanced
products throughout 2005 with the
initial shipment and introduction of
several new ArF light sources. This
effort also strengthened our market
leadership position.

A few years ago, we introduced an
innovative approach to deep ultraviolet
(DUV) light source development with
our dual discharge chamber MOPA
(Master Oscillator Power Amplifier)
architecture, which was developed on
the XL common platform.

During 2005,

* We made our initial shipment of the
XLA 200, our third generation XLA
Series product, in the first quarter.

* In the fourth quarter, the initial
shipment of the XLA 300, our fourth
generation XLA series product, marked
the fastest product development cycle
in Cymer’s history.

* Additionally, we have several
other XLA Series products under
development. We will introduce these
new light sources as the industry’s

needs for higher power and narrower
bandwidth light sources are realized.

With our 2005 year-end installed base
of approximately 200 XLA Series
light sources, combined with our
rapid introduction of new higher
performance models such as the XLA
300, we believe we are strongly
positioned in the most rapidly growing
and highest value-added segment of
the DUV light source market — high
and super-high numerical aperture
(NA) ArF dry and immersion, which
command the highest ASPs. For a
more detailed discussion of our
technology and product development,
and the apparent rapidly developing
ramp of ArF immersion lithography,
please see “"Technology Growth and
Industry Drivers” beginning on page
8 of this report.

In 2005, the ELS 7010, our most
advanced krypton fluoride (KrF) light
source used primarily for less critical
layers in 300mm fabs, made up the
majority of our KrF shipments. We also
saw demand at varying levels for the
ELS-7000 and the ELS-6000 series of
KrF light sources during the year.

During 2005, we installed 245 new
light sources at chipmakers and other
end users, and at year end,our installed
base had grown to 2,741 light sources.

We strive to rapidly develop and
be first to market with new, more
advanced light sources. We offer our
customers a complete portfolio of DUV
light sources to meet their production
needs for 200 mm or 300 mm
wafer processing.




Growing

Non-Systems Revenue
Throughout 2005, we experienced
strong growth in our non-systems
revenue, which consists of consumables
and spare parts, upgrades, and service.
In the fourth quarter of the vear,
non-systems revenue exceeded the
$50 million mark for the first time,
and reached a record $52,419,000 for
the quarter. For the full year, non-systems
revenuerosetoarecord $175,236,000
compared to $172,456,000 in 2004.

The pulse utilization rate of our light

sources at chipmakers reached a

record level in 2005 and has been the

main driver of our non-systems
, revenue growth. As their business has
increased, chipmakers have been
driving their light sources harder and
| harder in an effort to get the maximum
I productivity from existing tools.
. Additionally, as features on the wafer
continue to shrink, more layers on
i each wafer must be processed with
. DUV lithography tools. All of these
factors, coupled with the continuing
growth of our installed base, point
toward continued growth in our
non-systems revenue.

Longer-Term Growth —
Qur TCZ Joint Venture

For a number of years, our long-term
growth strategy has included an effort
to find a new market opportunity to
generate additional revenue and
profits and further increase the value
of our company for our shareholders.
In July 2005, we were very pleased to

RECORD NON-SYSTEMS REVENUE: $175.2

announce the formation of a joint
venture with Carl Zeiss SMT AG. The
joint venture, called TCZ for Team
Cymer Zeiss, is focusing on developing,
marketing, selling and servicing a
manufacturing process tool for the flat
panel display (FPD) market.

Specifically, the joint venture will focus
on the market for production tools for
low temperature polycrystalline silicon
(LTPS) for active matrix liquid crystal
displays and the emerging market for
organic light emitting diode displays
(OLED). OLED adoption in the next
few years is expected to provide the
next major improvement for flat panel
displays. These types of displays are
expected to be the most rapidly
growing segment of the FPD business
over the next decade. TCZ anticipates
delivering a tool that will enable low-
cost, high-vyield production of LTPS
material, which will meet consumer
demand for screen brightness,
resolution and power consumption. A
more detailed discussion of TCZ, its
market and technology, begins on page
12 of this report.

Strengthening Our

Management Team

We significantly strengthened our top
management team in September 2005
when Ed Brown joined us as president
and COO. Ed brings with him more
than 20 years experience in the
semiconductor capital equipment
industry, and is responsible for
planning and directing our day to day
operational activities. In addition to
being broadly experienced and

extremely capable, Ed has an
impressive track record of significant
responsibilities and accomplishments
over the last 20 years with Applied
Materials, including 11 years as a
corporate officer. During his tenure
at Applied Materials, Ed served in a
variety of key executive positions in
manufacturing, engineering, marketing,
account management, global operations,
information and knowledge management,
corporate strategic management,
and service.

Within our industry, Ed has developed
a well-deserved reputation for business
innovation and execution in virtually
all corporate disciplines, and we expect
him to play a significant role in shaping
our future growth and success.

Other Highlights

Along with the significant
developments mentioned above, we
achieved some other milestones and
enjoyed a number of other successes
in 2005.

* Mid-year, our XLA 100 received the
highly-regarded Editor's Choice Best
Product Award from Semiconductor
International magazine. This award
is a testament to the ongoing
acceptance of our products, and to our
efforts to lead the industry by
continuing to develop more advanced
products to enable increasing
semiconductor functionality.

* We announced that we began
partnering with IMEC, a leading
independent research center in
nanoelectronics and nanotechnology,
with the integration of an XLA 105 on
an immersion lithography tool at

MILLION
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IMEC’s 300 mm wafer fab in
Leuven, Belgium. This initiated our
participation in IMEC’s Industrial
Affiliation Program on Advanced
Lithography, which is working to
accelerate the adoption of immersion
lithography process technology.

* Late in the year, we shipped our
3000th production excimer light
source, and it seems appropriate that
it was an XLA 200.

Finally, in January 2006 we were
pleased to announce that Cymer had
been selected to replace 27 excimer
lasers at several fabs for a major
memory manufacturer. These light
sources will ship throughout 20086,
and will enhance our financial results
and our market leadership.

Cymer’s 20th Anniversary
Though it was not a 2005 event,
Cymer achieved a major milestone in
January 2006 with the celebration of
the 20th anniversary of the company’s
founding. From a fledgling start-up
operating out of a garage in January
1986, and just beginning the work of
developing DUV light sources for
semiconductor manufacturing, Cymer
has today achieved an importance to
the semiconductor industry far beyond
the company’s size.

Between 1986 and 1994, with a focus
primarily on research and development
(RE&D) applications, we shipped a total
of 78 laser systems - and today, of
course, this could be just one quarter’s
worth of shipments. The company has
grown into a technology and market
leader, enabling critical dimensions to

continue to shrink, which enables
semiconductor manufacturers to
cost-effectively achieve increasing
functionality, power and speed in
today’s advanced chips. Cymer has
achieved a global presence, with
virtually every chipmaker in the
world using the company’s light
sources in production, and sales and
support offices in more than two
dozen locations.

We at Cymer are proud of our
achievements over the last 20 years,
and are pleased to be rewarded by our
customers’ ongoing loyalty and
confidence. We look forward to
continuing to serve the industry,
providing quality products that will
help enable continuing progress for
our customers in the future.

Strong Financial Position
Our financial position remained very
strong in 2005. As of December 31,
2005, cash and cash equivalents, and
short and long-term investments rose
to $393,344,000, and working capital
increased to $499,670,000.

In the first half of 2005 we used some
of the cash we were generating to
repurchase more than 1.9 million
shares of our common stock for
approximately $50 million, and to
repurchase $60 million worth of our
convertible notes. (With the note
repurchase we executed in 2004,
we have now repurchased a total
of $109.3 million worth of our
convertible notes).

Our focus on improving profitability
and increasing cash flow will only

SIGNIFICANT ACHIEVEMENTS OVER THE LAST 20 YEARS




enhance our already strong financial
position moving forward.

QOutlock

Consumer electronics and applications
have recently emerged as the single
largest sector driving chip demand.
Devices such as cell phones, PDAs,
laptops, video games and portable
MP3 and video players all figure
prominently in new chip factory
expansion and product allocation.
Flash memory is in the early stages of
what the memory manufacturers
consider a multi-year fab build-out.
Overall fab utilization has reached the
low to mid-90 percent range, and
utilization at 120 nm and below has
recently reached approximately 99
percent. The need for capacity
expansion has been evidenced in
recent months with a number of
chipmakers announcing increases in
their projected capital spending for
2006. Many companies in our sector
have reported increasing bookings,
and it appears that this healthier
demand environment could last
for some time into 2006 and
possibly beyond.

The progress we made in 2005 has
positioned us well to take advantage
of the opportunities for growth that
2006 should offer. We moved forward
in our efforts to become a more
efficient company, launching company-
wide initiatives targeted at improving
our operating efficiencies, and tying-up
less cash in virtually all aspects of our
operation. Our success on this front
highlighted just how much more
efficient we could become through
these ongoing efforts. We continue to

provide the industry with innovative,
higher value-adding products, which
are enabling the adoption of new
manufacturing techniques such as
immersion lithography, while driving
our ASP higher. With our installed
base of approximately 200 XLA Series
light sources and our rapid introduction
of new higher performance models
such as the XLA 300, we continue to
be strongly positioned in the most
rapidly growing and highest value-
added segment of the DUV light source
market — advanced ArF for dry and
immersion applications.

To capitalize on the opportunities this
upturn may present, we have
developed a clear, concise set of
corporate goals and objectives, based
on continuous improvement, which
we have been working to achieve since
late last year. Our fundamental goals
are to: (i) better serve our customers,
(ii) build a better company, and (iii)
increase shareholder value. Our drive
to achieve each of these goals is based
on a number of strategic efforts.

* To better serve our customers, we
will continue to provide enabling
products and services to meet their
objectives, and will anticipate, develop
and execute activities that address
their future requirements in advance
of their needs.

* To build a better company, we will
continue to offer robust and
cost-effective products and services,
and will continue to seek new business
development opportunities.

* To increase shareholder value, we
will strive to establish Cymer as a
long-term investment of choice, and

will strive to consistently achieve
superior financial performance.

We made significant progress in 2005
and we have a clear set of goals
for which to strive in 2006. We
are committed to move forward
purposefully in 2006 and make the
most of the growth opportunity in
our marketplace.

In closing, we wish to thank our
employees for their ongoing hard work,
and their support of and commitment
to our strategic initiatives. We also
wish to thank our customers, our
vendors, and our shareholders for their
confidence and support.

.

Robert P. Akins,
Chairman and CEO

et

Edward J. Brown Jr.,
President and COO

ﬂw)ﬁ%&

Nancy J. Baker,
Senior Vice President and CFO
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ENABLING

CONSUMER ELECTRONICS
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According to Gartner, the
semiconductor industry reached a
historic level with worldwide chip
revenue climbing to $235 billion in
2005, a 6.9 percent increase from
2004. Predictions for 2006 look even
better. VLSI Research predicts that
semiconductor revenues are expected
to increase by 8.2 percent in 2006.
VLSI also predicts that the wafer-
fab equipment market will reach
$25.8 billion in 2006, up 6.9 percent
over 2005. :

TECHNOLOGY GROWTH
& INDUSTRY DRIVERS

As we move into 2006, one thing is
certain: the demand for consumer
electronics will continue to grow,
driving chip demand, chip factory

flash memory manufacturers are expansion and product allocation. The
. ) . Consumer Electronics Association
In the early stages of a multiyear (CEA) reports that wholesale consumer

. . N electronics sales are expected to hit
fab build-cut $135.4 billion in 20086, up from $122

billion the year before. Flash memory,
a critical component of many portable
consumer devices, such as cell phones,
MP3 players, PDAs, and video games,
is in the early stages of what memory
manufacturers consider a multi-year
fab build-out. Flash manufacturers’




factory utilization for critical layers
with features at 120nm and below has
been estimated to be as high as 99
percent, and should remain high in
the near term. Overall fab utilization
continues in the low-to mid-90 percent
range, chip inventories remain low,
and the need for capacity expansion
has been evidenced in recent
months with a number of chipmakers
announcing increases in their projected
capital spending for 2006.

In 2006, Cymer will be ramping up to
support chip manufacturing primarily
for consumer electronics products.
From a technology perspective,
lithography is, and will continue to be,
a critical enabler of Moore's Law and
the creation of smaller, more powerful
semiconductors. As a technology
innovator, we have worked hard to
stay ahead of the curve by developing
light sources vital for advanced
semiconductor manufacturing.

We have brought to market four
successive generations of our
MOPA-based light sources in less than
three years. Argon fluoride (ArF)
immersion lithography appears to be
more widely adopted in R&D than we
expected, and we believe that our next
generation XLA Series systems will
become the light sources of choice for
high volume immersion applications.
Late last year, we announced our next
generation XLA, which will be the
industry’s highest powered MOPA-
based ArF light source. We expect this
light source to drive the volume
production of semiconductor devices
at the 65nm node and enable design
flexibility for hyper NA (greater than

1.0) immersion lithography tools at
the 45nm node and beyond.

At the 32nm mode and beyond, we
are equipped to provide light source
technology for all processing options.
One such processing technique,
Double Patterning, has been proposed
as a method to extend the resolution
of water based immersion lithography.
It is currently the leading candidate
for 32nm half-pitch patterning due to
the high probability that extreme
ultraviolet lithography (EUVL) will not
be ready in time. We developed and
introduced the concept of a dual stage
light source on a platform that was
originally designed to offer flexibility
in providing increased power output.
Since the platform was first introduced
in 2003, power has been scaled
from 40W to 90W. This platform
concept has proved to be ideally
suited for further power scaling,
meeting the productivity needs of
Double Patterning lithography, and
development of this capability is
currently in progress.

For high resolution, high volume
production beyond immersion, EUVL
continues to be the most promising
option. We remain dedicated
to the development of EUVL
technology, beginning first with
discharge produced plasma, and more
recently moving to laser produced
plasma techniques.

Other industry drivers such as the
conversion from 200 mm to 300 mm
wafers are well underway and are
expected to significantly affect our
growth in 2006. Driven by the demand
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ArF tool deliveries may
become the largest
DUV segment in 2006
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LITHOGRAPHY: A CRITICAL ENABLER OF MOGRE'S LAW




RAMP OF 90nm and

TRANSITION TO 65nm FUELS ArF for DRAM and Flash memory, the
- volume production of 300 mm

wafers will lead to significant
reductions in manufacturing costs,
improved vyields and increased
productivity. By 2009, nearly 95
percent of the industry is expected
to be processing 300 mm wafers.
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Since Cymer’s inception, we have
researched, developed and produced
the industry’s most advanced light
sources to enable the semiconductor
industry. As a market leader, Cymer
has been a primary force every step
of the way helping customers
optimize their lithography processes
much more quickly, thus reducing
‘01 - ‘03 ‘04 their time to market and maximizing
D overall return on investment (ROI).
eKrF OArF As the industry evolves over
the next several years, adopting
new manufacturing techniques, our
innovations and technology will be
there to help make it all possible.
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XLA

2005 Product [ntroductions
Since introducing the XLA Series in
2003, we have developed, marketed
and sold four generations of products

: Since I.LMTI]I[‘OdUleHg the XLA based on the XL common platform.
o . . In 2005, we delivered two new XLA
° Series in 2@@3, we have products, and announced another.
: d@V@ﬁ@p@d, marketed @Hd SOﬂd In the first quarter, we made our initial
~ : o2 s ‘ shipment of the XLA 200, our third
XLA : 4 generatmns @f pTOdUCtS generation XLA Series product on the
o based on the XL common XL common platform, based on our
° dual discharge chamber MOPA
. P Tetform. In 2005, we architecture. Operating at a 4 kilohertz
° . (kHz) repetition rate (this means
: delivered 2 new XLA pI‘@dUCtSV producing pulses of light at a rate of
o . 4,000 pulses per second) and offering

o and announced another. up to 60 watts (W) of output power,
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the XLA 200 is designed to support
both high volume dry ArF production
down to 65 nm, and pilot production
at the 45nm node on immersion tools.
(In immersion lithography, a layer of
water is placed between the final lens
element and the wafer.)

In the fourth quarter of 2005, the
initial shipment of the XLA 300, our
fourth generation MOPA ArF light
source, marked the fastest product
development cycle in our history.
The XLA 300 is the industry’s first
light source operating at a 6 kHz
repetition rate, providing up to 60 W
of power, and designed to enable
volume chip production at the 45 nm
node using immersion lithography
techniques. It offers the tightest
bandwidth available, and its higher
power permits the use of resolution
enhancement techniques without
reducing throughput. Further, by
operating at 6 kHz, the XLA 300
delivers an increased number of pulses
to support the strict dose and dose
stability parameters required by
chipmakers to achieve tight critical
dimension (CD) control for 45nm
node processes.

In conjunction with our annual
lithography symposium at SEMICON
Japan in December, we announced the
introduction of our next generation
XLA light source, our fifth generation
XLA Series product. This light source
will offer a 6 kHz repetition rate and
up to 90 W of output power, thus

| providing both the highest repetition

rate and the highest-power available
to the industry in a lithography light
source. It is designed to drive the

volume production of semiconductor
devices at the 65nm node and enable
design flexibility for hyper NA (that
is, greater than 1.0) immersion
lithography tools at the 45nm
node and beyond. Additionally,
this new light source’s increased
power output will support various
illumination schemes, permitting
tighter dose stability and more
stringent CD control.

We believe that our next
generation XLA Series
systems will become
the light sources of
choice for high volume

immersion applications.
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A JOINT VENTURE OF CYMER AND CARL ZEISS SMT

leveraging our expertise and
leadership to expand into
long-term growth markets that
bolster shareholder wvalue.
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in the LCD Market

Technology innovation has long been
the backbone of Cymer. Our company
has a rich history of driving new
technology innovations, developing
these innovations into products and
being first to bring these products to
market. In 2005, we looked beyond
the semiconductor manufacturing
market to find a market opportunity
in which our unique leadership
and expertise could be leveraged
to expand into other long-term
growth markets that would bolster
shareholder value. Our research led
us to the flat panel display (FPD)
industry, one of the fastest growing
segments in the large and diverse
world of consumer electronics.

DisplaySearch, the worldwide leader
in FPD market research, estimates
that the FPD market will expand
from worldwide revenues of $62.6
billion in 2004 to $108.4 billion
by 2008. Research further reveals
that Liquid Crystal Displays (LCDs),
used in consumer electronics
ranging from cell phones and
mobile displays to laptops and
large flat panel televisions, are a
major growth driver. DisplaySearch




forecasts that the LCD market will
generate $72.7 billion in revenue
in 2006, and continue its growth
by roughly 11 percent per year over
the next several years. While the
display industry is experiencing
remarkable growth, significant
challenges lie ahead for display makers
working to meet these increasing
market demands.

To support these high growth
rates and successfully compete for
new market opportunities, LCD
manufacturers must be able to
leverage emerging display fabrication
techniques to improve LCD’s features
and performance offering while
simultaneously improving their
production costs and throughput.
Realizing the potential for us to help
solve this problem and become part of
this growth market, Cymer joined
forces with Carl Zeiss SMT to create
a joint venture, TCZ GmbH (Team
Cymer Zeiss). Under the terms of the
Jjoint venture agreement, Cymer owns
60 percent of TCZ, and Carl Zeiss SMT
owns the remaining 40 percent.

The combination of Cymer’s proven
experience in lithography laser light
sources and Carl Zeiss SMT's
leadership in optics design made this
a natural partnership for tackling the
challenges ahead.

Within the LCD market, DisplaySearch
projects that active matrix LCDs will
be the fastest growing segment of the

have made dramatic inroads in market
segments such as televisions, mobile
phones, PDAs, video recorders and
computer screens. Active matrix LCDs
utilize active thin film transistors
(TFT5) to control each pixel in a display.
The two current process methods used
to support the fabrication of active
matrix LCDs are amorphous silicon (a-
Si) and low temperature polycrystalline
silicon (poly-silicon or LTPS).

To date, most LCD panels are
fabricated using an amorphous silicon
process because it offers a lower cost
method with fewer process steps.
However, due to the significantly
higher electron mobility that can be
achieved with LTPS, TFTs can be made
smaller and faster, resulting in more
design flexibility for increased screen
brightness, higher pixel densities and
lower power consumption. Also, the
LTPS supports the requirements for
high speed, full motion video
applications for a wide variety of
display sizes.

With this in mind, TCZ set out to
create a tool that would enable
display makers to realize the technical
benefits of poly-silicon with a
reliable, high vield, high performance
solution. Furthermore, the solution
would make LTPS an affordable option
for FPD manufacturers. On July 189,
2005, TCZ unveiled this very solution—
the industry’s first cost-effective,
thin beam crystallization tool,
the TCZ 900X, currently in

This year offers new challenges
and opportunities for TCZ and
Cymer through ongoing product and
customer development. Technology
that improves the performance of
displays while increasing yields will
ultimately drive the FPD market
forward. It is our hope that the
performance of the TCZ 900X will
result in wide spread market
acceptance and adoption.

In 2005, not only did Cymer identify
the need for a new display fabrication
method, but in keeping with the
company’s rich history of innovation,
it partnered with the best in the
business to create a cutting-edge
solution that would fit its long-term
growth plan.

TCZ 200X
TCZ unveiled the industry’s
first cost-effective thin beam
crystallization tool. The tool is
a 6kHz, 900W eximer laser

development. At the heart of the tool
is a 6kHz, 900W excimer laser
coupled with high precision beam
shaping optics.

. display industry, with a projected
! average annual growth rate of 13

, percent over the next five years.
l[ In recent years, active matrix LCDs

A NATURAL PARTNERSHIP FOR TECHNOLOGY

coupled with high precision
beam shaping optics.
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tcz- joint venture of cymer and carl zeiss smt

TCZ's first volume
production tool
offering, the TCZ-
900X, is expected
to improve LTPS
yield and help
manufacturers
cost-effectively
produce LCDs for
Gen 4 size glass
Based
on our analysis

substrates.

and prototype
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production testing,
we estimate this
tool will cut the
cost of laser
crystallization by
more than afactor

of

two compared
to technigues

currently in use.
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TCZ-900X

The TCZ 900X will employ a novel
process technology called Thin-Beam
Directional X'talization (TDX). With
the TDX process, a substrate is
exposed with a long thin beam,
measuring 5 microns wide by 730mm
long. The extreme aspect ratio and
uniform energy distribution of the
beam allows for complete coverage
across the width of the glass substrate
during a single laser pulse. Each
pulse melts the exposed amorphous
silicon layer on thesubstrate and in
microseconds, silicon re-crystallizes
in the form of poly-silicon. After each
pulse, the stage moves the substrate
incrementally before the next pulse,
and this exposure sequence is
repeated across the entire length of
the panel.

By partially overlapping each new
stripe over the previous one, the new
stripe is seeded from good poly-
silicon created during the previous
exposure, and the continuous growth
of long, uniform crystal grains across
the entire substrate is achieved.
The TCZ 900X system will be
capable of processing an entire Gen4
panel, which measures 730mm by
920mm, in as little as 75 seconds,
which will provide manufacturers
with throughput of greater than 30
panels per hour, more than twice
the throughput of LTPS process
tools available today. Cymer and
Carl Zeiss together have developed a
very strong intellectual property
position around this technology
and process.
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There are three critical
components in the
system: the laser, the
beam shaping optics,
and the stage.

1.Developed by Cymer for this process,
the laser is a 900 W xenon fluoride dual
chamber MOPA excimer laser operating
at a 6 kHz repetition rate. The laser
provides an optimal combination of
pulse frequency and pulse energy to
enable high panel throughput.

2.The Laser Optics division from Carl
Zeiss SMT, a worldwide leader in the
design and production of illumination
and projection optics for the lithography
process in chip manufacturing,
developed the novel optical system. The
optical system transforms the laser
output into a well-controlled long
thin beam.

3.The stage has been developed by Carl
Zeiss IMT, the leading supplier of
Coordinate Measuring Machines used
primarily in automotive and aerospace
manufacturing applications. This stage
controls the precise movement of the
glass substrate to ensure uniform
exposure at high speed.
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| GENERATE

Since its founding, Cymer has
successfully focused on several key
goals. We have developed and
delivered leading edge lithography
light sources enabling the continuous
advancement of the semiconductor
industry, and in doing so has achieved
and maintained a position of market
and technology leadership. We have
grown through increasing adoption
of DUV Ilithography and higher
value-added light sources, and have
sought and engaged in a new
business opportunity with significant
growth potential. We have also
focused on continually increasing
shareholder value.

CONTINUING GROWTH

CREATING

SHAREHOLDER VALUE

To that purpose, in late 2004 and early
2005, our management team launched

by lmpﬂemeT i"’l our glf‘@SS initiatives to enhance the company’s
overall financial performance

marg]-ln lmprﬁvement lnltlatlve, and profitability, improve asset
. management, and increase our free

we reported sequential, quarter- cash flow. (Free cash flow is a
. non-GAAP financial measure calculated

over- quaﬂ:er grOS S Inargln as the net cash provided by operating
TLMCJT@@LS@S ﬂ 2 activities less our acquisition of
property and equipment during the

period.) We made significant progress
in these areas in 2005, and are pleased
with the results of our efforts.
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Improving
Financial Performance

and Profitability

In 2005, we achieved sequential,
quarter-over-quarter gross margin
improvement throughout the year.
By targeting the right areas, we knew
we could make solid progress to
improve gross margin, which we felt
was the first step to enable us to
improve our profitability.

We launched our gross margin
improvement initiative emphasizing
several components:

* We instituted, and made noticeable
progress in, a focused material
cost reduction program. This effort
is ongoing and concentrates on
three areas:

Sourcing changes — We sought
and found new, lower-cost, higher
capability suppliers, some of them
international, and consolidated
procurement at fewer, more
capable suppliers.

Design changes — We worked
with our customers to migrate demand
for the ELS-7000 to the ELS-7010,
allowing us to consolidate our KrF
product line, simplifying our parts
requirements, and increasing our
purchasing leverage. We also continued
our material cost reduction focus on
the XL platform, while introducing the
XLA 200 and XLA 300.

Refurbishment activities — We
continued implementing our design
philosophy of common parts to
maximize refurbishment flexibility.
*We worked to reduce cycle
times by focusing on supply chain
responsiveness, optimizing the build

times for modules and systems, and
system test times.

* Gross margin also benefited from
the mix shift to our higher value-
adding, higher ASP advanced ArF light
sources in 2005.

As we successfully implemented this
gross margin improvement initiative
throughout the year, we reported
sequential, quarter-over-quarter gross
margin increases, and achieved a 42
percent gross margin for the fourth
quarter of 2005.

Moving forward, we are committed
to continuing these gross margin
improvement efforts. In addition,
during the current year, we will focus
on making our products even more
reliable and productive than they have
been, and improving our field
efficiency to optimize light source
performance and reduce field costs.

Managing

Operating Expenses

For years we have managed our
operating expenses to specific target
ranges, dependent on the industry
cycle and product requirements. We
control our expenses in a disciplined
manner. We add to our headcount
cautiously. Our successful ongoing
efforts to increase operating efficiencies
have made, and continue to make, a
positive difference in our ability to
manage these costs.

Several years ago, we began investing
heavily in research and development
{R&D) to produce the XLA Series of
light sources on the XL common

platform. This R&D effort took place
over more than two years, and resulted
in the introduction of our XLA 100
early in 2003. Since then, we have
introduced three additional derivative
light sources, all on the XL platform,
and we have seen our substantial R&GD
investment pay off handsomely. Now,
we can develop a new XLA Series light
source quickly, and produce it cost-
effectively. The manufacturing learning
curve is reduced, because each new
product is derivative and is on the
now familiar XL common platform.
This enhances gross margin by making
the manufacturing process more
efficient, and reduces our required
DUV R&D expense, which allows
us the opportunity to explore and
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creating shareholder value

CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
& CAPITAL SPENDING (in thousands])
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE METRICS*
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FULL CYCLE 48%

*Targets above do not include the impact of stock option expensing

fund research into new market
opportunities while staying within our
financial measures.

New Financial Model

and Targets

Because we see substantial near-term
and longer-term opportunities ahead,
while we continue to increase
efficiencies and reap the bhenefits of
our R&D investments, we recently
updated our financial model and
performance targets. We are now
striving for the following:

* At the peak of an industry cycle,
with quarterly revenue in excess of
the $130 million to $140 million
range, we target a gross margin of 55
percent, and operating margin of 35
percent, with the efficiencies we
expect to attain by the end of 2006.
¢ At the trough of an industry cycle,
with quarterly revenue in the $65
million to $70 million range, we target
a gross margin of 40 percent, and at
least a breakeven operating margin.
¢ But most importantly, across a full
industry cycle, we are targeting a gross
margin of 48 percent, and operating
margin of 18 percent.

These targets are aggressive, and are
significant improvements over our
previous model targets. They also
represent the importance of a
longer-term perspective of Cymer’s
business, our positive prospects as
DUV lithography continues to grow,
and our overall confidence in our
future and our ability to execute
effectively to enhance profitability and
optimize shareholder value.
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Improving Asset
Management to

Generate Cash

Early in 2005, we launched a major
initiative to improve overall asset
management and monitor and manage
our capital expenditure requirements
with the ultimate goal of generating
significant free cash flow. Our plan
was to introduce the initiative to
management, then to employees, then
educate everyone regarding the details
of the initiative and their importance
in executing it. We expected this to
take several months and allow us to
implement the initiative late in 2005
or at the beginning of 2006.

We were pleased and surprised by the
overwhelmingly positive response to
the initiative. Employees grasped its
importance, their role in its execution,
and the benefits we expected to realize
as we progressed. As a result, we
were able to begin implementing
it immediately.

We call the initiative "C4"” (Cymer’s
cash conversion cycle) because the
goal was to shorten the period of time
that elapses from receipt of an order
to receipt of payment for the delivered
product, and generate cash through
better asset management.

To improve overall asset management,
we focused on

* Reducing our inventory. At the
end of 2004, we had $110 million
in inventory. By concentrating on
reducing cycle times, increasing
manufacturing and supply chain
efficiencies, and decreasing field

95.3 MILLION FREE

inventory requirements, we reduced
that amount to $89 million by the end
of 2005. We intend to continue
managing inventory to achieve and
maintain an optimal inventory level,
to avoid tying up cash. We also focused
on increasing inventory turns, and
over the course of the year made
good progress.

* Reducing our accounts receivable.
At the end of 2004, our accounts
receivable totaled $110.7 million. We
focused on encouraging prompt
payment of invoices throughout the
year, and by year-end 2005 had
reduced accounts receivable to $90.4
million. Again, we will continue to
manage accounts receivable to ensure
optimal cash flow.

Our C4 initiative was quite successful
during 2005, and resulted in our
generating more than $114 million in
cash from operations during the year.
This is about triple the amount of cash
from operations we generated in our
previous best year, which was 2001.

Managing Capital
Expenditure Requirements
Early in 2005 we conducted an
informal audit of the infrastructure
we had put in place in the last
few years.

*We have a relatively new
headquarters and R&D building, which
houses more than 50 R&D laboratories
in which we conduct DUV, EUV and
high-power laser development.

*In 2003, we completed and occupied
an expanded, state-of-the-art
manufacturing facility that has the

CASH FLOW WAS GENERATED

size and flexibility to handle our
projected production needs for some
years to come.

*In 2002, we built our factory in Korea,
which is now refurbishing discharge
chambers from Asia.

*We completed our worldwide network
of sales, service and training centers to
support our growing installed base
of products.

We concluded that we would not need
any additional facilities or significant
capital expenditures for some time
to come.

This view is evident in our reduced
capital expenditures over the last two
years. From a high of $62.8 million in
2003 when we built our San Diego
manufacturing plant, our capital
expenditures decreased to $19.5 million
in 2004, and declined further to $18.8
million in 2005. Though we realize the
importance of investing in our future,
we will continue to be judicious in our
approach to capital spending, and
intend to maximize the benefits we
derive from this use of cash.

All in all, we're pleased with the success
of our financial initiatives in 2005. The
result of our efforts to improve
profitability, generate cash, and manage
capital expenditures was that we
generated $95.3 million in free cash
flow during the year. We are fully
committed to continuing these
initiatives in the current year, and look
forward to ongoing improvement over
the longer term.
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reports on Form 8-K and any amendments to those reports are available free of charge through our
website as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file such reports or furnish them to the
SEC.

You may read and copy materials that we file with the SEC at the SEC’s Public Reference
Room at 450 Fifth Street, NW, Washington DC 20549. Information on the operation of the Public
Reference Room is available by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. The SEC maintains an Internet
site that contains reports, proxy statements and other information we file. The address of the SEC
website is hitp://www.sec.gov.

Products and Services

Our products primarily consist of photolithography light source systems, replacement parts, and
service.

Photolithography Light Sources

Our excimer light sources for photolithography produce pulsed light of extremely short
wavelengths within the DUV spectrum. The bandwidth of the light is further narrowed through a number
of optical techniques. The DUV wavelengths are measured in nanometers, and the light sources are
referred to according to either the wavelength or the gases that are mixed to produce the light. Krypton
Fluoride (“KrF”) gases produce light at a 248 nm wavelength, and Argon Fluoride (“ArF") gases produce
light at a 193 nm wavelength. The extremely short wavelengths and highly narrowed bandwidths of light
produced by these light sources enable the very fine feature resolution required for patterning or printing
the circuitry on silicon wafers. The pulse energy and repetition rate of the light source permit high
throughput in wafer processing. We have designed our light sources to be highly reliable, easy to install
and service and compatible with existing semiconductor manufacturing processes. Our light sources
are used to pattern or print the integrated circuits, which are also called semiconductors or “chips,” that
power many of today’s advanced consumer and business electronics. In 2005, we sold 207 light source
systems at an average selling price of $982,000. Revenues generated from sales of light sources were
approximately $160.3 million, $244.8 million and $207.4 million for 2003, 2004 and 2005, respectively.

Our product development strategy has been to develop new products in rapid succession to
meet continually evolving needs in the marketplace, and to obsolete our own products as quickly as
possible, thus rendering our competitors’ products obsolete. This strategy strengthens our market
leadership position since the ongoing reduction of critical dimension (“CD”) on the wafer drives demand
for newer, more advanced, higher value-added light sources.

Over the years, we have developed and sold a wide variety of photolithography light source
products. These products can be divided into KrF and ArF product categories and include a number of
current products as well as legacy products that we continue to service in our installed base.

Current Products

Our current products include our newest, most advanced, highest value-added ArF and KrF
light sources, as well as some mature products that are still experiencing strong chipmaker demand as
DUV iithography becomes the prevailing light source technology in wafer fabrication.

193 nm ArF Light Sources

Chipmakers continue to reduce the feature sizes and shrink the CD on the wafer, which means that the
line widths of the circuitry on the wafer become progressively smaller. At this time, chipmakers are
continuing to expand their manufacturing capacity at 90 nm, while manufacturers of certain types of
memory chips are in initial production at 65 nm and planning for production of chips with even smaller
CDs. In these circumstances, chipmakers need more leading edge tools, which means they need more
of the shorter wavelength ArF photolithography tools in their manufacturing facilities to pattern the




critical layers on the wafer. Growing use of 193 nm ArF light sources at the leading edge, combined
with continuing use of 248 nm KrF light sources for the less critical layers, allows chipmakers to meet
the rigorous performance and volume demands of high volume manufacturing. Our light sources are
designed to enable chipmakers to achieve their production goals.

XLA Series — The XLA Series of ArF light sources is based on our dual-discharge chamber Master
Oscillator Power Amplifier (‘MOPA") light source architecture. The master oscillator creates a narrow
bandwidth beam of light at low power which is referred to as “ultra-narrowed” or “highly line-narrowed”.
The beam then is directed into the power amplifier, where the power is increased significantly while
maintaining the narrow bandwidth. This combination of a narrower bandwidth and higher power
enables chipmakers to continue reducing critical circuitry dimensions and increasing processing speeds,
capacity and functionality of chips, while giving chipmakers the performance and cost advantages they
need. Each product in the XLA Series is based on the XL common platform, which includes cabling and
wiring harnesses, electrical interfaces, power supplies, gas delivery systems, cooling systems, and
other various components, all in a common enclosure. Use of a common platform enables us to
develop each new product in the series rapidly and cost-effectively. Because our customers are
accustomed to working with the XLA Series, our direct customers can efficiently integrate a new XLA
light source product into their advanced scanners and bring them to market quickly, while our chipmaker
customers can quickly begin using these light sources in their existing manufacturing processes and
achieve rapid time to yield.

Products Based on the XL Common Platform:

¢ Next Generation XLA — Our next generation XLA currently under development, is scheduled for
initial shipment during 2006. 1t will be our fifth generation ArF light source based on the MOPA
design and XL common platform. It will operate at a 6 kiloHertz (*kHz") repetition rate (which
means 6,000 light pulses per second) and offer up to 90 watts (“W”) of output power. We expect
it to be the industry’s highest-power light source available when it is initially shipped. This light
source will enable design flexibility for lithography tools using highly sophisticated lenses for
immersion lithography applications at the 45 nm production node and below. This next
generation XLA’s high power can support various illumination schemes, enabling tighter dose
stability and more stringent CD control.

o XLA 300 - The XLA 300 is our fourth generation leading edge ArF light source based on the
MOPA design. It operates at a 6 kHz repetition rate and offers up to 60 W of output power, and
is designed for high volume production of semiconductor devices at 45 nm production node using
immersion lithography techniques. Based on the production proven XL platform, the initial
shipment of the XLA 300 in the fourth quarter of 2005 marked the fastest product development
cycle in our history.

o XLA 200 - The XLA 200 is our third generation ArF light source based on the MOPA design and
XL platform and offers higher power and a narrower bandwidth than its predecessor. Operating
at a 4 kHz repetition rate, it also offers up to 60 W of output power and an ultra line-narrowed
bandwidth to enable production of semiconductor devices at the 65 nm production node in non-
immersion applications, and pilot production at the 45 nm node using immersion lithography
technigues. The initial shipment of our XLA 200 occurred in the first quarter of 2005.

e XLA 105 — Now used in volume production in many fabs, the XLA 105 is our second generation
XLA Series product, offering a 4 kHz repetition rate and 40 W of output power. Designed for use
at the 65 nm production node, the XLA 105 initially shipped in the first quarter of 2004, and
continues to experience strong demand from chipmakers.

e XLA 100 — The XLA 100 was our first XLA Series product, and offers a 4 kHz repetition rate and
40 W of output power. Designed for high volume production at the 90 nm production node and
below, the XLA 100 began shipping in the first quarter of 2003. Though it still ships in small




assemblies received. Our method of accounting for refurbishment activities is explained in greater detail
under Valuation of Parts Used in Refurbishment Manufacturing Process and Corrected Accounting
Method in Item 7, Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations” and in Note 1 to our consolidated financial statements.

Service

As the iife and usage of our instalied base of light sources in production at chipmakers exceed
the original warranty periods, some chipmakers request service coniracts from us. Additionally, we
provide billable service or service contracts to the three semiconductor lithography tool manufacturers
and to many of our chipmaker customers. These service agreements require us to maintain and/or
service these light sources either on an on-call or regular interval basis or both. Some of these
contracts include replacement of consumable parts and non-consumable parts.

In addition to service contracts, we offer CymerOnLine™, a diagnostic and performance
software product which delivers critical laser diagnostics and performance information in near real-time
- directly to authorized users anywhere. The software simplifies reporting and allows users to efficiently
manage consumables usage. CymerOnLine features a user-friendly browser-based interface, which
features a robust design and provides a secure data environment. Event-initiated messages sent to
pagers, e-mail, mobile phones, or other handheld devices enable up-to-the minute communication and
proactive management.

Revenues generated from service and service contracts were approximately $21.3 million,
$20.1 million and $26.4 million for 2003, 2004 and 2005, respectively. We expect service and service
contract revenues to remain at or exceed these higher levels as our installed base grows and the
warranty period of our light source systems expires.

Customers and End-Users

We sell our photolithography light source products to each of the three manufacturers of DUV
photolithography tools:

ASM Lithography Canon Nikon

We believe that maintaining and strengthening customer relationships will play an important role
in maintaining our leading position in the photolithography market. We work closely with our customers
to integrate our products into their photolithography tools. Sales to ASM Lithography, Canon, and Nikon
accounted for 32%, 8% and 24%, respectively, of total revenue in 2005.

Revenues generated from customers within the U.S. were $29.3 million, $75.8 million and $60.3
million for 2003, 2004 and 2005, respectively. Revenues generated from customers outside of the U.S.
were $236.5 million, $342.2 million and $323.4 million for 2003, 2004 and 2005, respectively.

Revenues generated from customers located in Japan were $116.5 million, $132.8 million and
$119.6 million for 2003, 2004 and 2005, respectively. Revenues generated from customers located in
Europe were $74.6 million, $154.7 million and $138.8 million for 2003, 2004 and 2005, respectively.
These revenues can originate from any of our locations to customers located in these countries.

Long-lived assets located in the U.S. were $120.5 million, $114.1 million and $108.9 million as
of December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005, respectively. Long-lived assets located outside of the U.S. were
$8.4 million, $9.4 million and $8.4 million as of December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005, respectively.




End-users of our light sources include all of the world’s largest semiconductor manufacturers.
The following semiconductor manufacturers have purchased one or more DUV photolithography tools
incorporating our light sources:

u.S. Japan Singapore Korea
Agere Systems CASMAT t 1% Silicon DongbuAnam Semiconductor Inc.
Albany Nanotech Denso Chartered Silicon Partners Hynix Semiconductor Inc.

AMD Elpida Memory inc. Peregrine Semiconductor Magnachip

Applied Materials Fuji Film Silterra National NanoFab t
Arch Chemicals Fujitsu SSMC Samsung

Atmel Hitachi TECH

Clariant Corp. JSR : UMCI Pte Lid. Europe

Cypress Kawasaki Seitetsu Altis Semiconductor
Freescale Semiconductor Matsushita Taiwan/China C-NET t

Headway Technologies Mitsubishi ASMC IHP

Honeywell NEC ERSO IMEC v.zw ¢t

HP CKl GSMC Infinecn Technologies AG
1BM . Renesas Semiconductor Hedian CEA-Leti

Integrated Device Technology Rohm Inotera Micronas GmbH
Inte! ’ Sanyo Mosel Philips

Jazz Semiconductor Seiko MXiC ST Microelectronics
LSl Logic Corp. SELETE t Nan-ya Tower Semiconductor
Maxim Integrated Products Sharp Promos

Microchip Technology inc. Sony PSC

Micron Technology Tokyo Electron Ltd. SMIC

National Semiconductor Tokyo Ohka Kougyo Co. TSMC

Rohm & Haas Toshiba UMC Group

Sarnoff Corp. VISC

SEMATECH t Winbond Group

Spansion

Texas Instruments

VLSI

Wafertech

T A semiconductor industry consortium.

Backlog

We scheduie production of light sources based upon order backlog and informal customer

forecasts.

We include in backlog only those orders to which a purchase order number has been
assigned by the customer and for which delivery has been specified within 12 months.

Because

customers may cancel or delay orders with little or no penalty, our backlog as of any particular date may
not be a reliable indicator of actual sales for any succeeding period. At December 31, 2005, we had a
backlog of approximately $90.8 million compared with a backlog of $79.1 million at December 31, 2004.

Manufacturing

Our manufacturing activities consist of material management, assembly, integration and testing.
These activities are performed in a 265,000 square foot facility in San Diego, California that includes
approximately 31,000 square feet of Class 10,000 cleanroom manufacturing and test space. In order to
focus our own resources, capitalize on the expertise of our key suppliers and respond more efficiently to
customer demand, we have outsourced the manufacture of many of our subassemblies. Our
manufacturing outsourcing strategy is exemplified by the modular design of our products. Substantially
all manufacturing of nonproprietary subassemblies has been contracted to third-party suppliers. As a
result, we are increasingly dependent upon these contract suppliers to meet our manufacturing
schedules. The failure by one or more of these suppliers to supply us on a timely basis with sufficient
quantities of components or subassemblies that perform to our specifications could affect our ability to
deliver completed light sources to our customers on schedule. We believe that the highly outsourced
content and manufacturable design of our products allows for reduced manufacturing cycle times and
increased output per employee. To improve current production efficiencies, control costs, and manage




temperature poly-silicon (*LTPS”) processing used in the manufacture of liquid crystal displays that are
brighter, have higher resolution, and consume less power than displays using today’s predominant
amorphous silicon films. TCZ currently expects to ship an evaluation model of the TCZ 900X by late
2006 or early 2007. As a majority owned subsidiary, TCZ's research and development expenses are
included in our consolidated research and development expenses.

Intellectual Property Rights

While the success of our business depends more on such factors as the technical expertise of
our employees, as well as their innovative skills and marketing and customer relations abilities, the
success of our business also relies on our ability to protect our proprietary technology. Accordingly, we
seek to protect our intellectual property rights in a variety of ways, including by obtaining patents. As of
December 31, 2005, we owned 230 U.S. patents covering certain aspects of technology related to light
sources and piezo techniques. These patents will expire at various times during the period from
January 2008 to October 2023. As of December 31, 2005, we had applied for 110 additional patents in
the U.S. As of December 31, 2005, we owned 334 foreign patents and had 344 patent applications
pending in various foreign countries.

Our pending patent applications and any future applications might not be approved. Our patents
might not provide us with a competitive advantage and may be challenged by third parties. In addition,
third parties’ patents might have an adverse effect on our ability to do business. Due to cost constraints,
we did not begin seeking patent protection in Japan and other countries for our inventions that are
covered by our U.S. patents and patent applications until 1993. As a result, we do not have the right to
seek foreign patent protection for some of our early inventions. Additionally, laws of some foreign
countries in which our products are or may be developed, manufactured or sold, including various
countries in Asia, may not protect our products or intellectual property rights to the same extent as do
the laws of the U.S. Thus, the likelihood of piracy of our technology and products is greater in these
countries. Further, third parties might independently develop similar products, duplicate our products, or
design around patents that are granted to us.

Other companies or persons may have filed or may file in the future patent applications that are
similar or identical to ours. We may have to participate in appropriate proceedings in the courts or the
patent offices to determine the priority of inventions. These proceedings may determine that these third-
party patent applications have priority over our patent applications. Loss of priority in these interference
proceedings could result in substantial cost to us.

We aiso rely on trade secret protection, employee and third-party nondisclosure agreements
and other intellectual property protection methods to protect our confidential information and our other
intellectual property. However, we may not be successful in protecting our confidential information,
particularly our trade secrets, because third parties may independently develop substantially the same
proprietary information and techniques, gain access to our trade secrets, or disclose our technology.

In the past, funds from research and development arrangements with third parties have been
used to pay for a portion of our own research and development expenses. We receive these funds from
government-sponsored programs and customers, in connection with our designing and developing
specific products. Currently, funds from lithography tool manufacturers and chipmakers are used to fund
a small portion of our research and development expenses. In providing these research and
development services to these manufacturers, we try to make clear who owns the intellectual property
that results from the research and development services we perform. However, disputes over the
ownership or rights to use or market this intellectual property may arise between the funding
organizations and us.

Third parties have notified us in the past, and may notify us in the future, that we are infringing

their intellectual property rights. Also, we have notified third parties in the past, and may notify them in
the future, that they may be infringing our intellectual property rights.
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Specifically, Komatsu has notified us that we may be infringing some of its Japanese patents.
During our subsequent discussions with Komatsu, they also asserted that our former Japanese
manufacturing partner, Seiko, or we may be infringing on some of Komatsu’s U.S. patents and a
number of its additional Japanese patents. Komatsu has also notified one of our customers, Nikon, of its
belief that our light sources infringe several of Komatsu’s Japanese and U.S. patents. As a result, we
started proceedings in the Japanese Patent Office to oppose certain patents and patent applications of
Komatsu. The Japanese Patent Office has dismissed our opposition claims. Thus, litigation may resuit
in connection with Komatsu's Japanese patents or U.S. patents. Also, Komatsu might claim that we
infringe other or additional patents. Komatsu notified Seiko that it intends to enforce its rights against
Seiko with respect to its Japanese patents if Seiko continued to engage in manufacturing activities for
us. In connection with our former manufacturing agreement with Seiko, we agree to pay Seiko under
certain conditions for damages associated with these types of claims. Seiko may not prevail in any
litigation against Komatsu, and therefore, we may be required to pay Seiko for such damages.

We have notified our competitor and others of our U.S. patent portfolio. Specifically, we have
notified Komatsu that it may be infringing some of our U.S. patents. We have discussed with Komatsu
our claims against each other. Komatsu challenged one of our U.S. patents in the United States Patent
and Trademark Office (“USPTO”) but our patent was subsequently re-issued by the USPTO. Also,
Komatsu transferred its lithography light source business to our competitor, Gigaphoton. We also have
had discussions with Lambda-Physik (a subsidiary of Coherent, Inc.) regarding allegations by each
party against the other of possible patent infringement. Any of these discussions with our competitor or
former competitor may not be successful and litigation could result.

In the future, patent litigation may result due to a claim of infringement by our competitor or any
other third party or may be necessary to enforce patents issued to us. Any such litigation could result in
substantial cost to us and diversion of our effort, which would have an adverse effect on our business,
financial condition and operating results. Furthermore, our customers and the end-users of our products
might assert other claims for indemnification that arise from infringement claims against them. If these
assertions are successful, our business, financial condition and operating resuits may be harmed.
Instead of litigation, or as a result thereof, we may seek a license from third parties to use their
inteliectual property. However, we may not be able to obtain a license. Alternatively, we may design
around the third party’s intellectual property rights. Any adverse determination in a legal proceeding
could result in one or more of the following, any of which could harm our business, financial condition
and operating resuits:

loss of our proprietary rights;

exposure to significant liabilities by other third parties;

requirement that we get a license from third parties on terms that are not favorable; or
restriction from manufacturing or selling our products.

e & o »

Any of these actions could be costly and would divert the efforts and attention of our
management and technical personnel, which would materially adversely affect our business, financial
condition and results of operations.

We have granted Seiko a right of first refusal to fund our development of, and receive a license
to, new industrial light source technologies not developed with funding from other parties. In exchange
for these rights, we received up-front license fees of $3.0 million in aggregate during 1992 and 1993.
We were also entitled to royalties of 5% on related product sales through September 1999, after which
the royalty rate was subject to renegotiation. To date no renegotiation of the royaity rate has occurred.
Through 1999, we earned no royalties under the agreement. The license agreement also provides that
product sales between us and Seiko will be at a 15% discount from the respective companies' list
prices. The agreement terminates in August 2012. There has been no production or sales activity by
Seiko associated with this contract to date and this contract does not apply fo our current light source
system products.
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We have registered the trademarks "CYMER” and “INSIST ON CYMER” and others in the U.S.
and in some other countries. We are also trying to register additional trademarks in the U.S. and in other
countries. We use these trademarks and many other marks in our advertisements and other business
materials, which are distributed throughout the world. We may be subject to trademark infringement
actions for using these marks and other marks on a worldwide basis and this would be costly to defend.
if a trademark infringement action were successful, we would have to stop using the mark and possibly
pay damages.

Competition

We believe that the principal elements of competition in our markets are the technical
performance characteristics of the excimer light source products and the operating efficiency of the
system, which is based on availability, performance efficiency and rate of quality. We believe that we
compete favorably with respect to these factors.

We currently have one significant competitor, Gigaphoton, that sells light sources for DUV
photolithography applications. Headquartered in Japan, Gigaphoton is a joint venture between two large
companies, Komatsu and Ushio. We believe that Gigaphoton is aggressively trying to gain larger
penetration in the DUV light source market. We know that our direct customers have purchased
products from Gigaphoton and have approved its light sources for use with their products. We also
know that Gigaphoton has been approved by chipmakers in Japan, the U.S. and elsewhere for
producing excimer light sources. We could lose market share and our growth could slow or even
decline if Gigaphoton gains additional market acceptance.

In the future, we will likely experience competition from other technologies, such as EUV and
electron projection lithography. To remain competitive, we believe that we will need to manufacture and
deliver products to customers on a timely basis without significant defects and maintain a high level of
investment in research and development and sales and marketing. We might not have sufficient
resources to continue to make the investments necessary to maintain our competitive position.

Larger competitors with substantially greater resources, such as other manufacturers of
industrial light sources for advanced lithography, may attempt to sell competitive products to our
customers. Potential competitors may also be attracted to our growing installed base of light sources
and may attempt to supply consumables and spare parts to that installed base.

Employees
On December 31, 2005, we employed 879 persons worldwide. No employees are currently

covered by collective bargaining agreements or are members of any labor organization as far as we are
aware. We have not experienced any work stoppages and believe that our employee relations are good.
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Executive Officers

Set forth below is certain information regarding our executive officers and their ages as of
March 8, 2006.

Name Age Position
Robert P. Akins .........cocvvvens 54 Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
Edward J. Brown ................. 48 President and Chief Operating Officer
Nancy J. Baker ................... 43 Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer
Bill N. Alexander ................. 49 Executive Vice President, Worldwide Customer Operations
Takeshi Watanabe.............. 51 President, Cymer Japan
Rae Ann Werner ................. 41 Vice President, Controller and Chief Accounting Officer

Robert P. Akins, one of our co-founders, has served as our chairman and chief executive
officer since our inception in 1986, and served as president of the company as well from our inception
until May 2000. He currently serves on the boards of directors of Semiconductor Equipment and
Materials International (*SEMI"), and SEMI North America. He is also a member of the council of
advisors to the Irwin and Joan Jacobs School of Engineering at the University of California, San Diego
("UCSD"), and serves on the board of the UC San Diego Foundation. Mr. Akins received the Ernst &
Young Entrepreneur of the Year Award for San Diego County in 1997, and with fellow co-founder Rick
Sandstrom, received the outstanding alumnus award from UCSD, and the prestigious SEMI Award for
North America, the highest honor conferred by SEMI, in 1996 for contributions to the field of DUV
lithography. Mr. Akins received a bachelor's degree in physics, a bachelor's degree in literature, and a
doctorate in applied physics from the University of California, San Diego.

Edward J. Brown, Jr. has served as president and chief operating officer since September
2005. Mr. Brown has nearly three decades of experience in the technology sector, including 17 years
as an executive and 11 as a corporate officer. Prior to joining us, Mr. Brown held several high-level
management positions at Applied Materials Inc., the world’s largest provider of semiconductor
equipment and services. At Applied Materials, he was responsible for key business innovations,
overseeing global operations, and enabling significant revenue growth. Mr. Brown received a master's
degree in business administration from National University and a bachelor's degree in industrial studies
from San Diego State University.

Nancy J. Baker has served as senior vice president and chief financial officer since January
2002. Prior to that, she served as our vice president, finance and treasurer from June 1998 to
December 2001. During 2000, she headed the company's successful effort to implement a new
Enterprise Resource Planning system, which was implemented in San Diego in only six months, and
globally in only nine months. From October 1996 to June 1998 she served as director, corporate finance
and treasurer. She joined us as corporate controller for worldwide operations in August 1992. Ms.
Baker's professional career spans more than 20 years, and prior to joining us, she held a variety of
financial management positions with an international manufacturer in the San Diego area. Ms. Baker
received a bachelor's degree in accounting from the University of Texas at Austin and completed the
executive advanced management program at Harvard Business School.

Bill N. Alexander has served as executive vice president of worldwide customer operations
since October 2004. He joined us in October 2002 as our senior vice president of sales and field
operations for the Semiconductor Manufacturing Solutions group. A year later, he transitioned to the
Lithography System Solutions group as senior vice president of sales and site operations. Prior to
joining us, Mr. Alexander served as the president of Europe operations for Novellus Systems, Inc. and
before that, he worked as the vice president of worldwide sales and field operations at GaSonics
international, Inc. from August 1997 to January 2001. Throughout his career, Mr. Alexander has held
various senior management positions throughout the semiconductor industry including vice president,
Asia-Pacific sales and field operations at Tencor Instruments, vice president of international operations
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for Watkins-Johnson Company, director of Asia-Pacific regional marketing for Applied Materials, CVD
Division, and senior manager of Asia-Pacific strategic sales for Lam Research Corporation. Mr.
Alexander received a bachelor's degree from San Jose State University and a master's degree in
business administration from Golden Gate University.

Takeshi Watanabe has served as president of Cymer Japan, Inc. since February 2005, and in
this role is responsible for managing our overall business in Japan, including the sales, service, and
operations infrastructure for our direct customers and lithography tool manufacturers. Prior to that, he
served as our account sales director for Canon from June 2001 to February 2005. Mr. Watanabe joined
Cymer Japan, Inc. in October 2000 as finance director, and served in that position until June 2001.
Before joining us, Mr. Watanabe served as senior finance manager with Guidant Japan, Ltd., where he
was responsible for finance and planning and restructured the unit’s financial operations. Over the
twenty years prior to this, Mr. Watanabe served in a series of finance positions of increasing
responsibility with such companies as Duracell Battery Japan Ltd., Stryker Japan, Ltd., Nihon Valid
Logic System, Ltd., Kulicke and Soffa (Japan), Ltd., Sony Music Entertainment, and Measurex Japan,
Ltd. Mr. Watanabe holds a bachelor's degree in accounting from Chuo University.

Rae Ann Werner has served as vice president, controller, and chief accounting officer since
January 2003. Prior to that, she served as our controlier from February 1999 to January 2003. From
1993 to 1999 she held a variety of finance positions with increasing responsibilities since joining us in
November 1993. Ms. Werner's professional career spans more than 18 years, and prior to joining us,
she held a variety of financial positions with semiconductor and communications companies in the San
Diego area. Ms. Werner received a bachelor's degree in accounting from San Diego State University.

Executive officers serve at the discretion of the board of directors. There are no family
relationships between any of the directors and our executive officers.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

The risks described below may not be the only risks we face. Additional risks that we do not
currently think are material may also impair our business operations. If any of the events or
circumstances described in the following risks actually occur, our business, financial condition or results
of operations could suffer, and the trading price of our common stock could decline.

Our revenues and operating results from quarter-to-quarter have varied in the past and our
future operating results may continue to fluctuate significantly.

Factors that contribute to fluctuations in our revenues and operating results include;

o demand for semiconductors in general and, in particular, for leading edge devices with
smaller circuit geometries;

cyclicality in the market for semiconductor manufacturing equipment;

rates at which chipmakers take delivery of photolithography tools from lithography tool
manufacturers (“our customers”);

rates at which our customers take delivery of light source systems from us;

timing and size of orders from our small base of customers;

product lead time demands from our customers and the chipmakers;

mix of light source models, consumable and spare parts and service revenues in our total
revenues;

changes in the price and profitability of our products;

our ability to develop and implement new technologies and introduce new products;
changes in market penetration by our competitor;

utilization rates of light sources and sales of consumable and spare parts and services;

our ability to manage our manufacturing requirements;

® o

14




e our ability to manage customer satisfaction, product reliability, and direct field service and
support effectiveness;

o foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations, principally with respect to the Japanese yen (in
which sales by our Japanese subsidiary are denominated);

¢ worldwide political instability;
changing global economic conditions, including rising energy prices; and
intellectual property protection.

We have historically derived a large portion of our quarterly and annual revenues from selling a
small number of light source systems. Because we sell a small number of products, the precise time
that we recognize revenue from an order may have a significant impact on our total revenue for a
particular period. Our customers may cancel or reschedule orders with little or no penalty. Orders
expected in one quarter could shift to another period due to changes in the anticipated timing of
customers’ purchase decisions or rescheduled delivery dates requested by our customers. Our
operating results for a particular quarter or year may be adversely affected if our customers, particularly
our three largest customers, cancel or reschedule orders, or if we cannot fill orders in time due to
unexpected delays in manufacturing, testing, shipping, and product acceptance.

We manage our expense levels based, in large part, on expected future revenues. As a result,
our expenses are relatively fixed for the short term, and if our actual revenue decreases beiow the level
we expect, our operating results will be adversely affected. As a result of these or other factors, we
could fail to achieve our expectations as to future revenue, gross profit and operating income. Our
failure to meet the performance expectations set and published by external sources could result in a
sudden and significant drop in the price of our stock, particularly on a short-term basis, and could
negatively affect the value of any investment in our stock.

Our business depends on the semiconductor and the semiconductor capital equipment
industries, which are highly volatile and unpredictable.

We derive substantially all of our revenues from photolithography tool manufacturers, or original
equipment manufacturer (“OEM”) customers, who incorporate our light source systems in
photolithography tools that they sell to semiconductor manufacturers, or chipmakers, and from
chipmakers who purchase consumables, spare parts, upgrades and service directly from us. Like us,
our OEM customers depend on demand for their products from the chipmakers. The capital equipment
and related operating expenditures of chipmakers depend on a number of factors, including the current
and anticipated market demand for semiconductors and the many products using semiconductors. That
demand is highly volatile and unpredictable.

As a result of the cyclicality of the semiconductor industry, the semiconductor capital equipment
industry historically has experienced periodic ups and downs and currently appears to be in flux, with
industry experts uncertain about the level of growth to expect in 2006. In late 2005 and early 20086,
business indicators for our industry have become more positive, and estimates of semiconductor capital
equipment spending for the full year of 2006 now range from an increase of at least 5% to as much as
10% to 12% over 2005 levels. The lithography segment of the semiconductor capital equipment
industry could grow at about double the rate of the industry as a whole due to a perceived need for
additional lithography tools, with advanced lithography tools expected to have higher average selling
prices.

The cyclical nature of the semiconductor and the semiconductor capital equipment industries
affects our ability to accurately predict future revenue and therefore our ability to manage our future
expense levels. When cyclical fluctuations result in lower than expected revenue levels, operating
results may be adversely affected and cost reduction measures may be necessary in order for us to
remain competitive and financially sound. During a down cycle or slowdown, we must be in a position to
adjust our cost and expense structure to prevailing market conditions while still being able to motivate
and retain our key employees. During periods of rapid growth, we must be able to increase
manufacturing capacity and personnel to meet customer demand. We can provide no assurance that
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these objectives can be met in a timely manner in response to industry cycles. We are not able to
predict with any certainty the duration of any industry cycle or the timing or order of magnitude of any
recovery.

Downturns in the semiconductor industry often result in decreases in demand for semiconductor
manufacturing equipment, including the photolithography tools that our OEM customers produce. The
previous downturn in the semiconductor industry had a severe effect on the demand for semiconductor
manufacturing equipment. Fluctuating levels of investment by chipmakers and resulting pricing volatility
will continue to materially affect our aggregate bookings, revenues and operating results. Even during
periods of reduced revenues we believe we must continue to invest in research and development and to
maintain extensive ongoing worldwide customer service and support capabilities to remain competitive.
Continued spending in furtherance of these objectives may temporarily harm our financial results.
Semiconductor industry downturns and slowdowns are likely to continue to adversely affect our
business, financial condition and operating results, and our operating resuits may fall below the
expectations of public market analysts or investors in future guarters. Any failure to meet such
expectations could materially adversely affect the price of our common stock.

Our OEM customers try to manage their inventories and production requirements to appropriate
levels that reflect their expected sales to chipmakers. Market conditions in the semiconductor industry
and our OEM customers’ production efficiency can cause them to expand or reduce their orders for new
light source systems as they try to manage their inventories and production requirements. We continue
to work with our OEM customers to better understand these issues. However, we cannot guarantee that
we will be successful in understanding our OEM customers’ inventory management and production
requirements or that our OEM customers will not build up an excess inventory of light source systems. If
our OEM customers retain an excess inventory of light source systems, our revenue could be reduced
in future periods as the excess inventory is utilized, which could adversely affect our operating results,
financial condition and cash flows. If our OEM customers demand shorter product lead times to improve
their inventory and cash positions, our inventory management and cash position may be negatively
impacted, which may adversely affect our operating results, financial condition and cash flows.

A significant percentage of our revenue is derived from sales to a few large customers, and if we
are not able to retain these customers, or they reschedule, reduce or cancel orders, or delay or
default on payments, our revenues would be reduced and our financial condition and cash flows

would suffer.

Three large companies, ASM Lithography, Canon and Nikon dominate the photolithography tool
business. Collectively, these three companies accounted for the following percentage of our total

revenue during the periods indicated:
Years ended December 31,

2003 2004 2005
ASM Lithography .......vvviiriiii e 24% 34% 32%
CaNON L. e 24% 11% 8%
NIKON L e e 21% 22% 24%
Total oo 69% 67% 64%

Collectively, these three companies accounted for the following percentage of our total accounts
receivable at the dates indicated:

December31, December 31,
2004 2005
ASM Lithography ......oooeviin 46% 36%
(02213 Lo o [N 5% 5%
NIKON Lo e 31% 25%
Total e 82% 66%
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We expect that sales of our light source products to these three customers will continue to
account for a substantial majority of our revenue in the foreseeable future. None of our customers are
obligated to purchase a minimum number of our products in the aggregate or during any particular
period. We can provide no assurance that any of our customers will continue to purchase our products
at past or current levels. For example, revenue attributable to sales to Canon has declined by more
than 50% over the last two fiscal years. Sales to Canon or any of these customers may be affected by
many factors, some of which are beyond our control. These factors include:

a change in a customer’s competitive position in its industry;
a customer experiencing lithography tool production problems; -
a decision to purchase light sources from other suppliers;

changes in economic conditions in the semiconductor or the photolithography tool
industries; and

¢ adecline in a customer’s financial condition.

The loss of any significant business from or production probiems for any one of these three
customers would harm our business and financial condition.

A substantial percentage of our revenue is derived from the sale of a limited number of primary
products.

Our only current product line is excimer light source systems, including KrF and ArF systems,
and support, including consumable and spare parts and service support. We expect these light source
systems and the related support to continue to account for a substantial majority of our revenues in the
near term. Continued market acceptance of our light source system products is, therefore, critical to our
future success. The primary market for excimer light sources is in the use of DUV photolithography
equipment for manufacturing deep-submicron semiconductor devices using smaller circuit geometries.
The demand for our products depends in part on the rate at which chipmakers further adopt excimer
light sources as the chosen light source for their photolithography tools.

The rate with which chipmakers adopt excimer light sources may vary for a variety of reasons,
including:

inadequate performance of photoresists used in advanced DUV photolithography;
potential shortages of specialized materials used in DUV optics;

productivity of 300 mm photolithography tools relative to 200 mm tools; and
consolidation of chipmakers.

We cannot guarantee that these factors can or will be overcome or that the demand for our
excimer light source products will not be materially reduced. The demand for our light source products,
and therefore our operating results, financial condition and cash flows, could be adversely affected by a
number of factors, including:

e adecline in demand for our customers’ DUV photolithography tools;

s afailure to achieve continued market acceptance of our products;

« a failure to manage customer satisfaction, product reliability, and direct field service and
support effectiveness;

e an improved version of products being offered by a competitor in the market in which we
participate;

* technological change that we are unable to address with our products; and
a failure to release new enhanced versions of our products on a timely basis.
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We depend on the introduction of new products for our success, and we are subject to risks
associated with rapid technological change.

Rapid technological changes in semiconductor manufacturing processes subject us to
increased pressure to develop technological advances enabling such processes. We believe that our
future success depends in part upon our ability to develop, manufacture, timely introduce and support
new light source products with improved capabilities and to continue to enhance our existing light
source systems and process capabilities. Due to the risks inherent in transitioning to new products, we
must forecast accurate demand for new products while managing the transition from older products.

Our most significant product introduction in recent years consisted of a technology change from
a single-discharge-chamber excimer light source to a dual-discharge-chamber design called MOPA.
The MOPA design represents a paradigm shift from previously accepted lithography technology and
offers chipmakers higher power, tighter bandwidth and lower cost of operation for their current — and we
expect for their future — optical lithography applications. As originally designed, the MOPA architecture
was projected to provide its benefits across all three DUV wavelengths — 248 nm, 193 nm, and 157 nm
- but at this time, the semiconductor industry has only adopted MOPA at the 193 nm wavelength, due to
the successful extension of 248 nm single chamber technology, and the omission of 157 nm lithography
from the roadmap. There are risks inherent in the ongoing transition to the MOPA technology, including
effective execution of our product development roadmap, continuing adoption of the product by
lithography tool manufacturers and chipmakers, manufacturability, cost effectiveness, and product
performance in the field of the new products and the development of a comparable product by our
competitor.

We believe that chipmakers are currently developing a capability to produce devices that are
measured at 90 nm or less, and these efforts are driving the current demand for our light source
products for DUV photolithography systems. After chipmakers have this capability, their demand for our
light source products will depend, in part, on whether they want to expand their capacity tc manufacture
these devices. This will in turn depend on whether their sales forecasts and projected manufacturlng
process yields justify the necessary investments.

Future technologies such as EUV, electron projection lithography, and maskless lithography
may render our excimer light source products obsolete. We must manage product transitions, as
introduction of new products could adversely affect our sales of existing products. If new products are
not introduced on time, or have reliability or quality problems, our performance may be impacted by
reduced orders, higher manufacturing costs, delays in acceptance of and payment for new products,
and additional service and warranty expenses. We may not be able to develop and introduce new
products or enhancements to our existing products and processes in a timely or cost effective manner
that satisfies customer needs or achieves market acceptance. Failure to develop and introduce these
new products and enhancements could materially adversely affect our operating results, financial
condition and cash flows.

We expect to face significant competition from current and future competitors. We believe that
other companies are developing systems and products that are competitive to ours and are planning to
introduce new products to this market, which may affect our ability to sell our new products.
Furthermore, new products represent significant investments of our resources and their success, or lack
thereof, could have a material effect on our financial results.

Failure to maintain effectively our direct field service and support organization could have a
material adverse effect on our business.

We believe it is critical for us to provide quick and responsive service directly to the chipmakers
throughout the world that use our light source products in their photolithography systems, and that it is
essential to maintain our own personnel or trained third-party resources to provide these services.
Accordingly, we have an ongoing effort to develop our direct support system with locations in Europe,

18




Korea, Japan, the People’s Republic of China, Singapore, Taiwan and the U.S. This requires us to do
the following:

recruit and train qualified field service personnel;

identify qualified independent firms; and

maintain effective and highly trained organizations that can provide service to our
customers in various countries.

We may not be able to attract and train qualified personnel to maintain our direct support
operations successfully. We may not be able to find and engage qualified third-party resources to
supplement and enhance our direct support operations. Further, we may incur significant costs in
providing these support services. Failure to implement our direct support operation effectively could
have a material adverse effect on our operating resulits, financial condition and cash flows.

We must develop and manufacture enhancements to our existing products and introduce new
products in order to continue to grow our business. We may not effectively manage our growth
and integrate these new enhancements and products, which could materially harm our business.

To continue to grow our business, our existing light source products and their process
capabilities must be enhanced, and we must develop and manufacture new products to serve other
semiconductor applications. We cannot guarantee that we will be able to manage our business {o grow
effectively. Nor can we guarantee that we will be able to accelerate the development of new
enhancements to our existing products and create new products. Further, we may not be able to
effectively integrate new products and applications into our current operations. Any of these risks could
materially harm our business, financial condition and results of operations.

We must effectively manage changes in our business.

In order to respond to the business cycles of the semiconductor industry, in the past few years
we have sharply expanded and contracted the scope of our operations and the number of employees in
many of our locations and departments. As the semiconductor industry cycle moves between growth
and contraction we will need to:

e closely manage our global operations;

e improve our process and other internal management systems;

* improve our quality control, order fulfillment, field service and customer support capabilities;
¢ quickly adapt to changing sales and marketing channels;

o effectively manage our inventory levels; and

e attract, train, retain and manage key personnel.

If we fail to effectively manage changes in our business, our operating results, financial
condition and cash flows will be adversely affected.

Chipmakers’ prolonged use of our products in high volume production may not produce the
results they desire and, as a result, our reputation and that of our customers who supply
photolithography tools to the chipmakers could be damaged in the semiconductor industry.

Over time, our light source products may not meet chipmakers’ production specifications or
operating cost requirements after the light source has been used for a long period in high volume
production. If any chipmaker cannot successfully achieve or sustain their volume production using our
light sources, our reputation could be damaged with the chipmakers and our customers who are the
limited number of lithagraphy tool manufacturers. This would have a material adverse effect on our
business.
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We depend on a few key suppliers for purchasing components and subassemblies that are
included in our products.

We purchase a limited number of components and subassemblies included in our light source
products from a single supplier or a small group of suppliers. For certain optical, control system and
pulse power components and subassemblies used in our light source systems, we currently utilize a
single supplier. To reduce the risk associated with this single supplier, we carry a significant strategic
inventory of these components. Strategic inventories are managed as a percentage of future demand.
We have also negotiated to have vendor-managed inventory of critical components to further reduce the
risk of a single supplier. In addition, we contract the manufacture of various subassemblies more often
than in the past. Further, some of our suppliers have specialized in supplying equipment or
manufacturing services to semiconductor equipment manufacturers and therefore are susceptible to
industry ups and downs and subject to the same risks and uncertainties regarding their ability to
respond to changing market conditions. Because many of these suppliers reduce the size of their
workforce in an industry downturn and increase it in an upturn, they may not be able to meet our
requirements or respond quickly enough as an upturn begins and gains momentum. Due to the nature
of our product development requirements, these key suppliers must rapidly advance their own
technologies and production capabilities in order to support the introduction schedule of our new
products. These suppliers may not be able to provide new modules and subassemblies when they are
needed to satisfy our product schedule requirements. If we cannot purchase enough of these materials,
components or subassemblies, or if these items do not meet our quality standards, there could be
delays or reductions in our product shipments, which would have a material adverse effect on our
operating results, financial condition and cash flows.

We face competition from one company and may face competition from additional competitors
who enter the market.

We are currently aware of one significant competitor that sells light sources for DUV
photolithography applications. This competitor, Gigaphoton, is a joint venture between two large
companies, Komatsu and Ushio, and is headquartered in Japan. Additionally, late in 2004, a former
competitor Coherent, Inc., a U.S. company, announced that their Lambda-Physik subsidiary would no
longer pursue the excimer light source systems business for photolithography in the semiconductor
industry.

We believe that Gigaphoton is aggressively trying to gain larger market penetration in the
excimer light source industry. We know that our customers have purchased products from this
competitor and that our customers have approved this competitor's light sources for use with their
products. We know that Gigaphoton has been approved by chipmakers in Japan, the U.S. and
elsewhere for producing excimer light sources.

Larger companies with substantially greater resources, such as other manufacturers of
industrial light sources for advanced lithography, may attempt to sell competitive products to our
customers. Potential competitors may also be attracted to our growing installed base of light sources
which represents a steady and significant consumable and spare parts revenue stream for us, and they
may attempt to supply consumable and spare parts to that installed base. if any existing or future
competitors gain market acceptance we could lose market share and our growth could slow or decline,
which could have a material adverse effect on our operating results, financial condition and cash flows.

We depend on key personnel, especially management and technical personnel, who may be
difficult to attract and retain.

We are highly dependent on the services of many key employees in various areas, including:
s research and development;

e engineering;
s sales and marketing;
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¢ field service and support;
e manufacturing; and
e management.

In particular, there are a limited number of experts in excimer light source technology, and we
require highly skilled hardware and software engineers. Competition for qualified personnel is intense
and we cannot guarantee that we will be able to continue to attract and retain qualified personnel as
needed. We do not have employment agreements with most of our employees. We believe that our
future growth and operating results will depend on:

« the continued services of our research and development, engineering, sales and marketing,
field service and support, manufacturing and management personnel;

e our ability to attract, train and retain highly-skilled key personnel; and

o the ability of our personnel and key employees to continue to expand, train and manage our
employee base.

If we are unable to hire, train and retain key personnel as required, our operating results,
financial condition and cash flows could be adversely affected.

Economic, political, regulatory and other events in geographic areas where we have significant
sales or operations could interfere with our business.

We serve an increasingly global market. A large portion of our total revenues is derived from
customers located outside of the U.S., particularly in Asian countries. We expect our international sales
to continue to account for a very large portion of our total revenues. In order to support our foreign
customers, we maintain a manufacturing and field service subsidiary in Korea as well as field service
and support subsidiaries in Japan, the Netheriands, the Peopie’'s Republic of China, Singapore and
Taiwan. ‘

We may not be able to manage our operations to address and support our global customers
effectively. Further, our investments in these types of activities may not make us competitive in the
global market or we may not be able to meet the service, support, and manufacturing levels required by
our global customers.

Additionally, we are subject to the risks inherent in doing business globally, including:

unexpected changes in regulatory requirements;

fluctuations in exchange rates and currency controls;

political and economic conditions and instability;

imposition of trade barriers and restrictions, including changes in tariff and freight rates,
foreign customs and duties;

difficulty in coordinating our management and operations in several different countries;
difficulties in staffing and managing foreign subsidiary and branch operations;

limited intellectual property protection in some countries;

potentially adverse tax consequences in some countries;

the possibility of accounts receivable collection difficulties;

in the case of Asia, the risk of business interruption and damage from earthquakes;
the effect of acts of terrorism and war; and

the burdens of complying with a variety of foreign laws.

Many of our major customers and many of the chipmakers who use our light source products in
their photolithography systems are located in Asia. Economic problems and currency fluctuations
affecting these regions in Asia could create a larger risk for us. Further, even though it has not been
difficult for us to comply with U.S. export controls, these export rules could change in the future and
make it more difficult or impossible for us to export our products to many countries. Any of these
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vulnerabilities could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and resuits of
operations.

We may acquire a business or enter a new market that will involve numerous risks. We may not
be able to address these risks successfully without substantial expense, delay or other
operational and financial challenges.

The risks involved with acquiring a new company, forming a joint venture, or entering a new
market include the following:

o diversion of management's attention and resources to integrate the new company or new
business opportunity;
failure to retain key personnel,

« client dissatisfaction or performance problems with the acquired company or new product in
a new market;

o amortization of acquired definite-lived intangible assets and deferred compensation;

» the cost associated with acquisitions and joint ventures and the integration of acquired
operations;

o the cost associated with developing, marketing, introducing and supporting a new product
in a new market;

o failure to commercialize purchased technologies;
ability of the acquired companies, joint ventures or new markets to meet their financial
projections;

e assumption of unknown liabilities or other unanticipated events or circumstances; and

e compliance with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, new SEC regulations, Nasdaq Stock
Market rules and new accounting pronouncements as they relate to the new company or
joint venture.

Mergers, acquisitions and joint ventures as well as entering new markets are inherently subject
to multiple significant risks, and the inability to effectively manage these risks could have a material
adverse effect on our business. In July 2005, we formed a joint venture with Zeiss named TCZ GmbH,
to produce tools for the manufacture of flat panel displays. This is a new market for both Cymer and
Zeiss and may involve numerous risks. Any of these risks could materially harm our business, financial
condition and operating results. Further, any business that we acquire, joint venture that we form or new
market we may enter may not achieve anticipated revenues or operating results.

Compliance with changing regulations of corporate governance and public disclosure may
result in additional expenses.

Changing laws, regulations and standards relating to corporate governance and public
disclosure, including the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, new SEC regulations, Nasdag Stock Market
rules, and new accounting pronouncements are creating uncertainty and additional complexities for
companies such as ours. In particular, the Section 404 internal control requirements under the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act have added and will continue to add complexity and costs to our business and
require a significant investment of our time and resources to complete each year. We take these
requirements seriously and expect to continue to make every effort to ensure that we receive clean
attestations on our internal controls each year from our outside auditors. To maintain high standards of
corporate governance and public disclosure, we intend to invest all reasonably necessary resources to
comply with all other evolving standards. These investments may result in increased general and
administrative expenses and a diversion of management time and attention from strategic revenue
generating and cost management activities.
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Decreased effectiveness of equity compensation could adversely affect our ability to attract and

retain employees, and changes in accounting for equity compensation could adversely affect
earnings.

We have historically used broad based stock option programs and other forms of equity-related
incentives as a key component of our employee compensation packages. We believe that stock options
and other long-term equity incentives directly motivate a broader base of employees to maximize long-
term stockholder value and, through the use of long-term vesting, encourage employees to remain with
us. In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (‘FASB") issued Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 123R (‘SFAS No. 123R”), “Share-Based Payment — An
Amendment to Statement Nos. 123 and 95,” which we have adopted as of January 1, 2006. This new
rule requires us to record an expense to earnings for employee stock option grants and other equity
incentives. Moreover, applicable stock exchange listing standards relating to obtaining stockholder
approval of equity compensation plans has made it more difficult and expensive for us to grant options
to employees, which has resulted in changes to our equity compensation strategy, including a reduction
in the number of stock options granted to employees. We have already developed alternative cash
compensation arrangements for our employees to replace the majority of these stock option programs
and may be required to offer additional alternative cash compensation arrangements in the future.
These and other developments in the provision of equity compensation to employees could make it
more difficult to attract, retain and motivate employees, and such a change in accounting rules and
alternative cash compensation programs may adversely impact our future operating results, financial
condition and cash flows.

Our ability to compete could be jeopardized if we are unable to protect our intellectual property
rights. These types of claims could seriously harm our business or require us to incur
significant costs.

We believe our success and ability to compete depend in large part upon protecting our
proprietary technology. We rely on a combination of patent, trade secret, copyright and trademark laws,
nondisclosure and other contractual agreements and technical measures to protect our proprietary
rights.

As of December 31, 2005, we owned 230 U.S. patents covering certain aspects of technology
related to light sources and piezo techniques. These patents will expire at various times during the
period from January 2008 to October 2023. As of December 31, 2005, we had applied for 110
additional patents in the U.S. As of December 31, 2005, we owned 334 foreign patents and had 344
patent applications pending in various foreign countries.

Our pending patent applications and any future applications might not be approved. Our patents
might not provide us with a competitive advantage and may be challenged by third parties. In addition,
third parties’ patents might have an adverse effect on our ability to do business. As a result of cost
constraints, we did not begin seeking patent protection in Japan and other countries for our inventions
that are covered by U.S. patents and patent applications until 1993. As a result we do not have the right
to seek foreign patent protection for some of our early inventions. Additionally, laws of some foreign
countries in which our products are or may be developed, manufactured or sold, including various
countries in Asia, may not protect our products or intellectual property rights to the same extent as do
the laws of the U.S. Thus, the likelihood of piracy of our technology and products is greater in these
countries. Further, third parties might independently develop similar products, duplicate our products, or
design around patents that are granted to us.

Other companies or persons may have filed or may file in the future patent applications that are
similar or identical to ours. We may have to participate in appropriate proceedings in the courts or the
patent offices to determine the priority of inventions. These proceedings may determine that these third-
party patent applications have priority over our patent applications. Loss of priority in these interference
proceedings could result in substantial cost to us.
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We also rely on the following to protect our confidential information and our other intellectual
property:

trade secret protection;

employee nondisclosure agreements;
third-party nondisclosure agreements; and
other intellectual property protection methods.

However, we may not be successful in protecting our confidential information and intellectual
property, particularly our trade secrets, because third parties may:

¢ independently develop substantially the same proprietary information and techniques;
e gain access to our trade secrets; or
¢ disclose our technology.

The parties to whom we provide research and development services may dispute the ownership
of the intellectual property that we develop performing these services.

In the past, funds from research and development arrangements with third parties have been
used to pay for a portion of our own research and development expenses. We receive these funds from
government-sponsored programs and customers, in connection with our designing and developing
specific products. Currently, funds from lithography tool manufacturers and chipmakers are used to fund
a small portion of our research and development expenses. In providing these research and
development services to these manufacturers, we try to make clear who owns the intellectual property
that results from the research and development services we perform. However, disputes over the
ownership or rights to use or market this inteilectual property may arise between the funding
organizations and us. Any dispute over ownership of the intellectual property we develop could restrict
our ability to market our products and have a material adverse effect on our business.

In the future, we may be subject to patent litigation to enforce patents issued to us and defend
ourselves against claimed infringement by our competitor or any other third party.

Third parties have notified us in the past, and may notify us in the future, that we are infringing
their intellectual property rights. Also, we have notified third parties in the past, and may notify them in
the future, that they may be infringing our intellectual property rights.

Specifically, Komatsu has notified us that we may be infringing some of its Japanese patents.
During our subsequent discussions, Komatsu also asserted that our former Japanese manufacturing
partner, Seiko, or we may be infringing on some of Komatsu's U.S. patents and a number of its
additional Japanese patents. Komatsu has also notified one of our customers, Nikon, of its belief that
our light sources infringe several of Komatsu's Japanese and U.S. patents. As a result, we started
proceedings in the Japanese Patent Office to oppose certain patents and patent applications of
Komatsu. The Japanese Patent Office has dismissed our opposition claims. Thus, litigation may result
in connection with Komatsu's Japanese patents or U.S. patents. Also, Komatsu might claim that we
infringe other or additional patents. Komatsu notified Seiko that it intends to enforce its rights against
Seiko with respect to its Japanese patents if Seiko continued to engage in manufacturing activities for
us. In connection with our former manufacturing agreement with Seiko, we agree to pay Seiko under
certain conditions for damages associated with these types of claims. Seiko may not prevail in any
litigation against Komatsu, and therefore, we may be required to pay Seiko for such damages.

We have notified our competitor and others of our U.S. patent portfolio. Specifically, we have
notified Komatsu that it may be infringing some of our U.S. patents. We have discussed with Komatsu
our claims against each other. Komatsu challenged one of our U.S. patents in the USPTO but our
patent was subsequently re-issued by the USPTO. Also, Komatsu transferred its lithography light
source business to our competitor, Gigaphoton. We also have had discussions with Lambda-Physik (a
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subsidiary of Coherent, Inc.) regarding allegations by each party against the other for possible patent
infringement. Any of these discussions with our competitor or former competitor may not be successful
and litigation could resuilt.

In the future, patent litigation may result due to a claim of infringement by our competitor or any
other third party or may be necessary to enforce patents issued to us. Any such litigation could result in
substantial cost to us and diversion of our effort, which would have an adverse effect on our business,
financial condition and operating results. Furthermore, our customers and the end-users of our products
might assert other claims for indemnification that arise from infringement claims against them. If these
assertions are successful, our business, financial condition and operating results may be materially
affected. Instead of litigation, or as a result thereof, we may seek a license from third parties to use their
intellectual property. However, we may not be able to obtain a license. Alternatively, we may design
around the third party's intellectual property rights or we may challenge these claims in legal
proceedings. Any adverse determination in a legal proceeding could result in one or more of the

following, any of which could harm our business, financial condition and operating results:

loss of our proprietary rights;

exposure to significant liabilities by other third parties;

requirement that we get a license from third parties on terms that are not favorable; or
restriction from manufacturing or selling our products.

Any of these actions could be costly and would divert the efforts and attention of our
management and technical personnel, which would materially adversely affect our business, financial
condition and results of operations.

Trademark infringement claims against our registered and unregistered trademarks would be
expensive and we may have to stop using such trademarks and pay damages.

We registered the trademarks “CYMER” and “INSIST ON CYMER” and others in the U.S. and
in some other countries. We are also trying to register additional trademarks in the U.S. and in other
countries. We use these trademarks and many other marks in our advertisements and other business
materials, which are distributed throughout the world. We may be subject to trademark infringement
actions for using these marks and other marks on a worldwide basis and this would be costly to defend.
If a trademark infringement action were successful, we would have to stop using the mark and possibly
pay damages.

We are dependent on air transport to conduct our business and disruption of domestic and
international air transport systems could adversely affect our business.

We depend on regular and reliable air transportation on a worldwide basis for many of our
routine business functions. If civil aviation in the U.S. or abroad is disrupted by terrorist activities or
security responses to the threat of terrorism or for any other reason, our business could be adversely
affected in the following ways:

e supplies of raw materials and components for the manufacture of our products or our
customers’ products may be disrupted;

e we may not be able to deliver our products to our customers in a timely manner,;

e we may not be able to provide timely service or support of installed light sources for
chipmakers; and

e our sales and marketing efforts may be disrupted.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following selected consolidated financial data should be read in conjunction with our
consolidated financial statements and notes thereto and with ltem 7, “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,” which are included elsewhere in this report.

Consolidated Statements of Operations Data:

Product sales
Other
Total revenues

Costs and expenses:
Cost of product sales
Research and development (2)
Sales and marketing
General and administrative
Purchased in-process research and development
Total costs and expenses
Operating income (loss)

Other income (expense) — net

Income (loss) before income tax
provision (benefit) and minority interest

Income tax provision (benefit)

Minority interest

income (loss) before cumulative change in
accounting principle

Cumulative change in accounting principle,
net of taxes

Net income (loss)

Basic earnings (loss) per share
Weighted average common shares
outstanding

Diluted earnings (loss) per share
Weighted average common and dilutive
potential common shares outstanding

Years ended December 31,

2001 (1) 2002

2003

2004 (4)

2005

(in thousands, except per share data)

31,108 34,712

30

$ 267,003 $ 287995 $ 265816 $ 417296 § 382,638
1,948 871 57 783 1,010
268,951 288,866 265,873 418,079 383,648
151,340 162,095 187,679 243,473 227,290
61,023 72,580 56,768 58,612 64,025
19,617 17,153 16,966 23,369 25,143
18,990 18,212 39,094 31,630 26,514
5,050 - - - -
256,020 270,040 300,507 357,084 342,972
12,931 18,826 (34,634) 60,995 40,676
(837) (2,077) (1,139) (421) 5112
12,094 16,749 (35,773) 60,574 45,788
2,871 2,706 (21,464) 15,144 262
(368) (447) (1,091) (2,276) 1,026

8,855 13,596 (15,400) 43,154 46,552
(370) - - . .

$ 8,485 $ 1359% $ (15400) § 43,154 § 46,552
$ 0.28 § 041 3§ (044 3 117 $ 129
30,474 33,317 35,065 36,758 36,017

$ 0.27 $ 039 § 0.44 $ 115 & 1.27
35,065 37,584 36,544




As of December 31,

2001 (1) 2002 2003 2004 (3) 2005
(in thousands)

Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:

Cash and cash equivalents (4) $ 96,891 $ 92273 $ 110632 $ 114,246 233,745
Working capital 257,851 351,127 397,790 452,579 499,670
Total assets 483,346 766,887 809,244 818,836 791,376
Total long-term liabilities 151,772 255,154 261,627 208,035 151,304
Treasury stock (24,871) - - - (50,000)
Stockholders' equity 254,814 412,334 453,330 517,320 538,454

(1) Includes results of operations of Active Control Experts, Inc. (*ACX"} acquired on February 13, 2001 for the periods
subsequent to its acquisition.

(2) Includes amortization of goodwill and intangible assets associated with the acquisition of ACX in February 2001. These
amounts were previously shown as a separate line on the consolidated financial statements. Amortization of goodwill and
intangible assets totaled $3.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2001. Amortization of intangible assets totaled
$160,000 for each of the years ended December 31, 2002, 2003 and 2004, and $20,000 for the year ended December 31,
2005.

(3) During the fourth quarter of 2004, we corrected our accounting treatment for our parts refurbishment activities and all
amounts associated with this correction are included in 2004. This adjustment resulted in a $2.9 million increase in the
inventory balance as of December 31, 2004, a $28.5 million increase in 2004 product revenues, a $25.6 million increase in
2004 cost of product sales, and a $2.0 million increase in 2004 net income. See further discussion on change in accounting
method for refurbishment activities under ltem 7 “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results
of Operations” under the caption “Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates” and ltem 8 “Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data” Note 1 to our consolidated financial statements under “Parts Refurbishment”.

(4) In the first quarter of 2005, we reclassified auction rate securities from cash and cash equivalents to short-term investments.
Prior year-end balances were adjusted to conform to this presentation. As of December 31, 2001, 2002, 2003 and 2004,
$14.3 million, $104.4 millicn, $120.0 million and $86.8 million of auction rate securities were reclassified from cash and cash
equivalents to short-term investments, respectively.

item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in
conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included in this Annual Report
on Form 10-K.

Overview

We are the world’s leading supplier of light source solutions for the semiconductor industry. Our
products provide the essential light source for DUV photolithography systems. Almost all consumer
electronic devices manufactured in the last several years contain a semiconductor manufactured using
light sources such as ours. We currently supply light sources to all three lithography tool manufacturers,
ASM Lithography, Canon, and Nikon, who in turn supply their wafer steppers and scanners to
chipmakers. In addition, we sell replacement parts and services to the lithography tool manufacturers
as well as directly to the chipmakers. Our light source systems currently constitute a substantial
majority of all excimer light sources incorporated in lithography stepper and scanner tools. Our
headquarters is located in San Diego, California where we develop and manufacture all of our light
source systems. As a large portion of our revenue is derived from customers located outside of the
U.S., we maintain a manufacturing spares facility and field service office in Korea and field service and
support offices in Japan, the Netherlands, the People's Republic of China, Singapore and Taiwan.
Japan is currently our only subsidiary office that sells excimer light source systems. We also maintain
field service offices in the U.S. to service our installed base of light sources located in the U.S.

Since we derive a substantial portion of our revenues from photolithography tool manufacturers,
we are subject to the volatile and unpredictable nature of the semiconductor industry. The
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semiconductor industry is highly cyclical in nature and historically has experienced periodic ups and
downs, and the activities of the last few years illustrate this cyclicality. In 2000, the semiconductor
industry experienced strong growth, which was followed by a three year decline from 2001 through late
2003. Growth resumed in the final quarter of 2003 and continued through the third quarter of 2004. In
the fourth quarter of 2004, the industry declined briefly, then leveled off early in 2005, and began to
improve gradually thereafter.

Although 2005 started with revenue levels flat to slightly lower than 2004 levels, we began to
see several positive indicators for the semiconductor industry early in 2005, and certain areas of our
business increased steadily throughout 2005. We experienced sequential quarter over quarter revenue
growth throughout 2005, This revenue growth was due primarily to strong demand for our consumables
and spare parts, which is driven by our pulse usage, but also due to our ability to realize higher ASPs as
we sold more of our newest, most advanced, highest value-added light sources, and fewer trailing edge
tools for capacity expansion. In addition, by the end of the year, the utilization rates of our light sources
at chipmakers, which reflect fab activity, had grown 33% over the January level, and reached a record
high level, as chipmakers worked to achieve higher productivity. We saw strong utilization trends in
every region. Overall semiconductor fab utilization rose to the low- to mid-90% range by the end of
2005, from about 90% in the third quarter of 2005. Our most advanced technology products were the
main driver of our light source system demand throughout 2005 and should continue to be a strong
driver in the future, since chipmakers must continue to shrink feature sizes and expand leading edge
capacity.

More recently, business indicators have become more positive, with fab utilization rates
continuing to turn upward, particularly at foundries, and demand for certain kinds of memory chips
growing strongly. We are particularly encouraged by the strong and increasing demand for a kind of
memory chip called “NAND Flash,” which has been driven by the growing number of consumer video
entertainment products. With these positive indicators the consensus among industry forecasters is that
demand for chips will continue to be strong in 2006, causing semiconductor manufacturers to buy more
capital equipment. In fact, a number of chipmakers have announced that they intend to increase their
capital spending in 2006. Forecasters now expect capital spending in the semiconductor industry to
increase at least 5%, and possibly as much as 10% to 12%, in 2006 over 2005. We expect that
increasing fab utilization, growing demand for more capable flash memory, and tight capacity for critical
and mid-critical layers on silicon wafers, will drive demand for more lithography tools, particularly
advanced tools. We are strongly positioned as the leading supplier of light sources for advanced dry
and immersion ArF lithography, currently the most promising growth segment of the DUV market.
However, there remains a possibility that macro-economic factors, such as high energy prices, rising
interest rates, or a slowing real estate market could have a negative impact on consumer spending,
including spending on electronic devices, which drives much of the demand for chips.

Throughout 2005, we created shareholder value through improved profitability and execution.
We focused on and were successful in improving gross margins during the year by reducing cycle times
and material costs, and by shifting to a product mix of higher value-added and higher ASP ArF light
source systems and products. We also focused on improving asset management with particular
emphasis on improving inventory management and increasing operating efficiency and overall cash
flows. In 2005, we also assessed our existing infrastructure and ability to respond to the increased
activity levels that are expected in 2006 in the semiconductor industry, and we believe we are well
positioned to respond to these higher activity levels with our expanding ArF product offerings in the XLA
Series, and with adequate production capacity and field support infrastructure and personnel. In 20086,
we will continue to focus on all of these areas, while continuing our efforts to generate a significant
amount of cash and improve shareholder returns through higher returns on assets, which includes
increasing our inventory turns and return on invested capital during the year. In addition, we expect to
continue to explore opportunities on the most effective use of our cash, including the potential additional
repurchase of our own stock and convertible subordinated notes.

In July 2005, we entered into a joint venture agreement with Zeiss to form TCZ. TCZ is
currently developing, and will integrate, market, sell, and support, process tools for the flat panel display
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manufacturing industry. The joint venture is headquartered in San Diego and is owned 60% by us and
40% by Zeiss. The joint venture is targeting the growing market for LTPS processing used in the
manufacture of liquid crystal displays that are brighter, have higher resolution, and consume less power
than displays using today’s predominant amorphous silicon films. We currently expect that TCZ will ship
an evaluation model of its first production tool, the TCZ 900X, in late 2006 or early 2007, and we
currently expect that TCZ will break even from a financial standpoint in 2008.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

General

The discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based upon
our consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The preparation of these financial
statements requires us to make estimates and use judgment that may impact the reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses, and related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. As a
part of our ongoing internal processes, we regularly evaluate our estimates and judgments associated
with revenue recognition, valuation of parts used in our refurbishment manufacturing process, inventory
allowances, warranty provisions, income taxes, allowances for bad debts, long-lived assets valuation,
intangible assets valuation, and contingencies and litigation. We base these estimates and judgments
upon historical information and other facts and assumptions that we believe to be valid and/or
reasonable under the circumstances. These assumptions and facts form the basis for making judgments
and estimates and for determining the carrying values of our assets and liabilities that are not apparent
from other sources. Actuai resuits could vary from our estimates if we were to use different
assumptions and conditions.

We believe that revenue recognition, valuation of parts used in our refurbishment manufacturing
process, inventory allowances, warranty provisions, and income taxes require more significant
judgments and estimates in the preparation of our consolidated financial statements than do other of our
accounting estimates and judgments.

Revenue Recognition

Our revenues consist of product sales, which include sales of light source systems, consumable
and spare parts, upgrades, service, service contracts and training. Our revenues also consist of certain
funded development activities performed for our customers and under government contracts and
license agreements.

The sales of our light source systems generally include training and installation services. We
determined these elements qualify as one unit of accounting under Emerging Issues Task Force
(“EITF”) Bulletin No. 00-21, “Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables” as we do not have
evidence of fair value for the undelivered training and installation elements. Furthermore, we determined
that the undelivered training and installation elements are perfunctory performance obligations and are
not essential to the functionality of our light source systems. Therefore, in accordance with the
provisions of Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 104, we recognize revenue when the revenue recognition
criteria are met for the light source system, and accrue the costs of providing the training and installation
services. We recognize light source system revenue at one of following three points, depending on the
terms of our arrangement with our customer — 1) shipment of the light source system 2) delivery of the
light source system or 3) receipt of an acceptance certificate. For the majority of our light source system
sales, the shipping terms are F.O.B. shipping point and revenue is recognized upon shipment. For our
arrangements which include F.O.B. destination shipping terms, revenue is recognized upon delivery of
the light source system to our customer. Lastly, one of our arrangements includes an acceptance
provision, which is satisfied by the issuance of an acceptance certificate by the customer. For these
transactions, we recognize revenue upon receipt of the acceptance certificate. In addition, we test our
light source systems in environments similar to those used by our customers prior to shipment to ensure
that they meet published specifications.
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Revenue from consumables and spare parts sales is recognized at the point that legal title
passes to the customer, which is upon shipment from our facility. For a significant portion of our spare
parts sales, our customers return the consumed assembly to us as part of the sale of the new part. We
reuse some of the material within these core assemblies, mainly metal components, for the future build
of core assemblies. As a result, our revenue consists of both cash and the value of the reusable parts
received from our customers as consideration for these spare part sales. Revenue associated with our
customers' return of core assemblies is recognized upon receipt of the returned core assembly. The
amount of the revenue is determined based upon the fair value of the reusable parts that we expect to
yield from the returned core assembly based on historical experience.

Service and training revenue is recognized as the services are rendered.

For funded development contracts, which are included in other revenue, funds received are
accounted for on the percentage-of-completion method based on the relationship of costs incurred to
total estimated costs. Revenues generated from these types of funded development contracts are
derived from cost sharing contracts between certain customers and us. If milestones on these funded
development contracts require that specific results be achieved or reported by us, revenue is not
recognized until that milestone is completed. For some of the funded development contracts that we
enter into with customers and government agencies, we evaluate certain criteria to determine whether
recording the funds received as revenue is appropriate. If certain conditions are met, these funds are
not recorded as revenue but rather are offset against our own internal research and development
expenses in the period that the milestone is achieved.

Valuation of Parts Used in Refurbishment Manufacturing Process and Corrected Accounting Method

Over the last several years as part of our regular business activities, we have conducted
significant parts refurbishment activities related to some of our core assemblies, in particular our
chamber assemblies. The volume of this activity significantly increased in 2004. These activities involve
arrangements with our customers where we sell a new part to the customer at a reduced sales price if
the customer returns the consumed assembly that the new part replaces. These returned core
assemblies contain a certain amount of material, primarily metal components, that may be reused by us
in future core assemblies. Upon receipt of these consumed assemblies from our customers, we record
an entry to recognize the estimated fair value of the reusable components as inventory and revenue or
a reduction in cost of product sales sold depending on the reason for the part replacement. The value
of the reusable parts contained within the consumed assembly is determined based upon historical data
on the value of the reusable parts that we typically yield from a consumed assembly. The costs of
refurbishment are also capitalized as part of ending inventory as incurred. As part of our normal excess
and obsolete inventory analysis, these consumed assemblies are also reviewed on a quarterly basis
and an inventory allowance is recorded as appropriate for these parts. The value that we assign to
these core assemblies can be affected by the current demand for the reusable parts in our
manufacturing operations and the actual yield rate achieved for parts within these consumed core
assemblies. We believe that our methodology for valuing the reusable parts within these returned core
assemblies is reasonable, but any changes in the demand for the parts or the yield of the parts included
in these core assemblies could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of
operations.

Prior to the fourth quarter of 2004, we recorded the value of this material as a reduction of our
cost of product sales in the period that the returned assembly was disassembled by our manufacturing
operations and the value of the reusable parts could be determined. Upon further review of U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles in the fourth quarter of 2004, we determined that we should
instead estimate the value and record these consumed assemblies as inventory at the time that we
receive the returned assembly from our customer and concurrently record this amount as either revenue
or as a reduction to cost of product sales depending on the reason for the part replacement. Prior to the
fourth quarter of 2004 we recorded all such transactions as a reduction to cost of product sales. During
the fourth quarter of 2004, we corrected our accounting treatment for these refurbishment activities and
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recorded the financial impact for all of 2004 and prior years in our fourth quarter of 2004 financial
statements.

Inventory Allowance

We perform an analysis of our inventory allowances on at least a quarterly basis to determine
the adequacy of this allowance on our financial statements. The amount of the inventory allowance is
determined by taking into consideration certain assumptions related to market conditions and future
demands for our products, including changes to product mix, new product introductions, and/or product
discontinuances, which may result in excess or obsolete inventory. We determine the level of excess
and obsolete inventory associated with our raw materials and production inventory, which includes all
parts on hand from our refurbishment activities, by comparing the on hand inventory balances and
inventory on order to the next 12 months of forecasted demand. We then adjust this calculation for
inventory that has a high likelihood of use beyond one year or can be used in other products that may
have lower demands. After this adjustment, we arrive at our total exposure for excess and obsolete
inventory within our raw materials and production inventory. As part of this analysis, we also determine
whether there are potential amounts owed to vendors as a result of cancelled or modified raw material
orders. We estimate and record a separate liability, which is included in accrued and other liabilities in
the accompanying balance sheets for such amounts owed.

The inventory allowance totaled $12.7 million and $10.4 million at December 31, 2004 and
December 31, 2005, respectively. The decrease in this allowance from December 31, 2004 to
December 31, 2005 was primarily due to the disposal of certain obsolete materials during 2005 and an
overail decrease in inventory levels and excess parts as of December 31, 2005.

The methodologies used to analyze excess and obsolete inventory and determine the inventory
allowance are significantly affected by future demand and usage of our products. There are many
factors that could potentially affect the future demand or usage of our products, including the following:

¢ Overall condition of the semiconductor industry, which is highly cyclical in nature;

» Rate at which our customers take delivery of our light source systems and our consumable
and spare parts;

¢ Loss of any of our three major customers or significant change in demand from any of these
three customers;

e Overall mix of light source system models or consumable and spare parts and any changes
to that mix required by our customers; and

o Utilization rates of our light sources at chipmakers.

Based upon our experience, we believe that the estimates we use in calculating the inventory
allowance are reasonable and properly reflect the risk of excess and obsolete inventory. If actual
demand or the usage periods for our inventory are substantially different from our estimates,
adjustments to our inventory allowance may be required, which could have a material adverse effect on
our financial condition and results of operations.

Warranty Provision

We maintain an accrual for the estimated cost of product warranties associated with our product
sales. Warranty costs include the replacement parts and labor costs to repair our products during the
warranty periods. At the time revenue is recognized, we record a warranty provision, which is included
in cost of product sales in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations. The warranty
coverage period and terms for light source systems and consumable and spare parts varies by light
source system model. The warranty provision for our products is reviewed monthly and determined by
using a statistical financial model, which takes into consideration actual historical expenses, product
failure rates, and potential risks associated with our different products. This model is then used to
estimate future expenses related to warranty and the required warranty provision. The risk levels and
historical cost information and failure rates used within this model are reviewed throughout the year and
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updated as these inputs change over the product’s life cycle. Due to the highly technical nature of our
light source system products, the newer model light sources and the modules contained within them
have higher inherent warranty risks with their initial shipments and require higher warranty provisions
untit the technology becomes more mature.

The total balance in the warranty provision accrual as of December 31, 2004 and December 31,
2005 was $28.2 million and $30.2 million, respectively. This increase from year to year is primarily due
to the higher level of consumables and spare parts sales that occurred in the second half of 2005 as
compared to the second half of 2004 and the reserve amounts remaining in the warranty provision on
December 31, 2005 related to these sales. This increase in the spares and consumables portion of the
warranty provision in 2005 was offset by decreases in the light source systems warranty caused by the
overall mix of systems under warranty to those with lower warranty provision requirements and the
higher number of light source systems at December 31, 2005 which were at the end of the warranty
period.

We actively engage in product improvement programs and processes to limit our warranty
costs, but our warranty obligation is affected by the complexity of our product, product failure rates and
costs incurred to correct those product failures at customer sites. The industry in which we operate is
subject to rapid technological change, and as a result, we periodically introduce newer, more complex
light sources. Although we classify these newly released light source models as having a higher risk in
our warranty model resuiting in higher warranty provisions, we are more likely to have differences
between the estimated and actual warranty costs for these new products. This is due to limited or no
historical product performance data on which to base our future warranty costs. Warranty provisions for
our older and more established light source models are more predictable as we have more historical
information available on these products. If actual product failure rates or estimated costs to repair those
product failures were to differ from our estimates, revisions to our estimated warranty provision would be
required, which could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations.

Income Taxes

We account for income taxes in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 109 (“SFAS No. 109"), “Accounting for Income Taxes.” Pursuant to SFAS No. 109, a deferred tax
asset or liability is generally recognized for the estimated future tax effects attributable to temporary
differences, net operating loss (“NOL") carryforwards and tax credit carryforwards. Deferred tax assets
are to be reduced by a valuation allowance if, based on the weight of available evidence, it is more
likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized within the carryback
or carryforward periods. Information about an enterprise's current financial position and its results of
operations for the current and preceding years, as well as all currently available information about future
years should be considered.

We have considered our industry’s outlook for the future, our historical performance and
estimated future taxable income, and ongoing tax planning strategies in assessing the need for a
valuation allowance. Using this information, we have prepared a model to forecast our expected
taxable income in future years and to estimate when the benefits of our deferred tax assets are likely to
be realized. Based upon the analysis, with the exception of TCZ, we believe that it is more likely than
not that the results of future operations will generate sufficient taxable income to realize the deferred tax
assets within the period allowed by current applicable tax law and, as such, no valuation allowance
against deferred tax assets is provided. However, in the case of our newly-created joint venture, TCZ,
we do not feel that there is sufficient evidence or operating history to conclude that TCZ's future
operating profits are likely to allow it to utilize its NOL carryforwards and, consequently, a full valuation
allowance has been provided against those loss carryforwards in the amount of $293,000.

At December 31, 2005 we had federal tax NOL carryforwards of $29.3 million and federal tax

credits of $19.2 million, both of which begin to expire in 2020. At December 31, 2005, we had state tax
credit carryforwards of $15.2 million, of which $3.5 million begin to expire in 2009, and $11.7 million may
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be carried forward indefinitely. At December 31, 2005 we had foreign NOL carryforwards of $1.8 million
which may be carried forward indefinitely.

A material adverse change in the outlook for worldwide lithography tool sales, the expected
selling prices or profit margins for our products or our expected share of the global market for
lithography light sources, could cause us to determine that additional valuation allowances are needed
for some or all of our deferred tax assets, and would result in an increase to our income tax provision in
the period in which such determination is made.

Our resulis reflect the impact of the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004, which repealed the
Extraterritorial Income Exclusion (“ETI") subject to certain transition rules. The ETI benefit is being
replaced with a Manufacturing Activity deduction under Internal Revenue Code (“IRC”) Section 199, with
a phase out of ETI benefits in 2005 and 2006. Our estimated ET! benefit for 2005 reflects the transition
rules.

We have not provided for U.S. federal income and foreign withholding taxes on $53.3 million of
undistributed earnings from non-U.S. operations as of December 31, 2005 as it is our intention to
reinvest undistributed earnings of our foreign subsidiaries and thereby indefinitely postpone their
remittance. Accordingly, no provision has been made for foreign withholding taxes or U.S. income taxes
which may become payable if undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries were paid to us as
dividends. Currently, we are not considering the repatriation of any foreign earnings and as such, no
impact is reported in the financial statements as of December 31, 2005. It is not practicable to estimate
the amount of the deferred tax liability on such unremitted earnings.

The American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 and IRC Section 965 allow a temporary 85% dividends
received deduction on repatriated foreign earnings if the funds are reinvested in the U.S. We have
evaluated the impact of repatriation of foreign earnings under IRC Section 965 and concluded that we
will not repatriate any foreign earnings under these provisions.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following table sets forth certain items in our consolidated statements of operations as a
percentage of total revenues for the periods indicated:
Years ended December 31,

2003 2004 2005
Revenues:
Product sales 1000 % 99.8 % 99.6 %
Product sales - related party - - 0.1
Other - 0.2 0.3
Total revenues 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 %
Cost and expenses:
Cost of product sales 70.6 58.2 59.2
Research and development 21.4 14.0 16.7
Sales and marketing 6.3 5.6 6.6
General and administrative ‘ 14.7 7.6 6.9
Total costs and expenses 113.0 854 894
Operating income (loss) (13.0) 14.6 10.6
Other income (expense) — net (0.5) (0.1) 1.3
Income (loss) before income tax provision (benefit)
and minority interest (13.5) 14.5 11.9
Income tax provision (benefit) 8.1) 3.6 0.1
Minority interest (0.4) (0.6) 0.3
Net income (loss) (5.8) % 10.3 % 121 %
Gross margin on product sales 294 % 417 % 40.6 %
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YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004 AND 2005

Revenues. The types of revenue that we generate and how we recognize revenue for each is
explained above under the heading “Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates.”

The following table summarizes the components of our revenue (in thousands, except units

sold):
Years ended December 31,
2003 2004 2005

Light source systems:

Revenue $ 160,302 3 244,840 $ 207,402

Units sold 163 301 207

‘Average selling price (1) $ 983 $ 827 $ 982
Consumable and spare parts and

service products $ 105,514 _$ 172,456 $ 175,236
Other revenue 3 5 % 783 $ 1,010
Total revenue $ 265,873 $ 418,079 $ 383,648

(1) Calculation of average selling price includes $4.2 million deferred light source revenue during 2004 and excludes
$4.2 million deferred light source revenue that was recognized in 2005. We had one arrangement where a portion
of the light source system fee was not payable until the system was installed successfully at the end-user. This
arrangement expired in March 2005.

Product sales decreased 8% from $417.3 million for 2004 to $382.6 million for 2005. This
decrease in product sales was due to lower light source system revenues partially offset by higher
consumable and spare parts and service product revenues during 2005 as compared to 2004. Light
source system revenues decreased 15% from $244.8 million for 2004 to $207.4 million for 2005. A total
of 301 light source systems were sold in 2004 at an average selling price of $827,000, compared to 207
systems sold in 2005 at an average selling price of $982,000. On a foreign currency adjusted basis, the
average selling price for 2004 was $816,000 compared to $984,000 for 2005. The increase in the
average selling price from year to year reflected the shift in the product mix from capacity driven lower
priced KrF products in 2004 to higher priced technology buys of advanced ArF products in 2005. The
decrease in quantities of light source systems sold from year to year was due to the brief upturn in the
semiconductor industry in 2004, when chipmakers expanded capacity, compared to the slight slowdown
and flattening of the industry in 2005 which impacted the demand for our light source systems,
particularly KrF light sources for capacity expansion. This decrease in light source system revenues
from year to year was offset by a 2% increase in revenues associated with our consumable and spare
parts and service products from $172.5 million for 2004 to $175.2 million for 2005. Revenues from
funded development contracts were $783,000 for 2004, compared to $1.0 million for 2005. There were
no revenues recorded or earned associated with the TCZ joint venture for 2005. As a result of the
current market conditions and the anticipated semiconductor industry growth, we expect our revenue to
increase between 15% and 18% in the first quarter of 2006 compared to the fourth quarter of 2005.

Our backlog at December 31, 2004 was $79.1 million compared to $90.8 million at December
31, 2005. Bookings for the years ended December 31, 2004 and December 31, 2005 were $393.3
million and $395.4 million, respectively. The book-to-bill ratio for the quarter ended December 31, 2004
was 0.80 compared to 1.17 for the quarter ended December 31, 2005. The increase in the backlog is
due to the changing condition of the semiconductor industry from year to year. The backlog as of
December 31, 2004 reflected the brief slowdown and flattening in the semiconductor industry that
started in late 2004, whereas the backlog as of December 31, 2005 reflects the recent start of what is
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anticipated to be a growth phase in the semiconductor industry. The increase in bookings was primarily
due to increased orders of light source systems in the fourth quarter of 2005 as compared to the fourth
quarter of 2004.

We installed 279 light sources at chipmakers and other end-users during 2004 as compared to
245 light sources installed during 2005.

Sales to our three largest customers, ASM Lithography, Canon, and Nikon, amounted to 34%,
11% and 22%, respectively, of total revenue for 2004, and 32%, 8% and 24%, respectively, of total
revenue for 2005,

QOur sales are generated primarily by shipments to customers in Japan, Europe, and the U.S..
Approximately 82% and 84% of our sales for 2004 and 2005, respectively, were derived from customers
outside the U.S. We maintain a wholly owned Japanese subsidiary, which sells to our Japanese
customers. Revenues from Japanese customers, generated primarily by Cymer Japan, accounted for
32% and 31% of total revenues for 2004 and 2005, respectively. The activities of our Japanese
subsidiary are limited to sales and service of products purchased by them from us as the parent
corporation. We anticipate that international sales will continue to account for a significant portion of our
net sales.

Cost of Product Sales. Cost of product sales includes direct material and labor, warranty
expenses, license fees, and manufacturing and service overhead, and foreign exchange gains and
losses on foreign currency forward exchange contracts (“forward contracts”) associated with purchases
of our products by our Japanese subsidiary for resale under firm third-party sales commitments.
Shipping costs associated with our product sales are also included in cost of product sales. We do not
charge our customers for shipping fees and such costs are not significant.

The cost of product sales decreased 7% from $243.5 million for 2004 to $227.3 million for 2005.
This decrease in the cost of product sales was primarily due to lower light source system sales in 2005
compared to 2004. In addition, the decrease in the cost of product sales from year to year also reflects
lower overall product costs as a result of our materia! costs reduction efforts.

The gross margin on product sales was 41.7% for 2004 as compared to 40.6% for 2005. This
fower gross margin from year to year was primarily due to the increase in consumables and service
revenues which have lower gross margins. In addition, the gross margin for 2004 was favorably
impacted by approximately two percentage points due to a customs refund that was received by our
Korea office and credited to cost of product sales. Gross margin in the second half of 2005 was
improved from the first half of the year due to increased factory yield and utilization and decreased cycle
times and overall material costs. Going forward, we anticipate our gross margin will increase due to
increasing revenue levels, improved efficiencies and continued benefits from our product cost reduction
activities.

Research and Development. Research and development expenses include costs of internally-
funded and externally-funded projects as well as continuing product development support expenses,
which consist primarily of employee and material costs, depreciation of equipment and other
engineering related costs. Our research and development expenses are offset by amounts associated
with certain of our externally funded research and development contracts. Research and development
expenses increased 9% from $58.6 million for 2004 to $64.0 million for 2005 due primarily to costs
associated with our LTPS product development efforts and EUV light source development. Research
and development expenses were offset by amounts related to our externally funded research and
development contracts of $7.6 million and $2.8 million for 2004 and 2005, respectively. In addition to
our development of EUV and LTPS technologies during 2005, we also continued to focus on next
generation ArF products based on the XL platform and next generation KrF products. As a percentage
of total revenues, research and development expenses increased from 14.0% for 2004 to 16.7% for
2005 due primarily to increased research and development efforts and lower revenues in 2005 as
compared to 2004. As a result of our decision to enter the flat panel display manufacturing tools market
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with the formation of the TCZ joint venture, our research and development expenses going forward will
also include a greater focus on LTPS product development efforts. !n addition, research and
development expenses will be higher in 2006 as a result of our adoption of SFAS 123R, stock option
expensing, on January 1, 2006.

Sales and Marketing. Sales and marketing expenses include the expenses of the sales,
marketing and customer support staff and other marketing expenses. Sales and marketing expenses
increased 8% from $23.4 million for 2004 to $25.1 million for 2005. This increase in sales and marketing
expenses from year to year primarily reflects increased sales expenses associated with our chipmaker
customers at our foreign locations and market development costs associated with the TCZ joint venture.
These expenses were offset by decreased profit sharing and bonus expenses incurred in 2005
compared to 2004. As a percentage of total revenues, such sales and marketing expenses increased
from 5.6% for 2004 to 6.6% for 2005. We expect that our sales and marketing expenses will increase
slightly as a result of the new stock option expensing requirements in 2006.

General and Administrative. General and administrative expenses consist primarily of
management and administrative personnel costs, professional services and administrative operating
costs. General and administrative expenses decreased 16% from $31.6 million for 2004 to $26.5 million
for 2005 primarily due to the receipt of rent payments in 2005 from the tenants in two of our San Diego
facilities, which we subleased in the third and fourth quarters of 2004. General and administrative
expenses in 2004 also included $3.0 million in costs associated with revisions of our estimates related
to the timing and market rates for subleasing the San Diego and Charlestown facilities, which we exited
in 2003 compared to $384,000 of such expenses recorded in 2005. The lower general and
administrative expenses in 2005 were offset by increased stock-based compensation expense
associated with non-employees and initial expenses associated with the TCZ joint venture during the
year. As a percentage of total revenues, general and administrative expenses decreased slightly from
7.6% for 2004 to 6.9% for 2005. We anticipate that general and administrative expense levels will
increase as a result of the new stock option expensing requirements in 2006.

Total Other Income (Expense) - Net. Net other income (expense) consists primarily of interest
income and expense, foreign currency exchange gains and losses associated with fluctuations in the
value of the functional currencies of our foreign subsidiaries against the U.S. dollar, and gains and
losses associated with debt extinguishment transactions. Net other expense totaled $421,000 for 2004,
compared to net other income of $5.1 million for 2005. The change from net other expense to net other
income was primarily due to an increase in interest income, a decrease in interest expense and a higher
gain on debt extinguishment related to our notes repurchase activities from year to year. This was offset
by a foreign currency exchange loss recorded in 2005 compared to a small foreign currency gain
recorded in 2004. The increase in interest income from 2004 to 2005 reflected higher market interest
rates for our short-term and long-term investments on higher cash and investment balances.. The
decrease in interest expense from year to year was due to our lower debt balances as a result of the
repurchase of our convertible subordinated notes that we made in the third quarter of 2004 and the
second quarter of 2005. Foreign currency exchange gains totaled $82,000, interest income totaled $8.1
million, interest expense totaled $9.5 million and gain on debt extinguishment totaled $911,000 for 2004,
compared to a foreign currency exchange loss of $1.1 million, interest income of $10.9 million, interest
expense of $6.9 million and gain on debt extinguishment totaling $2.2 million for 2005.

Income Tax Provision. The tax provision of $15.1 million and $262,000 for 2004 and 2005,
respectively, reflects an annual effective rate of 25% and less than 1%, respectively. The change in the
annual effective tax rate from period to period was primarily attributable to the decrease in pre-tax
earnings as well as tax benefits from U.S. export incentive programs and research credits. Included in
the income tax provision for 2005 are corrections to income tax expense that resulted from a weakness
in our internal control policies and procedures regarding the reconciliation of income tax accounts that
were not designed with adequate precision and our policies and procedures over our foreign tax
provisions did not provide for adequate review as of December 31, 2005. These corrections resulted in
an $804,000 reduction in our income tax provision for the year ended December 31, 2005. Although the
corrections were not considered material to our consolidated financial statements, we assessed a
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material weakness in our internal controls over accounting for income taxes under the Sarbanes-Oxley
section 404 requirements as of December 31, 2005. The annual effective tax rates for both periods
were less than the U.S. statutory rate of 35% primarily as a result of permanent book/tax differences
and tax credits. The effective tax rate is a function of current tax law and geographic location of pre-tax
income. During the fourth quarter of 2005, the expiration of certain statutes of limitations related
primarily to U.S. federal tax credits and deductions allowed us to release tax reserves in the amount of
$4.2 million. As a result, our fourth quarter of 2005 annualized effective tax rate was a benefit rate of
11% resulting in an annual effective tax rate of less than 1%. The decision to release tax reserves is
made each quarter based on all relevant facts and circumstances. We do not expect the release of tax
reserves to have a significant impact on our effective tax rate in future years.

The Research and Experimentation Credit was extended under the Working Families Tax Relief
Act for amounts paid or incurred after June 30, 2004 and before 2006. The ETI was repealed by the
American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 subject to certain transition rules. The ETI exclusion is being
replaced with a Manufacturing Activity deduction under IRC Section 199 with a phase out of ETI
benefits in 2005 and 2006. Our estimated ETI benefit for 2005 reflects the transition rules. We did not
benefit from the Section 199 deduction in 2005 due to the taxable income limitation. The benefit is
available to us for future tax years subject to certain transition rules. We anticipate that the benefit
available to us under both regimes wilf be comparable for years in which we have taxable income.

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 AND 2004

Revenues. Product sales increased 57% from $265.8 million in 2003 to $417.3 million in 2004,
primarily due to a 53% increase in light source system revenue from $160.3 million in 2003 to $244.8
million in 2004. A total of 163 light source systems were sold in 2003 at an average selling: price of
$983,000, compared to 301 systems sold in 2004 at an average selling price of $827,000. On a foreign
currency adjusted basis, the average selling price for 2003 was $963,000 compared to $816,000 for
2004. The decrease in the average selling price from period to period reflected the shift in the product
mix to capacity driven lower priced KrF products in 2004. Product sales were further increased from
period to period due to a 63% increase in sales of consumable and spare parts and service products
from $105.5 million in 2003 to $172.5 million in 2004. Included in the sales of consumable and spare
parts and service revenues were revenues associated with the receipt of reusable material contained
within consumed core assemblies returned from our customers. These revenues totaled $28.5 million
for 2004. There were no such revenues recorded in 2003. See further discussion under Valuation of
Parts Used in Refurbishment Manufacturing Process and Corrected Accounting Method under ltem 7
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations under the
caption “Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates” and ltem 8 “Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data” Note 1 to our consolidated financial statements under “Parts Refurbishment”. The
increase in this type of product sales was due to increased utilization of our DUV light source by
chipmakers during most of 2004 and an increased installed base in 2004. Revenues from funded
development contracts were $57,000 in 2003, compared to $783,000 for 2004.

Sales to our three largest customers, ASM Lithography, Canon, and Nikon, amounted to 24%,
24% and 21%, respectively, of total revenue for 2003, and 34%, 11% and 22%, respectively, of total
revenue for 2004.

Approximately 88% and 82% of our sales for 2003 and 2004, respectively, were derived from
customers outside the U.S. Revenues from Japanese customers, generated primarily by Cymer Japan,
accounted for 44% and 32% of total revenues in 2003 and 2004, respectively.

Cost of Product Sales. The cost of product sales increased 30% from $187.7 million for 2003 to
$243.5 million for 2004. This increase in the cost of product sales was primarily due to the overall
increase in product sales from year to year. Both light source system sales and sales of consumable
and spare parts and service products were higher in 2004 compared to 2003. In addition, the increase
in the cost of product sales reflects the change in our accounting treatment for parts used in our
refurbishment manufacturing process and the reclassification of these transactions as revenue rather
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than a credit to cost of product sales. The increase in cost of product sales also reflected the reduction
in force activities which tock place in October 2004 and mainly impacted manufacturing personnel. The
increase in the cost of product sales was partially offset by the product costs associated with the shift in
our product mix to lower cost KrF products and our overall material cost reduction targets on a variety of
products. This increase in the cost of product sales was also offset by a $2.3 million Korean customs
refund realized in the fourth quarter of 2004.

The gross margin on product sales was 29.4% for 2003 as compared to 41.7% for 2004. This
higher gross margin was primarily due to the improved efficiencies and costs associated with our XL
Series light source and the shift to our lower cost and higher margin KrF products in 2004 as compared
to 2003. The higher gross margin in 2004 also reflected increased factory yield and utilization,
increased and improved field utilization and efficiency and significant success in our material cost
reduction efforts. In addition, gross margin was favorably impacted in 2004 by a couple of percentage
points due to the Korean customs refund of $2.3 miliion.

Research and Development. Research and development expenses increased 3% from $56.8
million for 2003 to $58.6 million for 2004, due primarily to costs associated with our EUV light source
development, new business opportunity development and costs associated with the profit sharing and
bonus plans, which were earned by employees in 2004. Research and development expenses were
offset by amounts related to our externally funded research and development contracts of $1.6 million
and $7.6 million for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2004, respectively. In addition to our
development of EUV, we also continued to focus on next generation KrF and ArF products based on the
XL platform. As a percentage of total revenues, research and development expenses decreased from
21.4% for 2003 to 14.0% for 2004 due primarily to lower revenues in 2003 compared to 2004.

Sales and Marketing. Sales and marketing expenses increased 38% from $17.0 million for
2003 to $23.4 million for 2004. This increase in sales and marketing expenses from year to year
primarily reflected the expenses associated with the profit sharing and bonus plans, which were earned
by employees in 2004 and increased marketing expenses associated with our international subsidiaries
in 2004. As a percentage of total revenues, such sales and marketing expenses decreased from 6.3%
for 2003 to 5.6% for 2004.

General and Administrative. General and administrative expenses decreased 19% from $39.1
million for 2003 to $31.6 million for 2004 due to a number of factors. First of all, we incurred a $15.6
million tenant improvement write-off in 2003 associated with the facilities we vacated during the third
quarter of that year. This tenant improvement write-off resulted in a decrease in depreciation expense in
2004, which is allocated among the various expense classifications. Although we were successful in
subleasing our San Diego facilities in 2004, we did incur a loss associated with one of the subleases.
General and administrative expenses in 2004 included $3.0 million in costs associated with such
subleasing activities for our San Diego and Charlestown facilities. In addition, general and
administrative expenses were higher in 2004 as compared to 2003 due to the expenses associated with
our bonus and profit sharing plans, which were earned by employees in 2004 and significant consulting
and external audit fees associated with our compliance with the internal control reporting requirements
under Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. As a percentage of total revenues, such expenses
decreased from 14.7% for 2003 to 7.5% for 2004.

Total Other income (Expense) - Net. Net other expense totaled $1.1 million and $421,000 for
2003 and 2004, respectively. The decrease in net other expense was due to a decrease in interest
expense from year to year, a gain on debt extinguishment related to our notes repurchases that we
made in the third quarter of 2004 and a $281,000 gain recorded for a sale of investments during 2004.
Interest expense was reduced from year to year due to our lower debt balances as a result of the
repurchases of notes made in 2004. This decrease in net other expense from year to year was offset by
a decrease in interest income and a decrease in foreign currency gains. The decrease in interest
income reflected lower market interest rates for our short-term and long-term investments. The foreign
currency gain in 2004 was reduced by a net $1.1 million loss associated with the discontinuance of
certain cash flow hedges during the third quarter of 2004. Foreign currency exchange gains totaled
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$436,000, interest income totaled $8.9 million and interest expense totaled $10.5 million for 2003,
compared to foreign currency exchange gains of $82,000, interest income and other income of $8.1
million, interest expense of $9.5 million and a gain on debt extinguishment of $911,000 for 2004.

Income Tax Provision (Benefit). The tax benefit of $21.5 million and the tax provision of $15.1
million for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2004, respectively, reflected an annual effective
rate of 60% and 25%, respectively. The change in the annual effective tax rate during the year ended
December 31, 2004 from a benefit rate of 60% to a provision rate of 25% was primarily attributable to
the increase in pre-tax earnings as well as tax benefits from U.S. export incentive programs and
research and development and manufacturing investment credits. The annual effective tax rates for
both periods were less than the U.S. statutory rate of 35% primarily as a result of permanent book/tax
differences and tax credits. The effective tax rate is a function of current tax law and geographic location
of pre-tax income. The Research and Experimentation Credit was extended under the Working
Families Tax Relief Act for amounts paid or incurred after June 30, 2004 and before 2006. The
American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 repealed the ETI exclusion subject to certain transition rules. The
ETI exclusion is being replaced with a Manufacturing Activity deduction under IRC Section 199. The
benefit will be available to us for tax years beginning in 2005, subject to certain transition rules. We
anticipate that the benefit available to us under both regimes is comparable for years in which we have
taxable income. :

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Historically we have funded our operations primarily from cash generated from operations, the
proceeds of the note offerings in August 1997 and February 2002, bank borrowings, and the proceeds
from employee stock option exercises. As of December 31, 2005, we had approximately $233.7 million
in cash and cash equivalents, $130.2 million in short-term investments, $29.4 million in long-term
investments, and $499.7 million in working capital.

In February 2002, we issued $250.0 million in aggregate principal amount in a private
placement of notes. These notes are due on February 15, 2009 with interest payable semi-annually on
February 15 and August 15 of each year at 3.50% per annum. The notes are convertible into shares of
our common stock at a conversion rate of 20 shares per $1,000 principal amount or an effective
conversion price of $50.00 per share. We used a portion of the net proceeds from this private
placement to redeem the previously issued notes that were then outstanding. The remaining proceeds
are being used for our operating, investing and financing activities. With the approval of our board of
directors, we have periodically repurchased these notes in the open market. We repurchased $49.2
million and $60.0 million principal amount of these notes in 2004 and 2005, respectively. As of
December 31, 2005, there were $140.7 million principal amount of notes outstanding.

Net cash provided by operating activities was approximately $34.2 million and $114.0 million for
2004 and 2005, respectively, compared to $3.6 million used in operating activities for 2003. Net cash
used in operating activities during 2003 reflects the net loss for the year due to the downturn in the
semiconductor industry. This net loss for the year also reflects additional overall costs associated with
our new XLA 100 light source system and its introduction to manufacturing in early 2003. Cash was
further reduced by increases in customer accounts receivable, decreases in accounts payable, and
accrued expenses and other liabilities offset by a decrease in inventory from year to year. Net cash
provided by operating activities during 2004 reflects net income for the year and increases in accrued
and other liabilities and income taxes offset by increases in accounts receivable, inventories, and
accounts payable. The increase in accounts receivable was significant for 2004 and resulted from a
higher number of product shipments than normal taking place in the last month of the quarter ended
December 31, 2004. The increase in inventories was primarily due to our response to the growing light
source utilizations that we experienced during the first three quarters of 2004 and higher spares
inventories to support what we thought would be a continued upturn in the semiconductor industry.
When the industry started to slow down in the third and fourth quarters of 2004, we took action to
reduce our spares and consumables inventory. As a result of these actions, our inventory decreased by
$10.6 million in the fourth quarter of 2004. Net cash provided by operating activities during 2005
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reflects net income for the year, significant decreases in accounts receivable and inventory and
increases in accounts payable. The decrease in accounts receivable reflects collections we made in our
receivable balances that were outstanding as of December 31, 2004. The decrease in inventory reflects
the reduction in our field and factory inventory as a result of our ongoing initiative during 2005 to
improve asset management by reducing inventory and increasing inventory turns.

Net cash provided by investing activities was approximately $272,000 and $78.6 million for
2004 and 2005, respectively, compared to $20.8 million used in investing activities for 2003. In 2003,
the cash used in investing activities was due primarily to the continued construction of the new
manufacturing and office facility in San Diego and purchases of required manufacturing equipment for
the new facility. These capital acquisitions during the year were offset by the timing of short-term and
long-term investments that matured and were reinvested during the year. Net cash provided by
investing activities during 2004 reflects the timing of short-term and long-term investments maturing and
being reinvested during the year, purchases of property and equipment, a $6.0 million payment to
acquire certain patents and a $2.0 million payment to acquire an additional 6% minority interest in our
Cymer Korea subsidiary. Net cash provided by investing activities during 2005 reflects the timing of
short-term and long-term investments that matured and were reinvested during the year, the acquisition
of $18.8 million of property and equipment and a $2.5 million payment to acquire certain patents.

Net cash provided by financing activities was approximately $41.4 million for 2003, compared to
net cash used in financing activities of $32.0 million and $71.0 million in 2004 and 2005, respectively. In
2003, net cash provided by financing activities was primarily due to proceeds from the exercise of
employee stock options of $48.2 million offset by a $6.7 million payment on our Japanese revolving
loan, which occurred in June 2003. in 2004, net cash used in financing activities reflects the repurchase
of approximately $49.2 million principal amount of our convertible subordinated notes in the third quarter
of 2004, at a discount to par. This was offset by proceeds received from the exercise of stock options
totaling $15.4 million during 2004. Net cash used in financing activities during 2005 reflects the
repurchase of shares of our stock in the market totaling $50.0 million and the repurchase of
approximately $60.0 million principal amount of our convertible subordinated notes, at a discount to par.
The treasury stock and note repurchases were partially offset by proceeds received from the exercise of
employee stock options totaling $25.2 million and the minority interest investment received from Zeiss in
the TCZ joint venture of $11.1 million in 2005.

We require substantial working capital to fund our business, particularly to finance inventories,
including purchase orders with our vendors, accounts receivable, and for capital expenditures. Our
future capital requirements depend on many factors, including our manufacturing activity, the timing and
extent of spending to support product development efforts, expansion of sales and marketing and field
service and support, competitive labor market compensation requirements, the timing of introductions of
new products and enhancements to existing products, and the market acceptance of our products. We
believe that cash generated from operations along with the liquidity provided by our existing cash
balances and short-term investments will be sufficient to sustain operations and provide for any
potential future expansion of our business for at least the next 12 months.
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TABULAR DISCLOSURE OF CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

The following summarizes our contractual obligations and other commitments as of December
31, 2005, and the impact such obligations could have on our liquidity and cash flow in future periods (in
thousands):

Amount of Commitment Expiring by Period

Total 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
Operating lease obligations (1) $ 15,693 $ 4,999 $ 3,965 $ 3,380 $ 3,278 $ 71
Convertible subordinated notes 140,722 - - - 140,722 -
Interest on convertible
subordinated notes 17,238 4,925 4,925 4,925 2,463 -
Purchase orders 48,215 48,215 - - - -
Total commitments $ 221,868 $ 58,139 $ 8,890 $ 8305 $ 146,463 $ 71

(1)  We currently sublease all or a portion of our leased facilities, and the payments received under these are direct offsets to
our operating lease obligations. The amounts in the table above represent the gross lease amounts and the following table
summarizes amounts to be received under these non-cancelable sublease agreements (in thousands):

Future Sublease Payments

Total 2006 2007 2008 2009

Total sublease agreements $ 9725 $ 3471 $ 3,604 $ 1,526 $ 1124

At December 31, 2004 and 2005, we did not have any relationship with unconsolidated entities
or financial partnerships, such as entities often referred to as structured finance variable interest, or
special purpose entities, which would have been established for the purpose of facilitating off-balance
sheet arrangements or other contractually narrow or limited purposes. In addition, we did not engage in
trading activities involving non-exchange traded contracts. As a result, we are not exposed to any
financing, liquidity, market or credit risk that could arise if we had engaged in such relationships. We do
not have relationships and transactions with persons and entities that derive benefits from their non-
independent relationship with us or our related parties except as disclosed herein.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On January 2, 2006, we acquired the remaining 19% minority interest in our majority-owned
subsidiary, Cymer Korea. We paid a total of $7.0 million for this 19% interest. This transaction
increased our total interest in Cymer Korea from 81% to 100%.

In the ordinary course of business, we maintain life insurance policies on certain executives as
a means of funding our executive deferred compensation plan. In January 2006, one of our senior
executives for whom we held such a policy passed away. As a result, we received a net $3.2 million in
insurance proceeds in the first quarter of 2006. These net proceeds will be included in other income on
our statement of operations for the quarter ending March 31, 2006.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS
In November 2004, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 151

("SFAS No. 151), “Inventory Costs, an amendment of ARB 43, Chapter 4”. This statement amends
Accounting Research Bulletin No. 43 (“ARB No. 43"), Chapter 4, to clarify accounting for abnormal
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amounts of idle facility expense, freight, handling costs and wasted material. SFAS No. 151 requires
that those items be recognized as current-period charges. SFAS No. 151 is effective for fiscal years
beginning after June 15, 2005. We have adopted SFAS No. 151 on January 1, 2006 and we do not
believe that its adoption will have a significant impact on our consolidated financial statements.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123R, “Share-Based Payment - An Amendment
to Statement Nos. 123 and 95,” that addresses the accounting for share-based payment transactions in
which an enterprise receives employee services in exchange for (a) equity instruments of the enterprise
or (b) liabilities that are based on the fair value of the enterprise’s equity instruments or that may be
settled by the issuance of such equity instruments. This statement will eliminate the ability to account for
share-based compensation transactions using Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 25,
“Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” and will require instead that such transactions be
accounted for using a fair-value-based method. On April 14, 2005, the SEC announced the deferral of
the effective date of SFAS No. 123R. The deferral allows companies to adopt the provisions of SFAS
No. 123R beginning on the first annual period beginning after June 15, 2005. Based on the new
required adoption date, we have adopted SFAS No. 123R as of January 1, 2006.

We have evaluated the impact and implementation of SFAS No0.123R and how this new
pronouncement will effect our consolidated financial statements. We anticipate that the adoption of
SFAS No. 123R will have a significant impact on our consolidated statements of operations, although it
will have no impact on our cash position. Our evaluation included a determination on how future stock
awards will be valued based on an appropriate fair value model upon adoption of SFAS No. 123R as
well as the impact of stock compensation expense associated with unvested stock options outstanding
as of December 31, 2005. In addition, as a result of the amendment to our employee stock purchase
plan, effective May 1, 2005, our employee stock purchase plan is a non-compensatory plan under SFAS
No. 123R, and, therefore, no stock compensation expense will be recorded under the employee stock
purchase plan upon the adoption of SFAS No. 123R. As of December 31, 2005, the unamortized
compensation expense related to outstanding unvested options was approximately $12.7 million. We
expect to amortize this expense over the remaining vesting period of these stock options. In addition,
we will record additional expense for any new awards as they are granted in 2006 and in future years.
We are also required to elect the transition method that we will use as part of the adoption of SFAS
No. 123R. The allowed transition methods include prospective and retroactive adoption alternatives.
The prospective method requires that compensation expense be recorded for all unvested stock options
and awards prospectively beginning with the first quarter adoption of SFAS No. 123R, while the
retroactive method would require us to record compensation expense for all unvested stock options and
awards beginning with the first period restated. We will use the prospective transition method upon our
adoption of SFAS No. 123R effective January 1, 2006.

In May 2005, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 154 (“SFAS
No. 154”), “Accounting Changes and Error Corrections—a replacement of APB Opinion No. 20 and
FASB Statement No. 3". This Statement replaces APB Opinion No. 20, “Accounting Changes”, and
FASB Statement No. 3, “Reporting Accounting Changes in interim Financial Statements”, and changes
the requirements for the accounting for and reporting of a change in accounting principle. This
Statement applies to all voluntary changes in accounting principle. It also applies to changes required by
an accounting pronouncement in the unusual instance that the pronouncement does not include specific
transition provisions. When a pronouncement includes specific transition provisions, those provisions
should be followed. SFAS No. 154 is effective for accounting changes and corrections of errors made in
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2005. We have adopted SFAS No. 154 effective January 1,
2006 and we do not believe that its adoption will have a significant impact on our consolidated financial
statements.

In November 2005, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position FAS 115-1 and FAS 124-1 (“FSP
115-1 and 124-1”), “The Meaning of Other-Than-Temporary Impairment and its Application to Certain
Investments”. FSP 115-1 and 124-1 applies to debt and equity securities accounted for under
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 115, “Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and
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Equity Securities”. The objective of FSP 115-1 and 124-1 is to provide guidance for identifying other-
than-temporarily impaired investments. FSP 115-1 and 124-1 also provides new disclosure
requirements for investments that are deemed to be temporarily impaired. The disclosure requirements
are effective in annual financial statements for fiscal periods beginning after December 15, 2005. We
do not believe that the implementation of FSP FAS 115-1 and FAS 124-1 will have a material impact on
our consolidated financial statements.

In February 2006, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 155
(“SFAS No. 155"), “Accounting for Certain Hybrid Financial Instruments—an amendment of FASB
Statements No. 133 and 140". SFAS No. 155 allows financial instruments that have embedded
derivatives to be accounted for as a whole (eliminating the need to bifurcate the derivative from its host)
if the holder elects to account for the whole instrument on a fair value basis. SFAS No. 155 is effective
for all financial instruments acquired, issued, or subject to a remeasurement event occurring after the
beginning of an entity’s first fiscal year that begins after September 15, 2006. We are still assessing the
impact that the adoption of SFAS No. 155 will have on our consolidated financial statements.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
Foreign Currency Risk

We conduct business in several international currencies through our global operations. Due to
the large volume of our business that we conduct in Japan, the Japanese operation poses the greatest
foreign currency risk. We use financial instruments, principally forward contracts, to manage our foreign
currency exposures. We enter into forward contracts in order to reduce the impact of currency
fluctuations related to purchases of our inventories by Cymer Japan in U.S. dollars for resale under firm
third-party sales commitments denominated in Japanese yen, as well as other foreign currency
exposures including exposures related to intercompany debt. We do not enter into forward contracts for
speculative purposes.

As of December 31, 2005, we had outstanding forward contracts to buy U.S. $46.2 million for
5.2 billion yen under foreign currency exchange facilities with contract rates ranging from 105.8 yen to
118.3 yen per U.S. dollar. These contracts expire on various dates through June 2006.

Our forward contracts generally qualify for hedge accounting treatment per the provisions of
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities”. As a result, we defer changes in the fair value for the effective portion of these
hedges and record the amount in other comprehensive income (loss) and subsequently reclassify the
gain or loss to cost of product sales in the same period that the related sale is made to the third party.
The fair value of all of our forward contracts and the deferred loss (net of tax) for those that qualify for
hedge accounting treatment totaled $1.8 million and $70,000, respectively, as of December 31, 2005.

The fair value of these forward contracts as of December 31, 2005 would have fluctuated by
$4.6 million if the foreign currency exchange rate for the Japanese yen to the U.S. dollar on these
forward contracts had changed by 10%.

Investment and Debt Risk

We maintain an investment portfolio consisting primarily of government and corporate fixed
income securities, certificates of deposit and commercial paper. While it is our general intent to hold
such securities until maturity, we will occasionally sell certain securities for cash flow purposes.
Therefore, our investments are classified as available-for-sale and are carried on the balance sheet at
fair value. Due to the conservative nature of the investment portfolio, a sudden change in interest rates
would not have a material effect on the value of the portfolio.

47




In February 2002, we issued $250.0 million principal amount of unsecured fixed rate 3.50%
Convertible Subordinated Notes due February 15, 2009. Interest on these notes is payable on February
15 and August 15 of each year. The notes are convertible into shares of our common stock at a
conversion rate of 20 shares per $1,000 principal amount subject to adjustment under certain
conditions. We may redeem the notes after February 20, 2005 at certain redemption prices expressed
as a percentage of the principal amount. The notes are subordinated to our existing and future senior
indebtedness and effectively subordinated to all indebtedness and other liabilities of our subsidiaries.
Because the interest rate is fixed, we believe there is no risk of increased interest expense. These
notes are recorded at face value on the consolidated balance sheets. In the third quarter of 2004 and
the second quarter of 2005, we repurchased, at a discount to par, approximately $49.2 million and
$60.0 million principal amount, respectively, of these notes. As of December 31, 2005, $140.7 million
principal amount of the notes were outstanding. The fair value of such debt based on quoted market
prices on December 31, 2005 was $136.5 million.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The information required by this ltem is included in Part IV Items 15(a)(1) and (2) of this Annual
Report on Form 10-K.

ltem 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial
Disclosure :

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

1. Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures. Our chief executive officer and our chief
financial officer, after evaluating the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the
“Exchange Act’)) as of December 31, 2005, have concluded that our disclosure controls and
procedures were not effective as of such date because we identified a material weakness in our
internal control over financial reporting related to our accounting for income taxes, as described
below. Due to this material weakness, in preparing our financial statements at and for the year
ended December 31, 2005, we performed additional analysis and other post-closing procedures
related to our accounting for income taxes to reasonably assure that such financial statements were
stated fairly in all material respects in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles.

2. Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. There were no changes in our internal
control over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange
Act) identified in connection with the evaluation of our internal controls performed during the last
fiscal quarter that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal
control over financial reporting.

3. Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our management is
responsible for establishing and maintaining adeguate internal control over our financial reporting.

We assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2005 using the criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSQO). Based upon this
assessment, we have concluded that, as of December 31, 2005, our internal control over financial
reporting was not effective due to the identification of a material weakness. A material weakness is
a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in more than a remote
likelihood that a material misstatement of the annual or interim financial statements will not be
prevented or detected.
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Management's assessment identified the following material weakness in its internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2005:

We did not maintain effective internal controls over our accounting for income taxes. Specifically,
our policies and procedures over the reconciliation of income tax accounts were not designed with
adequate precision and our policies and procedures over foreign tax provisions did not provide for
adequate review. These deficiencies resulted in errors in our consolidated tax provision. Such errors
were corrected prior to the issuance of our consolidated financial statements at and for the year
ended December 31, 2005. These deficiencies also resulted in a more than remote likelihood that
a material misstatement to our consolidated financial statements would not be prevented or
detected.

Management's assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2005, has been audited by KPMG LLP, an independent registered public accounting
firm. Their report appears on page F-2 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

4. Management's Remediation Efforts. Subsequent to December 31, 2005, we have taken the
following steps to improve our internal controls over our accounting for income taxes:

e Improved the procedures for reviewing our consolidated tax provisions and reconciling all
subsidiary office tax accounts; and

s Increased the level of communication with our subsidiary accountants over the preparation of
our foreign quarterly and annual tax provisions.

We will monitor the effectiveness of these new processes, procedures and controls and will make
any changes management determines appropriate.

5. Inherent Limitations on the Effectiveness of Internal Control. There are inherent limitations in the
effectiveness of any internal control, including the possibility of human error and the circumvention
or overriding of controls. Accordingly, even effective internal controls can provide only reasonable

assurances with respect to financial statement preparation. Further, because of changes in
conditions, the effectiveness of internal controls may vary over time.

Item 9B. Other Information

None.
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PART Il
item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant.

The information regarding the identification and business experience of our directors under the
caption "Proposal 1 - Election of Directors” in our Proxy Statement for the annual meeting of
stockholders to be held on May 18, 2006 to be filed with the SEC within 120 days after the end of our
fiscal year ended December 31, 2005, is incorporated herein by reference. For information regarding
the identification and business experience of our executive officers, see "Executive Officers” at the end
of item 1 in Part | of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Information concerning filing requirements
applicable to our executive officers and directors under the caption "Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership
Reporting Compliance"” in our Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference.

In 2003, we adopted a code of ethics that applies to our principal executive officer, principal
financial officer, principal accounting officer or controller, or persons performing similar functions. We
have posted the text of the code of ethics on our website which can be accessed at
http://www.cymer.com under “Investor Relations.” In addition, we will promptly disclose on our website
(1) the nature of any amendment to the code of ethics that applies to our principal executive officer,
principal financial officer, principal accounting officer or controller, or persons performing similar
functions and (2) the nature of any waiver, including an implicit waiver, from a provision of the code of
ethics that is granted to one of these specified officers, and the name of such person who is granted the
waiver on our website in the future.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information under the caption “Compensation of Executive Officers” in our Proxy Statement
is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related
Stockholder Matters

The information under the captions "Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and
Management” and “Equity Compensation Plan Information” in our Proxy Statement is incorporated
herein by reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The information under the caption "Certain Transactions” in our Proxy Statement is incorporated
herein by reference.

With the exception of the information specifically incorporated by reference from our Proxy
Statement in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, our Proxy Statement shall not be deemed to be filed as
part of this Report. Without limiting the foregoing, the information under the captions “Report of the
Audit Committee of the Board of Directors,” “Report of the Compensation Committee of the Board of
Directors” and "Performance Measurement Comparison” in our Proxy Statement is not incorporated by
reference in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information under the caption "Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm Fees” in our
Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference.
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PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules

(a) The following documents are filed as part of, or incorporated by reference into, this
Annual Report on Form 10-K:

(1)(2) FEinancial Statements and Reports of Financial Statement Schedule. The
following Consoclidated Financial Statements of Cymer, Inc., Financial Statement Schedule and Reports
of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm are included in a separate section of this Annual
Report on Form 10-K beginning on page F-1: ‘

Description Page Number
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm ......................cocoen, F-1
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm............cooccvvvvviiieinnen. F-2
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2004 and 2005 ........ccccovvveven.... F-4
Consclidated Statements of Operations for the Years Ended .

December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005 ..ot iiiiiiiiini e e F-5
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity and Comprehensive Income (Loss)

For the Years Ended December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005 ...... e, F-6
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended

December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005 ... .o e E-7
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements ..., F-9
Financial Statement Schedule:
Schedule Il - Valuation and Qualifying Accounts and Reserves ..............ccocveveneneen. S-1

All other financial statement schedules have been omitted because the required information is
not applicable or not present in amounts sufficient to require submission of the schedule, or because
the information required is included in our consolidated financial statements or the notes thereto.

(3) Exhibits. The exhibits listed under Item 15(c) hereof are filed with, or
incorporated by reference into, this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Each management contract or
compensatory plan or arrangement is identified separately in item 15(c) hereof.

(b) Exhibits. The following exhibits are filed as part of, or incorporated by
reference into, this Annual Report on Form 10-K:

3.1 Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of Cymer, Inc.
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Cymer's Registration
Statement on Form S-1, Reg. No. 333-08383).

3.2 Amendment of Articles of Incorporation of Cymer, Inc. (incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Cymer's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
the quarter ended June 30, 2002).

3.3 Amended and restated Bylaws of Cymer, as amended and restated
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Cymer's Form 8-K filed
on August 23, 2004).

4.1 Purchase Agreement, dated as of February 12, 2002, among Cymer, Credit
Suisse First Boston Corporation and Merrill Lynch Pierce Fenner and Smith
Incorporated (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Cymer’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2002).

4.2 Indenture, dated as of February 15, 2002, between Cymer and State Street
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4.3

10.1#

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6#

10.7#

10.8#

Bank and Trust Company of California, N.A., as Trustee (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to Cymer's Quarterly Report on Form 10-
Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2002).

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of February 15, 2002, among
Cymer, Credit Suisse First Boston Corporation and Merrill Lynch Pierce
Fenner and Smith Incorporated (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
4.3 to Cymer’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
March 31, 2002).

Form of Indemnification Agreement with Directors and Officers
{(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Cymer’'s Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003).

Standard Industrial Lease — Multi-Tenant, dated August 19, 1991, by and
between Lepercq Corporate Income Fund L.P. and Cymer (originally
between Frankris Corporation and Cymer) (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.15 to Cymer’s Registration Statement on Form S-1,
Reg. No. 333-08383).

Single-Tenant industrial Lease, dated December 19, 1996, by and between
Arden Realty Finance lll, LLC (originally AEW/LBA Acquisition Co. Il, LLC)
and Cymer, as amended (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3
to Cymer’'s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2004).

Sublease Agreement, dated December 22, 2004, by and between Northrop
Grumman Systems Corporation and Cymer (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Cymer’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2004).

Contract Manufacturing Agreement - Lithography Laser, dated August 28,
1992, by and between Cymer and Seiko Instruments Inc. (the “Seiko
Agreement”) (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.16 to Cymer’s
Registration Statement on Form S-1, Reg. No. 333-08383).

Addendum No. 2 to the Seiko Agreement, dated February 21, 2000
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to Cymer's Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1999).

Termination of Seiko Contract Manufacturing Agreement - Lithography
Laser, dated March 31, 2003 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
10.5 to Cymer's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2002).

1996 Stock Option Plan, as amended (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 99.1 to Cymer's Registration Statement on Form S-8, Registration
No. 333-69736).

Form of Stock Option Agreement used in connection with the 1996 Stock
Option Plan, as amended (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to
Cymer’s Registration Statement on Form S-8, Registration No. 333-48242).

1996 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, as amended (incorporated herein by

reference to Exhibit 99.2 to Cymer’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
February 23, 2005).
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10.9#

10.10#

10.11#

10.12#

10.13#

10.14

10.15#

10.16#

10.17#

10.18#

10.19#

10.20#

10.21#

1996 Director Option Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.5
to Cymer’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, Reg. No. 333-08383).

2000 Equity Incentive Plan (formerly known as the 2000 Nonstatutory Stock
Option Plan and incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.4 to Cymer’s
Registration Statement on Form S-8, Registration No. 333-69736).

Form of Stock Option Agreement used in connection with the 2000 Equity
Incentive Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.5 to Cymer's
Registration Statement on Form S-8, Registration No. 333-69736).

2005 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.1
to Cymer’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 20, 2005)

Form of Stock Option Agreement used in connection with the 2005 Equity
Incentive Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to Cymer’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 20, 2005).

Form of Stock Unit Grant Notice and Stock Unit Agreement used in
connection with the 2005 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 99.1 to Cymer's Current Report 8-K filed on February
10, 2006).

Employment Agreement, effective as of Aprit 1, 2002, by and between
Robert P. Akins and Cymer (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
10.1 to Cymer’'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
March 31, 2002).

Employment Agreement, effective as of March 1, 2004, by and between
Nancy J. Baker and Cymer (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
10.13 to Cymer’'s Annual Report on 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2003).

Employment Agreement, effective as of June 1, 2003, by and between
Pascal Didier and Cymer (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1
to Cymer’'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30,
2003).

Employment Agreement, effective as of May 1, 2003, by and between
Edward P. Holtaway and Cymer (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
10.4 to Cymer’'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June
30, 2003).

Employment Agreement, effective as of May 1, 2003, by and between Brian
C. Klene and Cymer (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to
Cymer's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30,
2003).

Employment Agreement, effective as of May 1, 2003, by and between Rae
Ann Werner and Cymer {incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to
Cymer's Quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30,
2003).

Employment Agreement, effective as of October 21, 2004, by and between
Bill N. Alexander and Cymer.
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10.22#

10.23#

10.24#

10.25*

10.26

10.27*

10.28

10.29

10.30#

10.31#

10.32*

Summary description of Cymer, Inc. Incentive Bonus Program as amended
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to Cymer’s Current Report
on Form 8-K filed on April 1, 2005).

Summary description of Cymer, Inc. 3-Year Bonus Program (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to Cymer’'s Current Report on Form 8-K
filed April 1, 2005).

Cymer Inc. Deferred Compensation Plan, as amended and restated
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to Cymer’s Current Report
on Form 8-K filed on for the quarter ended September 30, 2005).

Joint Venture Agreement, dated July 15, 2005, among TCZ GmbH,
Cymer, Inc.,, Carl Zeiss SMT AG and Carl Zeiss Laser Optics
Beteiligungsgesellschaft mbH. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
10.1 to Cymer’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 2005).

Amendment No. 1 to Joint Venture Agreement of TCZ GmbH, dated
September 16, 2005, among TCZ GmbH, Cymer, Inc., Carl Zeiss SMT AG
and Carl Zeiss Laser Optics Beteiligungsgesellschaft mbH (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Cymer’'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-
Q filed for the quarter ended September 30, 2005).

Patent License Agreement, dated May 14, 2001, by and among Cymer, Inc.,
Linda B. Jacob, Joseph A. Mangano, and Science Research Laboratory,
Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Cymer's Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2001).

Patent Sublicense Agreement, dated May 14, 2001, by and between
Science Research Laboratory, Inc. and Cymer, Inc. (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Cymer's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended June 30, 2001).

Patent Sublicense Agreement, dated November 7, 2003, by and between
SRL-EUV, LLC and Cymer, Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
10.27 to Cymer's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2003).

Patent Sublicense Agreement, dated November 7, 2003, by and between
Science Research Laboratory, Inc. and Cymer, In¢. (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.28 to Cymer's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2003).

Reduction in Force Benefits Plan, as amended (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Cymer’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended March 31, 2003).

Executive Option and Group Health Coverage Extension Program
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.22 to Cymer's Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001).

Development Agreement dated January 23, 2004, by and between Cymer,
Inc. and Intel Corporation (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1
to Cymer’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31,

2004).
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(d)

10.33*

14.1

211
231
24 1

31.1

31.2

32.1

32.2

intellectual Property License Agreement dated February 4, 2004, by and
between Cymer, Inc. and Intel Corporation (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Cymer’'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended March 31, 2004).

Code of Ethics for Chief Executive, Chief Financial and Chief Accounting
Officers (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 14.1 to Cymer's Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003).

Subsidiaries of Cymer.

Consent of KPMG LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.

Power of Attorney (reference is made to the signature page).

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act.

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act.

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act.

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act.

# Indicates management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.

* Confidential treatment was requested with respect to certain portions of

this exhibit. Omitted portions were filed separately with the SEC.

Financial Statement Schedules. See item 15, paragraph (a) (2), above.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant
has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

CYMER, INC.

By: s/ _ROBERTP. AKINS
Robert P. Akins,
Chief Executive Officer,
and Chairman of the Board

Dated: March 14, 2006

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears
below constitutes and appoints Nancy J. Baker and Rae Ann Werner, and each of them, as his true and
lawful attorneys-in-fact and agents, with full power of substitution and resubstitution, for him and in his
name, place, and stead, in any and all capacities, to sign any and all amendments to this Annual Report
on Form 10-K, and to file the same, with all exhibits thereto, and other documents in connection
therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, granting unto said attorneys-in-fact and agents,
and each of them, full power and authority to do and perform each and every act and thing requisite and
‘necessary to be done in connection therewith, as fully to all intents and purposes as he might or could do
in person, hereby ratifying and confirming that all said attorneys-in-fact and agents, or any of them ar their
or his substitute or substituted, may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed
below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the date indicated.

Chief Executive Officer,

/s/ ROBERT P. AKINS and Chairman of the Board

March 14, 2006

Robert P. Akins (Principal Executive Officer)
Senior Vice President
/sl _NANCY J. BAKER and Chief Financial Officer March 14, 2006
Nancy J. Baker (Principal Financial Officer)

Vice President, Controller
fs/ RAE ANN WERNER and Chief Accounting Officer
Rae Ann Werner (Principal Accounting Officer)

March 14, 2006

/s/ _CHARLES J. ABBE Director March 14, 2006
Charles J. Abbe

/s/_ EDWARD H. BRAUN Director March 14, 2006
Edward H. Braun

/s/ _MICHAEL R. GAULKE Director March 14, 2006
Michael R. Gaulke

s/ WILLIAM G. OLDHAM Director March 14, 2006
William G. Oldham

/s/ _PETER J. SIMONE Director March 14, 2006
Peter J. Simone

/s/ _YOUNG K. SOHN Director March 14, 2006
Young K. Sohn

/st JON D. TOMPKINS Director March 14, 2006
Jon D. Tompkins
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Cymer, inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Cymer, Inc. and subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’
equity and comprehensive income (loss), and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period
ended December 31, 2005. In connection with our audits of the consolidated financial statements, we
also have audited financial statement Schedule ll. These consolidated financiai statements and financial
statement schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Cymer, inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, and
the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended
December 31, 2005, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also, in our
opinion, the related financial statement Schedule |l, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated
financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth
therein.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2005, based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO), and our report dated
March 8, 2006 expressed an unqualified opinion on management’s assessment of, and an adverse
opinion on the effective operation of, internal control over financial reporting.

s/ KPMG LLP

San Diego, California
March 8, 2006
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Cymer, Inc.:

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting (Item 9A.3), that Cymer, inc. and subsidiaries (the Company)
did not maintain effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005, because of
the effect of the material weakness identified in management’s assessment, based on criteria established
in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (COSO). The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective
internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over
financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on management's assessment and an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material
respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting,
evaluating management's assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk
that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

A material weakness is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that results in more
than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the annual or interim financial statements will not
be prevented or detected. The following material weakness has been identified and included in
management’s assessment:

The Company did not maintain effective internal controls over their accounting for income taxes.
Specifically, the Company’s policies and procedures over the reconciliation of income tax accounts
were not designed with adequate precision and their policies and procedures over foreign tax
provisions did not provide for adequate review. These deficiencies resuited in errors in the
Company’s consolidated tax provision. Management has concluded that these deficiencies resulted in
a more than remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the annual or interim financial
statements would not be prevented or detected.
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In our opinion, management’s assessment that the Company did not maintain effective internal control
over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on criteria
established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSOQ). Also, in our opinion, because of the effect of the
material weakness described above on the achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, the
Company has not maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005,
based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the consolidated balance sheets of the Company as of December 31, 2005 and
2004, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity and comprehensive
income (loss), and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2005.
This material weakness was considered in determining the nature, timing, and extent of audit tests
applied in our audit of the 2005 consolidated financial statements, and this report does not affect our
report dated March 8, 2006, which expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial
statements.

/s/ KPMG LLP

San Diego, California
March 8, 2006
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CYMER, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except share data)

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments
Accounts receivable - net
Accounts receivable - related party
Foreign currency forward exchange contracts
Inventories
Deferred income taxes
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Total current assets

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT - NET
LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS
DEFERRED INCOME TAXES
GOODWILL

INTANGIBLE ASSETS - NET

OTHER ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable
Accounts payable - related party
Accrued warranty and installation
Accrued payroll and benefits
Accrued patents, royalties and other fees
Foreign currency forward exchange contracts
Income taxes payable
Unearned income
Other current liabilities

Total current liabilities

CONVERTIBLE SUBORDINATED NOTES
OTHER LIABILITIES

Total liabilities
MINORITY INTEREST
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY:

Preferred stock - authorized 5,000,000 shares; $.001 par value,

no shares issued or outstanding

Commeon stock - $.001 par value per share; 100,000,000 shares authorized;
36,993,000 and 38,036,000 shares outstanding at December 31, 2004

and December 31, 2005, respectively
Additional paid-in capital

Treasury stock at cost (1,943,000 common shares) at December 31, 2005

Unearned compensation
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Retained earnings

Total stockholders' equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

December 31, December 31,
2004 2005

$ 114,246 $ 233,745
175,866 130,204
110,680 89,818

- 588

- 1,776

110,022 89,046
23,337 33,338

5,726 6,497

539,877 585,012
123,548 117,251
84,561 29,395

44,913 34,429

8,358 8,358

10,394 10,474

7,185 6,457

$ 818,836 $ 791,376
$ 13,949 $ 17,710
- 4,975

28,546 30,775

16,284 12,461

6,318 7,180

1,901 -

10,397 7,268

6,152 1,726

3,751 3,247

87,298 85,342
200,753 140,722

7,282 10,582

295,333 236,646

6,183 16,276

37 38

378,414 407,549
- (50,000)

(16) -
(4,455) (9,025)
143,340 189,892
517,320 538,454

$ 818,836 $ 791,376




CYMER, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(In thousands, except per share data)

REVENUES:
Product sales
Product sales - related party
Other
Total revenues

COSTS AND EXPENSES:
Cost of product sales
Research and development
Sales and marketing
General and administrative

Total costs and expenses
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE):
Foreign currency exchange gain (loss) - net
Gain on debt extinguishment
Interest and other income
Interest and other expense

Total other income (expense) - net

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX PROVISION

(BENEFIT) AND MINORITY INTEREST

INCOME TAX PROVISION (BENEFIT)
MINORITY INTEREST
NET INCOME (LOSS)

EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE:
Basic earnings (loss) per share

Weighted average common shares outstanding

Diluted earnings (loss) per share

Weighted average common and dilutive
potential common shares outstanding

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Years ended December 31,

2003 2004 2005
$ 265816  § 417,296  $ 382,238
. - 400
57 783 1,010
265,873 418,079 383,648
187,679 243,473 227,290
56,768 58,612 64,025
16,966 23,369 25,143
39,094 31,630 26,514
300,507 357,084 342,972
(34,634) 60,995 40,676
436 82 (1,115)
. 911 2,220
8,928 8,079 10,943
(10,503) (9,493) (6,936)
(1,139) (421) 5,112
(35,773) 60,574 45,788
(21,464) 15,144 262
(1,091) (2,276) 1,026
$ (15400) $ 43,154  § 46,552
$ (044 $ 117 % 129
35,065 36,758 36,017
$ (044 $ 115 0§ 127
35,065 37,584 36,544
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CYMER, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In thousands)

OPERATING ACTVITIES:
Net income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash
provided by (used in) operating activities:
Gain on debt extinguishment
Depreciation and amortization
Non-cash stock-based compensation
Amortization of unearned compensation
Minority interest
Provision for deferred income taxes
Loss on disposal and impairment of property and equipment
Change in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable - net
Accounts receivable - related party
Foreign currency forw ard exchange contracts
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Accounts payable
Accounts payable - related party
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Unearned income
Income taxes payable

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Acquisition of property and equipment
Purchases of investments
Proceeds from sold or matured investments
Acquisition of patents
Acquisition of minority interest

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities

FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Net borrow ings under revolving loan and security agreements
Proceeds fromissuance of common stock
Redemption of convertible subordinated notes
Cash investment received from minority shareholder
Payments on capital lease obligations
Repurchase of common stock into treasury

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities

EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASHAND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

CASHAND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE YEAR

F-7

Years ended December 31,

2003 2004 2005
(15,400) $ 43,154 $ 46,552
- (911) (2,220)
30,938 28,364 28,280
1,359 345 1,019
737 130 16
1,091 2,276 (1,026)
(23,669) 13,035 (1,680)
18,106 131 55
(10,478) (47,861) 20,862
- - (588)
1,749 (679) (3,002)
7,107 (17,010 20,976
59 (884) (1,936)
(7,400) (5,150) 3,761
. - 4,975
(8,036) 16,270 2,634
- 5,399 (4,426)
242 (2,439) (230)
(3,595) 34,170 114,022
(62,783) (19,485) (18,750)
(471,968) (641,674) (290,728)
514,091 669,421 390,580
- (5,990) (2,500)
(180) (2,000) -
(20,840) 272 78,602
(6,667) - .
48,157 15,446 25,218
- (47,407) (57,336)
- - 11,120
(50) (48) (20)
- - (50,000)
41,440 (32,009) (71,018)
1,354 1,181 (2,107)
18,359 3,614 119,499
92,273 110,632 114,246
110,632 $ 114,246 $ 233,745




CYMER, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS, CONTINUED
(In thousands)

Years ended December 31,

2003 2004 2005

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:

interest paid $ 9,004 $ 8,033 $ 6,914

Income taxes paid, net 3 1,325 $ 3,515 $ 2,613
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NON-CASH INVESTING

AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Reversal of unearned compensation related to cancelled stock options

previously issued for the ACX acquisition $ 1,475 3 - $ -

Intangible assets included in accrued liabilities $ 5,990 $ - -
Reversal of deferred tax asset valuation allowance against goodwill 2,950 3 - -

PPy
3

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CYMER, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Operations — Cymer, Inc. and its wholly owned and majority-owned subsidiaries, are
engaged primarily in the development, manufacturing and marketing of excimer light sources for
sale to manufacturers of photolithography tools in the semiconductor equipment industry. We sell
our product to customers primarily in Japan, Asia, Europe and the U.S. In addition, we formed a
joint venture with Carl Zeiss SMT AG and Carl Zeiss Laser Optics Beteiligungsgeselischaft mbH
called TCZ (for Team Cymer Zeiss) in July 2005. TCZ is developing a process tool for the flat panel
display manufacturing industry.

Principles of Consolidation - The accompanying consolidated financial statements include our
accounts and the accounts of our wholly owned subsidiaries — Cymer Japan, Inc. (“Cymer Japan”),
Cymer Singapore Pte Ltd. (“Cymer Singapore”), Cymer B.V. in the Netherlands (“Cymer B.V.”),
Cymer Southeast Asia, Ltd, in Taiwan (“Cymer SEA”), Cymer Semiconductor Equipment Shanghai
Co., Ltd, in the People’s Republic of China (“Cymer PRC"), and our majority-owned subsidiaries,
Cymer Korea, Inc. (“Cymer Korea”) and TCZ GmbH, a Swiss limited liability company. We own
81% of Cymer Korea and 60% of TCZ. See Note 18 for additional information on Cymer Korea.
Cymer Japan is currently our only subsidiary office that sells excimer light source systems. Cymer
Japan also provides field service to customers in the Japan region. Cymer Singapore, Cymer B.V.,
Cymer SEA, and Cymer PRC are field service offices for customers in those respective regions.
Cymer Korea provides refurbishment manufacturing, field service, and administrative activities for
that region and the Asia-Pacific region. TCZ is currently developing, and will integrate, market and
sell, and support tools employing an excimer laser beam to induce crystallization of low-temperature
poly-silicon (“‘LTPS") processing for the manufacture of flat panel displays. All significant
intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Accounting Estimates — The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires us to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual resuits may differ from those estimates.

Cash Equivalents — Cash equivalents consist of money market instruments, commercial paper and
other highly liquid investments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less. As of
December 31, 2004 and 2005 we had $75.4 million and $143.0 million of cash equivalents,
respectively.

Investments ~ We maintain an investment portfolio consisting primarily of government and
corporate fixed income securities, auction rate securities and commercial paper. While it is our
general intent to hold such securities until maturity, we will occasionally sell certain securities for
cash flow purposes. Therefore, our investments are classified as available-for-sale and are carried
on the balance sheet at fair value. In September 2004 we sold approximately $20.3 million of
corporate debt securities that resulted in a $281,000 gain on the sale. The cost of securities sold
was determined by a specific identification method.

Inventories — Inventories are carried at the lower of cost, which approximates the first-in, first-out
method, or market. Cost includes material, labor and manufacturing overhead costs. Our
inventories include reusable parts that we receive from our customers as part of consumed
assemblies. We refurbish these returned core assemblies, which consist primarily of metal
components, and reuse them in future core assemblies. Refurbishment costs are capitalized as
incurred. We review the components of our inventory on a regular basis for excess or obsolete
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CYMER, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

inventory and make appropriate allowances and dispositions in the period that such inventory is
identified.

Parts Refurbishment — As part of our regular business activities, we conduct parts refurbishment
activities related to some of our core assemblies, in particular our chamber assemblies, that wear
out with use. The volume of this activity significantly increased in 2004. These activities involve
arrangements with our customers where we sell a new part to the customer at a reduced sales price
in exchange for the return of the consumed assembly from the customer. These returned core
assemblies contain a certain amount of material, primarily metal components, that may be reused
by us in future core assemblies. Upon receipt of these consumed assemblies from our customers,
we record an entry to recognize the estimated fair value of the reusable components as inventory
and revenue or a reduction in cost of product sales sold depending on the reason for the part
replacement. The value of the reusable parts contained within the consumed assembly is
determined based upon historical data of the value of the reusable parts that we typically yield from
a consumed assembly. The costs of refurbishment are also capitalized as part of ending inventory
as incurred. As part of our normal excess and obsolete inventory analysis, these consumed
assemblies are also reviewed on a quarterly basis and an inventory allowance is recorded as
appropriate for these parts. The value that we assign to these core assemblies can be affected by
the current demand for the reusable parts in our manufacturing operations and the actual yield rate
achieved for parts within these consumed core assemblies.

Prior to the fourth quarter of 2004, we recorded the value of this material as a reduction of our cost
of product sales in the period that the returned assembly was disassembled by our manufacturing
operations and the value of the reusable parts could be determined. Upon further review of U.S.
generaily accepted accounting principles in the fourth quarter of 2004, we determined that we
should instead estimate the value and record these consumed assemblies as inventory at the time
that we receive the returned assembly from our customer and concurrently record this amount as
revenue rather than as a reduction of cost of product sales. During the fourth quarter of 2004, we
corrected our accounting treatment for these refurbishment activities and recorded the financial
impact for all of 2004 and prior years in our fourth quarter of 2004 financial statements. As a result
of this analysis, we determined that although there was a financial impact due to this accounting
correction, the amounts were not material to years prior to 2004 or to the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2004. This adjustment resuited in a $2.9 million increase in the inventory balance as
of December 31, 2004, a $28.5 million increase in 2004 product revenue, a $25.6 million increase in
2004 cost of product sales and a $2.0 million increase in 2004 net income.

Property and Equipment — Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation. Additions and improvements are capitalized and maintenance and repairs are
expensed as incurred. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated
useful lives of the assets (generally one to five years). The buildings that we own are depreciated
over a useful life of twenty years. Leasehold improvements and equipment held under capital leases
are amortized using the straight-line method over the shorter of the life of the asset or the remaining
lease term. Equipment acquired under capital leases is stated at the present value of the future
minimum lease payments. Amortization of equipment obtained under capital leases is included in
depreciation expense in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. Light source systems
built for internal use are capitalized and depreciated using the straight-line method over three years.

Goodwill/intangible Assets — We account for our goodwill and other intangible assets in
accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142 (“SFAS No. 142”), “Goodwill
and Other Intangible Assets”. SFAS No. 142 includes provisions that discontinued the amortization
of goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives associated with purchase business
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CYMER, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

combinations. Under SFAS No. 142, our goodwill is subject to an annual impairment test. We
conduct this test in the fourth quarter of each fiscal year, or whenever events or circumstances
occur indicating potential impairment.

Intangible assets consist primarily of acquired patents. Intangible assets with finite lives are
recorded at cost and are amortized using the straight-line method over their expected useful lives.
The expected useful life can vary depending upon the nature of the technology, but currently, it
ranges from four to fifteen years. We review the carrying value and remaining usefu! life of
intangibles for impairment whenever events or circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. The amount of impairment, if any, is measured based on the projected
discounted future operating cash flows using a discount rate reflecting our average cost of funds.
The assessment of the recoverability of intangible assets will be impacted if estimated future
operating cash flows are not achieved.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed Of — Long-lived
assets and certain identifiable intangibles are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable.
Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of
the assets to future net cash flows (undiscounted and without interest) expected to be generated by
the asset. If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized is
measured by the amount by which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the fair value of the
assets. Assets to be disposed of are reported at the lower of the carrying amount or fair value iess
costs to sell.

Asset Retirement Obligation — We currently account for our asset retirement obligations in
accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 143 (“SFAS No. 1437),
“Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations.” SFAS No. 143 establishes accounting requirements
for retirement obligations associated with tangible long-lived assets, including (1) the timing of the
liability recognition (2) the initial measurement of the liability (3) the allocation of the asset retirement
cost to expense (4)the subsequent measurement of the liability and (5)financial statement
disclosures. SFAS No. 143 requires that the cost for the asset retirement obligation be capitalized
as part of the cost of the related long-lived asset and subsequently allocated to expense using a
systematic and rational method.

We currently have a lease agreement for our facility in Japan which includes an obligation for us to
restore the facility to its original condition when we vacate it. We have estimated the fair value of
this asset retirement obligation to be approximately $665,000 and have recorded it in accrued
patents, royalties and other fees on the accompanying consolidated balance sheet. The total
accretion expense that we recorded related to this obligation for the year ended December 31, 2005
was $200,000.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments — We used the following methods and assumptions to
estimate the fair value of each class of financial instruments for which it is suitable to estimate that
value:

Cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts receivable — related party, accounts
payable, accounts payable — related party, accrued warranty and installation, accrued payroll and
benefits, accrued patents, royalties and other fees, income tax payable, unearned income, and
other current liabilities — the carrying amount reported in the consolidated balance sheets for
these balances approximates fair value due to the short maturities of these insiruments.
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CYMER, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Investments — Investments are recorded at fair value, which is based on quoted market prices for
such securities.

Forward Contracts — The fair value of forward contracts are recorded at fair value which is based
on the quoted exchange rates for such instruments (see “Derivative Instruments” below).

Convertible Subordinated Notes — Convertible Subordinated Notes are recorded at their face
value of $200.8 million and $140.7 million at December 31, 2004 and 2005, respectively. The fair
value of such debt, based on quoted market prices at December 31, 2004 and 2005, was $199.7
million and $136.5 million, respectively.

Lease Loss Accrual — In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 146
(“SFAS No. 146"), “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities”, our costs
associated with exit or disposal activities are recognized when they are incurred or when we cease
using a property. To date, our exit or disposal activities have consisted of lease obligations net of
expected sublease income for our San Diego, California and Charlestown, Massachusetts facilities
which were vacated by us prior to the end of their leases. The total liability is included within Other
Current Liabilities on the accompanying consolidated balance sheet.

The following table summarizes information related to our accrued lease loss liability for the years
ended December 31, 2004 and 2005 (in thousands):

2004 2005
Balance, January 1 $ - $ 2,230
Lease loss accruals 2,958 384
Rent payments (728) (1,980)
Balance, December 31 $ 2230 $ 634

Guarantees/Warranties — In the ordinary course of business, we are not subject to potential
obligations under guarantees that fall within the scope of Financial Accounting Standards Board
Interpretation No. 45 (“FIN 45"), “Guarantor's Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for
Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others”, except for standard warranty
provisions associated with product sales and indemnification provisions related to intellectual
property that are contained within many of our customer agreements. All of these provisions give
rise only to the disclosure requirements prescribed by FIN 45,

(a) Product Warranties — Warranty provisions contained within our customer agreements are
generally consistent with those prevalent in the semiconductor equipment industry. The
warranty period and terms for light source systems and spares and consumable parts varies
by light source system model. We record a provision for warranty for all products, which s
included in cost of product sales in the consolidated statements of operations and is recorded
at the time that the related revenue is recognized. We review our warranty provision monthly,
which is determined using a statistical financial model which calculates actual historical
expenses, product failure rates, and potential risks associated with our different product
models. We then use this financial model to calculate the future probable expenses related to
warranty and the required level of the warranty provision. Throughout the year we review the
risk levels, historical cost information and failure rates used within this model and update them
as information changes over the product's life cycle. If actual warranty expenditures differ
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CYMER, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

substantially from our estimates, revisions to the warranty provision would be required. Actual
warranty expenditures are recorded against the warranty provision as they are incurred.

The following table summarizes information related to our warranty provision for the years ended
December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005 (in thousands):

2003 2004 2005
Balance, January 1 $ 29,600 $ 26,200 $ 28,200
Liabilities accrued for warranties issued during
the year, net of adjustments and expirations 15,505 23,595 26,331
Warranty expenditures incurred during the year (18,905) (21,595) (24,340)
Balance, December 31 $ 26,200 $ 28,200 $ 30,191

(b) intellectual Property Indemnifications — We include intellectual property indemnification
clauses within our general terms and conditions with our customers and the general purchase
agreements with our three major customers, ASM Lithography, Canon, and Nikon. in general,
these indemnification provisions provide that we will defend our customers against any
infringement claims that arise refated to our products. Under the indemnification clauses, we
will pay all costs and damages, including attorney’s fees, associated with such settlements or
defenses, provided that the customer follows specific procedures for notifying us of such
claims and ailows us to manage the settiement proceedings. Due to the nature of these
indemnification provisions, they are indefinite and extend beyond the term of the actual
customer agreements.

An indemnification provision was also inciuded in the contract manufacturing agreement with
Seiko Instruments, Inc. (“Seiko”), which was terminated effective March 31, 2003. As with our
indemnification provisions on intellectual property, we continue to honor this indemnification
clause within the agreement even after its termination. Seiko and at least one Japanese
customer have been notified that our light source systems in Japan may infringe certain
Japanese patents. We believe, based upon the advice of counsel, that our products do not
infringe any valid claim of the asserted patents or that we are entitled to prior use claims in
Japan. Due to the nature of these indemnification provisions, they are indefinite and extend
beyond the term of the actual customer agreements.

As part of the research and development agreement signed with Intel Corporation (“Intel”) in
2004, we also agreed to provide Intel with indemnity against any infringement of the
intellectual property rights of any third party arising from Intel's purchase and/or use of our
EUV source systems. Details of such indemnity will be negotiated as part of a purchase
agreement related to potentiai future products.

As part of the supply agreement signed with TCZ in September 2005, we agreed to indemnify
TCZ against any infringement of the inteliectual property rights of a third party arising from
TCZ's purchase of our products. We will defend such actions at our own expense and will pay
the cost and damage awarded in any such action provided that TCZ grants us sole control of
the defense and settlement of such action and also provides us with information required for
the defense and settlement of such action. Due to the nature of these indemnification
provisions, they are indefinite and extend beyond the term of the actual customer agreements.
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CYMER, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Comprehensive Income (Loss) — Comprehensive income (loss) includes net income (loss),
unrealized gains and losses on forward contracts, foreign currency translation adjustments, and
unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale securities, which we record as short-term and
long-term investments in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

Revenue Recognition — We recognize revenue in accordance with Staff Accounting Bulletin No.
104 (“SAB 104"), “Revenue Recognition”. We recognize revenue when persuasive evidence of an
arrangement exists, delivery has occurred or services have been rendered, our price is fixed or
determinable, and collectibility is reasonably assured. Our revenues consist of product sales, which
include sales of light source systems, consumable and spare parts, upgrades, service, service
contracts and training. Our revenues also consist of certain funded development activities
performed for our customers and under government contracts and license agreements.

Our light source system sales generally include training and installation services. We determined
these elements qualify as one unit of accounting under EITF No. 00-21, “Revenue Arrangements
with Multiple Deliverables” as we do not have evidence of fair value for the undelivered training and
instailation elements. Furthermore, we determined that the undelivered training and installation
elements are perfunctory performance obligations and are not essential to the functionality of our
light source systems. Therefore, in accordance with the provisions of SAB 104, we recognize
revenue when the revenue recognition criteria are met for the light source system, and accrue the
costs of providing the training and installation services. We recognize light source system revenue
at one of following three points, depending on the terms of our arrangement with our customer — 1)
shipment of the light source, 2} delivery of the light source or 3) receipt of an acceptance certificate.
For the majority of our light source sales, the shipping terms are F.O.B. shipping point and revenue
is recognized upon shipment. For our arrangements which include F.O.B. destination shipping
terms, revenue is recognized upon delivery of the light source system to our customer. Lastly, one
of our arrangements includes an acceptance provision, which is satisfied by the issuance of an
acceptance certificate by the customer. For these transactions, we recognize revenue upon receipt
of the acceptance certificate. In addition, we test our light source systems in environments similar to
those used by our customers prior to shipment to ensure that they meet published specifications.

Revenue from consumables and spare parts sales is recognized at the point that legal title passes
to the customer, which is upon shipment from our facility. For a significant portion of our spare parts
sales, our customers return the consumed assembly to us as part of the sale of a new part. We
reuse some of the material within these core assemblies, mainly metal components, for the future
build of core assemblies. As a result, our revenue consists of both cash and the value of the
reusable parts received from our customers as consideration for these spare part sales. Revenue
associated with our customers’ return of core assemblies is recognized upon receipt of the returned
core assembly. The amount of revenue is determined based upon the fair value of the reusable
parts that we expect to yield from the returned core assembly based on historical experience.

Service and training revenue is recognized as the services are rendered.

For funded development contracts, which are included in other revenue, funds received are
accounted for on the percentage-of-completion method based on the relationship of costs incurred
to total estimated costs. Revenues generated from these types of funded development contracts are
derived from cost sharing contracts between certain customers and us. If milestones on these
funded development contracts require that specific results be achieved or reported by us, revenue is
not recognized until that milestone is completed. For some of the funded development contracts
that we enter into with customers and government agencies, we evaluate certain criteria to
determine whether recording the funds received as revenue is appropriate. If certain conditions are
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CYMER, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

met, these funds are not recorded as revenue but rather are offset against our own internal research
and development expenses in the period that the milestone is achieved.

Research and Development — We expense research and development costs, which include costs
associated with funded development contracts, in the period incurred. Funded development
contracts are generally cost sharing contracts between us and a customer where each party pays
near equivalent portions of the total development costs. As a result, costs for the funded
development contracts approximate the revenue we record for these contracts in other revenue in
the accompanying statements of operations. The services performed under the funded development
contracts are provided on a best efforts basis. Our research and development expenses also
include offsets for amounts we receive from certain of our externally funded research and
development contracts.

Income Taxes — Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences
between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their
respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates that
are expected to apply in the periods in which the deferred tax asset or liability is expected to be
realized or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is
recognized in income in the pericd that includes the enactment date.

Stock-Based Compensation — We apply the intrinsic value-based method of accounting
prescribed by Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees”, and related interpretations including Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”)
interpretation No. 44, “Accounting for Certain Transactions involving Stock Compensation, an
interpretation of APB Opinion No. 25" to account for our stock option plans. Under this method,
employee-based stock compensation expense is measured on the date of grant only if the then
current market price of the underlying stock exceeds the exercise price. Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 123 (“SFAS No. 123") “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation”,
established accounting and disclosure requirements using a fair value-based method of accounting
for stock-based employee compensation plans. As allowed by SFAS No. 123, we have elected to
continue to apply the intrinsic value-based method of accounting described above, and have
adopted the disclosure requirements of SFAS No. 123, as amended by Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation—Transition and
Disclosure”. For the pro-forma disclosure, employee-based stock compensation expense is
recorded on a straight-line basis over the applicable vesting period.

All options granted under the plans had an exercise price equal to the market value of the
underlying common stock on the date of grant.

We account for options granted to non-employees under SFAS No. 123 and Emerging Issues Task
Force Issue No. 96-18, “Accounting for Equity Instruments that are Issued to other than Employees
for Acquiring or in Conjunction with Seliing Goods or Services”. We measure the fair value of such
options using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model at each financial reporting date. We account
for changes in fair values between reporting dates in accordance with FASB Interpretation No. 28.
Stock-based compensation expense for options granted to non-employees and for those employees
who changed status during the years ended December 31, 2003, 2004, and 2005 was $1.3 million,
$326,000 and $1.0 million, respectively.

Under SFAS No. 123, the weighted average per share fair value of the options granted for the years
ended December 31, 2003, 2004, and 2005 was $19.20, $21.76, and $17.39, respectively, on the
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date of grant. Fair value under SFAS No. 123 is determined using the Black-Scholes option-pricing
model with the weighted average assumptions noted below. In the fourth quarter of 2005, we
refined the computation of the expected volatility assumption used in our option-pricing model. We
determined that the volatility calculated using a blend of publicly fraded options or implied volatility
and our historical volatility was more reflective of expected volatility than using only historical
volatility. We used this updated expected volatility, which was lower than the expected volatility
used in previous quarters in 2005, for stock options granted in the fourth quarter of 2005. Because
we had a low volume of stock option grants in the fourth quarter of 2005 compared to the options
granted in the first nine months of 2005, the weighted average expected volatility for 2005 was only
slightly lower than the volatility in the first three quarters of 2005. For the risk free interest rate, we
use the then currently available rate on zero coupon U.S. Government issues with a remaining life
of five years for valuing options and one year for valuing employee stock purchase plan (“ESPP”)

shares.
Years ended December 31,

2003. 2004 2005

Dividend yield None None None
Volatility rate:

Options 79% 75% 74%

ESPP 79% 75% 75%
Risk free interest rate:

Options 3.16% 3.40% 3.97%

ESPP 1.26% 2.30% 3.33%
Expected life:

Options 4.26 years 4,36 years 4.19 years

ESPP 5 years .5 years .5 years
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The following table compares earnings (loss) per share that we reported to the pro forma amounts
that we would have reported had we recognized compensation expense for our stock-based
compensation plans in accordance with SFAS No. 123 (in thousands, except per share amounts):

Years ended December 31,
2003 2004 2005

Net income (loss), as reported $  (15400) $ 43,154 $ 46,552
Add: Stock-based employee compensation

expense included in reported net

income (loss), net of related tax effects 544 259 1,013
Deduct: Total stock-based employee :

compensation expense determined

under the fair value based method for

all awards, net of related tax effects (10,933) (17,112) (22,911)
Pro forma net income (loss) $ (25,789) § 26,301 $ 24,654
Earnings (loss) per share:

Basic — as reported $ (0.44) % 1.17 $ 1.29

Basic — pro forma $ (0.74) $ 072 0.68

Diluted — as reported $ (044) § 1.15 $ 1.27

Diluted — pro forma 3 (0.74) $ 070 % 0.67

As of December 31, 2005, the unamortized compensation expense related to outstanding unvested
options was approximately $12.7 million with a weighted average remaining vesting period of 1.2
years. We expect to amortize this expense over the remaining vesting period of these stock options.
In addition, we will record additional expense for any new awards that are granted in 2006 and in
future years.

In February 2005, our board of directors approved the acceleration of the vesting of stock options
that had exercise prices of $30.50 per share or higher held by employees. This acceleration of stock
options excluded directors, executive officers and certain vice presidents. The purpose of this
acceleration of vesting was to enable us to eliminate the recognition in our statement of operations
of the compensation expense associated with these “out of the money” stock options in future
periods, upon our adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123R (“SFAS No.
123R"), “Share-Based Payment — An Amendment to Statement Nos. 123 and 95,” on January 1,
2006. The acceleration of vesting of these stock options in the year ended December 31, 2005
contributed approximately $10.4 million of pro forma stock-based compensation expense during the
year ended December 31, 2005.

Foreign Currency Translation — The financial statements of our foreign subsidiaries where the
functional currency has been determined to be the local currency are translated into U.S. dollars
using current rates of exchange for assets and liabilities and rates of exchange that approximate the
rates in effect at the transaction date for revenues, expenses, gains and losses. Gains and losses
resulting from foreign currency translation are accumulated as a separate component of
consolidated stockholders’ equity as accumulated other comprehensive income (loss). Gains and
losses resulting from foreign currency transactions are included in the consolidated statements of
operations. The net gains from foreign currency transactions totaled $436,000 and $82,000 for the
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years ended December 31, 2003 and 2004, respectively. Net losses from foreign currency
transactions totaled $1.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2005. Such amounts are
recorded in other income (expense) in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

Derivative Instruments — We conduct business in several international currencies through our
global operations. We maintain a foreign exchange risk management policy with the goals of
protecting product margins and minimizing the volatility of reported earnings due to foreign currency
exposure. In accordance with our policy, we use financial instruments, principally foreign currency
forward exchange contracts (“forward contracts”), to manage our foreign currency exposures. We
enter into forward contracts in order to reduce the impact of currency fluctuations related to
purchases of our inventories by Cymer Japan in U.S. dollars for resale under firm third-party sales
commitments denominated in Japanese yen, as well as other foreign currency exposures including
exposures related to intercompany debt. We do not enter into forward contracts for speculative
purposes.

Our forward contracts generally qualify for hedge accounting treatment as "cash flow hedges" per
the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133 ("SFAS No. 1337),
“Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities”. Pursuant to SFAS No. 133,
designated hedging instruments and hedged items or transactions qualify for cash flow hedge
accounting treatment if certain criteria are met. For example, at the inception of the hedge, we must
have formal documentation of the hedging relationship and our risk management objective and
strategy for undertaking the hedge, including identification of the hedging instrument, the hedged
transaction, the nature of the risk being hedged, and how the hedging instrument's effectiveness will
be assessed. Furthermore, the hedging relationship must be highly effective in achieving offsetting
cash flows attributable to the hedged risk during the term of the hedge.

In accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 133, we defer changes in the fair value for the
effective portion of these hedges and record the amount in other comprehensive income (loss), and
subsequently reclassify the gain or loss to cost of product sales in the same period that the related
sale is made to the third party. For forward contracts entered into after May 1, 2004, interest
charges or "forward points" on our forward contracts are excluded from the assessment of hedge
effectiveness, and are recorded currently in foreign currency exchange gain (loss) in the
consolidated statements of operations. n the event that an anticipated, hedged transaction is no
jonger likely to occur within a certain time period, the derivative gain or loss reported in accumulated
other comprehensive income is immediately reclassified into foreign currency exchange gain (loss).

The fair value of all forward contracts and the associated deferred loss in other comprehensive
income (loss) totaled $1.8 million and $70,000, respectively, as of December 31, 2005. It is
expected that 100% of the deferred loss will be reclassified into earnings within the next 12 months.
The excluded component of our forward contracts amounted to a gain of $181,000 and $809,000 for
the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2005, respectively. In the third quarter of 2004, we
recorded a loss of $1.1 million as a result of the discontinuance of certain cash flow hedges. This
loss is included in foreign currency exchange gain (loss) on our consolidated statements of
operations.

As of December 31, 2005, we had outstanding forward contracts to buy U.S. $46.2 million for 5.2
billion yen under foreign currency exchange facilities with contract rates ranging from 105.8 yen to
118.3 yen per U.S. dollar. These contracts expire on various dates through June 2006. We
recognized a net loss through cost of product sales from the forward contracts of $2,484,000 and
$2,317,000 for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2004, respectively, and a net gain through
cost of product sales of $1,375,000 for the year ended December 31, 2005.
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Concentration of Credit Risk - Financial instruments, which potentially subject us to
concentrations of credit risk, consist principally of cash and accounts receivable.

Cash and cash equivalents — We invest our excess cash in an effort to preserve capital, provide
liquidity, maintain diversification and generate returns relative to our corporate investment policy
and prevailing market conditions. We have not experienced any material losses in our cash and
investment accounts. The cash balances that we hold in financial institutions are in excess of
federally insured limits. We perform periodic evaluations of the relative credit standing of financial
institutions and limit the amount of risk by selecting financial institutions with a strong relative
credit standing. At December 31, 2004 and 2005, we had $113.8 million and $233.3 million
respectively, in deposits with major financial institutions that exceeded the federally insured limit
of $100,000.

Accounts receivable — We maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts for estimated losses due
to the inability of our customers to make required payments, which results in bad debt expense.
Our management periodically determines the adequacy of this allowance by continually
evaluating individual customer receivables considering our customer’s financial condition, security
deposits, and current economic conditions. We have minimal credit losses io date.

Concentration of Supplier Risk — We obtain a limited number of components and subassemblies
included in our products from a single supplier or a small group of suppliers. We currently utilize a
single supplier for certain optical, control systems and pulse power components and subassemblies
used in our light source systems. Where possible, we work with secondary suppliers to qualify
additional supply sources. We carry significant strategic inventories of these components to reduce
the risk associated with this single supplier. Strategic inventories are managed as a percentage of
future demand. We have also negotiated to have vendor-managed inventory of critical components
to further reduce the risk of a single supplier. To date we have been able to obtain adequate
supplies of the components and subassemblies used in the production of our light source systems
in a timely manner from existing sources.

Major Customers — Revenues from our major customers are detailed as follows:

Years ended December 31,
2003 2004 2005
(in thousands}

Customer

ASM Lithography $ 63,793 $ 140,828 $ 121,156
Canon 64,459 45,597 29,957
Nikon 55,107 90,972 93,203

Accounts receivable balances for these same major customers are detailed as follows:

December 31,
2004 2005
(in thousands)

Customer

ASM Lithography $ 48,946 $ 31,846
Canon 4,812 4,079
Nikon 33,173 22,303
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Revenues from Japanese customers, generated primarily by Cymer Japan, amounted to 44%, 32%
and 31% of total revenue for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2004, and 2005, respectively.
Revenues from ASM Lithography in the Netherlands accounted for 24%, 34% and 32% of revenues
for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2004, and 2005, respectively.

The loss of business of any of these major customers would have a material adverse effect on our
operating results, financial condition, and cash flows.

Earnings Per Share — Basic earnings per share ("EPS”) excludes dilution and is computed by
dividing net income or loss attributable to common stockholders by the weighted-average of
common shares outstanding for the period. Diluted EPS reflects the potential dilution that could
occur if securities or other contracts to issue common stock (convertible subordinated notes,
warrants to purchase common stock and common stock options using the treasury stock method)
were exercised or converted into common stock. Potential dilutive securities are excluded from the
diluted EPS computation in loss periods as their effect would be anti-dilutive.

The following table sets forth the computation of diluted weighted average common and potential
common shares outstanding for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2004, and 2005 (in
thousands):

Years ended December 31,
2003 2004 2005
(in thousands)

Basic weighted average common shares
outstanding 35,065 36,758 36,017

Effect of dilutive securities:
Warrants - 14 -
Options - 812 527

Diluted weighted average common and
potential common shares outstanding 35,085 37,584 36,544

For the years ended December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005, weighted average options and warrants
to purchase 3,943,000, 3,326,000 and 4,500,000 shares of common stock, respectively, were
outstanding but not included in the computation of diluted earnings per share as their effect was
anti-dilutive. [n addition, for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005, weighted
average common shares attributable to convertible subordinated notes of 5,000,000, 4,645,000 and
3,820,000, respectively, were not included in the computation of diluted earnings per share as their
effect was also anti-dilutive.

Accounting Pronouncements Adopted
In March 2005, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 47 (“FIN 47”), “Accounting for Conditional
Asset Retirement Obligations, an Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 143”. FIN 47 clarifies that

an entity must record a liability for a “conditional” asset retirement obligation if the fair value of the
obligation can be reasonably estimated. FIN 47 is effective no later than the end of fiscal years
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ending after December 15, 2005. The adoption of FIN 47 has not had a material impact on our
consolidated financial statements.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123R, “Share-Based Payment - An Amendment to
Statement Nos. 123 and 95,” that addresses the accounting for share-based payment transactions
in which an enterprise receives employee services in exchange for (a) equity instruments of the
enterprise or (b) liabilities that are based on the fair value of the enterprise’s equity instruments or
that may be settled by the issuance of such equity instruments. This statement will eliminate the
ability to account for share-based compensation transactions using Accounting Principles Board
(“APB") Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” and will require instead that
such transactions be accounted for using a fair-value-based method. On April 14, 2005, the SEC
announced the deferral of the effective date of SFAS No. 123R. The deferral allows companies to
adopt the provisions of SFAS No. 123R beginning on the first annual period beginning after
June 15, 2005. Based on the new required adoption date, we will adopt SFAS No. 123R as of
January 1, 2006.

We have evaluated the impact and implementation of SFAS No0.123R and how this new
pronouncement will effect our consolidated financial statements. We anticipate that the adoption of
SFAS No. 123R will have a significant impact on our consolidated staiements of operations,
although it will have no impact on our cash position. Our evaluation included a determination on
how future stock awards will be valued based on an appropriate fair value model upon adoption of
SFAS No. 123R as well as the impact of stock compensation expense associated with unvested
stock options outstanding as of December 31, 2005. In addition, as a result of the amendment to
our employee stock purchase plan, effective May 1, 2005, our employee stock purchase plan is a
non-compensatory plan under SFAS No. 123R, and, therefore, no stock compensation expense will
be recorded under the employee stock purchase plan upon the adoption of SFAS No. 123R. As of
December 31, 2005, the unamortized compensation expense related to outstanding unvested
options was approximately $12.7 million. We expect to amortize this expense over the remaining
vesting period of these stock options. In addition, we will record additional expense for any new
awards as they are granted in 2006 and in future years. We are also required to elect the transition
method that we will use as part of the adoption of SFAS No. 123R. The allowed transition methods
include prospective and retroactive adoption alternatives. The prospective method requires that
compensation expense be recorded for ali unvested stock options and awards prospectively
beginning with the first quarter adoption of SFAS No. 123R, while the retroactive method would
require us to record compensation expense for all unvested stock options and awards beginning
with the first period restated. We will use the prospective transition method upon our adoption of
SFAS No. 123R effective January 1, 2006.

Reclassifications — Certain amounts in the prior year consolidated financial statements have been
reclassified to conform to current period presentation. As of December 31, 2004, $86.8 million of
auction rate securities were reclassified from cash and cash equivalents to short-term investments.

JOINT VENTURE AGREEMENT

In July 2005, Cymer entered into a Joint Venture Agreement (the “JV Agreement”) with (i) Carl Zeiss
SMT AG, a German corporation (“SMT"); (ii) Carl Zeiss Laser Optics Beteiligungsgesellschaft mbH,
a German limited liability company (‘LOB"); and (iii) TCZ GmbH, the Swiss limited liability company
that was formed as part of the JV Agreement. TCZ is currently developing and will integrate, market
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and sell, and support tools employing an excimer laser beam to induce crystallization of low-
temperature poly-silicon ("LTPS") processing for the manufacture of flat panel displays. LOB and
SMT, together with their affiliated entities, are collectively referred to as “Zeiss”.

TCZ is owned 60% by us and 40% by Zeiss and earnings and losses will be distributed according to
the same percentages. As an initial capital contribution to TCZ, we contributed certain inteliectual
property and approximately $14.2 million in cash in the third quarter of 2005. We consolidate the
financial position and results of operations of TCZ and reflect Zeiss’ interest in TCZ as minority
interest in our consolidated financial statements. If TCZ is dissolved, the intellectual property owned
by TCZ will be distributed to the members as joint owners, and the remaining assets, net of
liabilities, will be distributed to the members in accordance with their percentage interests.

As a result of the formation of TCZ, we entered into various agreements with TCZ. Included in
these agreements was a long-term supply agreement which requires us to provide TCZ with
components for TCZ's products and an intellectual property agreement which controls the use of
any intellectual property developed by us for the joint venture (“JV”).

We determined TCZ qualifies as a separate operating segment. See Note 16.
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BALANCE SHEET DETAILS

The consolidated balance sheets detail is as follows as of December 31, 2004 and 2005 (in
thousands):

December 31,

2004 2005
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE:
Trade ‘ $ 105,662 $ 88,404
Other 5,638 2,170
111,300 90,574
Less allowance for doubtful accounts (620) (756)
Total $ 110,680 $ 89,818
INVENTORIES:
Raw materials $ 52,245 $ 42,482
Work-in-progress 24,344 18,408
Finished goods 46,093 38,601
Allowance for excess and obsolete inventory (12,660) (10,445)
Total $ 110,022 $ 89,046
UNEARNED INCOME:
Light source systems $ 4,169 $ -
Funded development contracts 1,699 796
Service confracts 221 880
License agreement 63 50
8 6,152 $ 1,726
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT:
Land $ 9,080 $ 9,080
Building 89,546 89,852
Building improvements 5,498 6,687
Furniture and equipment 83,587 85,804
Capitalized light sources 37,041 41,739
Leasehold improvements : 3,024 3,473
Construction in process 2,546 1,552
230,322 238,187
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (106,774) (120,936)
Total ] 123,548 $ 117,251

Depreciation expense totaled $28.0 million, $24.7 million and $24.8 million for the years ended
December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005, respectively.
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4,

INVESTMENTS

Investments at December 31, 2004 consist of the following (in thousands):

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Market
Cost Gains Losses Value
Short-term:
Corporate debt securities $ 49,972 $ 80 § (7 $ 50,045
U.S. government agencies 1,997 - (2) 1,995
Commercial paper 33,124 25 {98) 33,051
Auction rate securities 90,775 - - 90,775
Total $ 175,868 $ 105 $ (107) $ 175,866
Long-term:
Corporate debt securities 14,726 - (158) 14,568
U.S. government agencies 67,680 - (387) 67,293
Auction rate securities 2,700 - - 2,700
Total $ 85,106 $ - $ (545) $ 84,561
Investments at December 31, 2005 consist of the following (in thousands):
Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Market
Cost Gains Losses Value
Short-term:
Corporate debt securities $ 17,079 3 - 3 (179) 3 16,900
Commercial paper 4,611 - (2) 4,609
U.S. government agencies 77,868 - (768) 77,100
Auction rate securities 31,575 - - 31,575
Other 20 - - 20
Total $ 131,153 % - _$ (949) _§ 130,204
Long-term - U.S. government agencies $ 30,000 $ - 3 (605) $ 29,395

As of December 31, 2005, the contractual maturities of debt

securities were as follows (in

thousands):
Less than One to
One Year Three Years Total
Short-term: ‘ $ 130,204 $ - $ 130,204
Long-term: - 29,395 29,395
Total $ 130,204 $ 29,395 $ 159,599
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The following table shows the gross unrealized losses and fair value of our investments that are not
deemed to be other-than-temporarily impaired grouped by investment category at December 31,
2005:

Gross
Market Unrealized
Value Loss
Corporate debt securities $ 16,900 $ (179)
U.S. government agencies 105,495 (1,373)
Commercial paper 4,609 (2)
Total $ 127,004 $ (1,554)

At December 31, 2005, we did not have any investments in individual securities that have been in a
continuous unrealized loss position deemed to be temporary for more than 12 months. The
unrealized losses are the result of market conditions affecting fixed-income securities. Because our
general intent is to hold our investment securities to maturity, and considering the high quality of the
investment securities, we are confident that the unrealized losses at December 31, 2005 represent a
temporary condition and will not result in realized losses on sale or maturity of the securities. We
review our investment portfolio to identify and evaluate investments that have indications of possible
impairment. Factors considered in determining whether a loss is temporary include the length of
time and extent to which fair value has been less than the cost basis, the financial condition and
near-term prospects of the investee, credit quality and our ability to hold the investment for a period
of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in market value.

REPORTING COMPREHENS!IVE INCOME

Comprehensive income includes net income, effective unrealized gains and losses on forward
contracts, foreign currency translation adjustments, and unrealized gains and losses on available-for-
sale securities, which are recorded as short-term- and long-term investments in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets.

See the Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity for the impact of the components of
comprehensive income (loss) to our net income (loss).
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The following table summarizes the change in each component of accumulated other
comprehensive loss for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005 (in thousands):

Total unrealized Total unrealized
gains (losses) on losses on Accumulated
available-for-sale foreign currency other
Translation investments, forward exchange comprehensive
adjustment net of tax contracts, net of tax loss
January 1, 2003 Balance $ (5,272) $ 2342 3% (499) $
Period net change 799 (894) (2,210)
December 31, 2003 Balance $ (4,473) $ 1,448 § (2,709) §
Period net change 697 (1,672) 2,254
December 31, 2004 Balance $ (3,776) % (224) $ (455) $
Period net change (4,381) (574) 385
December 31, 2005 Balance $ (8,157) % (798) % (70) %

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT AND INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY LICENSE AGREEMENT

In January 2004, we entered into a research and development agreement with Intel. Under this
agreement, Intel will provide us a total of $20.0 million over a three-year period to accelerate the
development of production-worthy extreme ultraviolet ("EUV") lithography light sources. The funding
from Intel under this agreement is milestone based and is netted against our total research and
development expenses in the period that the milestone is achieved. Due to the complexity of the
EUV technology, we have regular communications with Intel on the milestones under the contract
and the timing and requirements for their completion. As a result of these discussions, only certain
milestones were planned for and achieved in 2005. We will continue to work with Intel in 2006 to
further refine the milestones and work to be performed under the contract. The total funded
amounts recorded under this agreement for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2005 were
$6.1 million and $1.9 million, respectively.

In February 2004, we entered into an intellectual property license agreement with intel for the use of
certain Intel patents and trade secrets related to EUV technology. Under the terms of this
agreement, we will pay license fees to Intel if we are successful in commercializing an EUV
lithography light source capable of high volume manufacturing by the end of the second quarter of
2008. The license payments under this agreement are triggered in the quarter in which we
successfully ship the first complete high volume manufacturing EUV source system. Commencing
with shipment of this first unit, we will pay Intel $1.25 million in license fees per quarter for a period
of sixteen quarters. The quarterly license amounts paid to Intel, if any, will be related to our sale of
EUV light source systems and, as a result, will be recorded as cost of product sales. The
methodology and amounts that we will record to cost of product sales will be determined when the
high volume manufacturing production unit sales or a forecast of sales can be made. No amounts
have been earned under this arrangement as of December 31, 2005.
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GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

We account for our goodwill and other intangible assets in accordance with SFAS No. 142. Under
SFAS No. 142, our goodwill is subject to an annual impairment test. During the fourth quarter of
2005, we compieted our annuai impairment test of goodwill and intangible assets, and concluded
that no impairment of goodwill existed. The carrying amount of goodwill was $8.4 million as of
December 31, 2004 and 2005.

Included in intangible assets — net on the accompanying balance sheets are amounts associated
with patents that were acquired in 2001, 2003 and 2005. As of December 31, 2004 and 2005, the
net carrying amount of these patents was $10.4 million and $10.5 million, respectively. The
accumulated amortization for these patents at December 31, 2004 and 2005 was $5.9 million and
$8.3 million, respectively. Amortization expense for these patents was $1.5 million, $2.4 million and
$2.4 million for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005, respectively.

As of December 31, 2005, future estimated amortization expense for the next five years for these
patents is expected to be as follows for (in thousands):
Future
Amortization

Year ending December 31, 2006 $ 2,542
Year ending December 31, 2007 $ 2,642
Year ending December 31, 2008 $ 2,542
Year ending December 31, 2009 $ 1,060
Year ending December 31, 2010 $ 170

CREDIT FACILITIES

Margin Facility — During 2004 and 2005, we maintained a revolving credit facility referred to as a
“margin facility” with a large U.S. financial institution. The facility carries a preferred interest rate
which is tied to the U.S. Federal Funds rate, and is secured by certain investment securities which
we hold at the same financial institution. The applicable rate of interest on this facility at December
31, 2004 and 2005 was approximately 2.45% and 4.95%, respectively. No amounis were
outstanding under this facility as of December 31, 2004 and 2005.

Foreign Currency Exchange Facilities — During 2004 and 2005, we maintained foreign currency
exchange facilities with five financial institutions in the U.S. See also “Derivative Instruments” in
Note 1. The foreign currency exchange facilities provided up to $100 million in 2004 and 2005 to be
utilized for spot and futures foreign currency exchange contracts for periods of up to one year. As of
December 31, 2004 and 2005, $49.1 million and $46.2 million was utilized under the foreign
currency exchange facilities, respectively.

IMPAIRMENT OR DISPOSAL OF LONG-LIVED ASSETS

During the year ended December 31, 2003 the impairment loss of $17.7 million included impairment
associated with tenant improvements, $15.6 million of which resulted from two leased facilities in
San Diego which were vacated in the third quarter of 2003 and certain test equipment used within
manufacturing and research and development. The loss of $17.7 million was recorded in general
and administrative, cost of product sales and research and development expenses, as appropriate,
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10.

1.

in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations. Impairment losses for 2004 and 2005
were immaterial.

CONVERTIBLE SUBORDINATED NOTES

In February 2002, we issued $250.0 million principal amount of unsecured fixed rate 3.50%
convertible subordinated notes due February 15, 2009 with interest payable on February 15 and
August 15 of each year. These notes are convertible into shares of our common stock at a
conversion rate of 20 shares per $1,000 principal amount or an effective conversion price of $50.00
per share. We may redeem the notes after February 20, 2005 at certain redemption prices
expressed as a percentage of the principal amount. The notes are subordinated to our existing and
future senior indebtedness and effectively subordinated to all indebtedness and other liabilities of
our subsidiaries. In the third quarter of 2004 and the second quarter of 2005, we repurchased, at a
discount to par, $49.2 million and $60.0 million principal amount of these notes, respectively. As a
result of these repurchases, we recognized a gain on debt extinguishment of $911,000 in 2004 and
$2.2 million in 2005 . As of December 31, 2004 and 2005, we had $200.8 million and $140.7 million
principal amount of convertible subordinated notes outstanding, respectively.

STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Common Stock Warrants — During fiscal 2001, we issued warrants to purchase 200,000 shares of
our common stock at a weighted average purchase price of $31.43 per share in conjunction with the
acquisition of certain patents (See Note 14). During fiscal 2003, 2004 and 2005, no warrants were
granted and no warrants were exercised. The warrants expire in May 2006.

Stockholder Rights Plan — In February 1998, our board of directors adopted a stockholder rights
plan. The stockholder rights plan was intended to assure that all of our stockholders would receive
fair and equal treatment in the event of any proposed takeover of Cymer and to guard against partial
tender offers and other abusive tactics to gain control of Cymer without paying all of our stockholders
the fair value of their shares, including a control premium. In August 2004, our board of directors
amended the stockholder rights plan to change the final expiration date from February 13, 2008 to
September 1, 2004. As a result of this amendment, the stockholder rights plan terminated on
September 1, 2004.

Stock Repurchase Program — In January 2005, we announced that our board of directors had
authorized us to repurchase up to $50 million of our common stock in the open market or in privately
negotiated transactions. Through May 31, 2005, we had repurchased 1,942,959 shares for $50
million, thereby completing the program.

Stock Option and Purchase Plans — We have the following stock option and stock purchase plans:

2005 Equity Incentive Plan (the “2005 Plan”) — In May 2005, at our annual meeting of
stockholders, our stockholders approved the 2005 Plan. The 2005 Plan provides for the grant or
award of various equity incentives to our employees, directors and consultants. Upon approval of the
2005 Plan by the stockholders, we discontinued the use of our 1996 Stock Option Plan and 2000
Equity Incentive Plan for future equity awards. Options issued under the 2005 Plan expire ten years
after the options are granted and generally vest and become exercisable ratably over a four-year
period following the date of grant. A total of 1,000,000 shares of common stock are reserved for
issuance under the 2005 Plan and it provides for the issuance of incentive stock options,
nonstatutory stock options, stock appreciation rights, stock bonus awards, stock purchase awards,
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stock unit awards and other stock awards. Options to purchase 336,800 shares are outstanding and
663,064 shares remain available for grant under this plan as of December 31, 2005.

1996 Stock Option Plan (the “1996 Plan”) — The 1996 Plan provided for the grant of incentive
stock options to our employees and nonqualified stock options to our employees, directors and
consultants. The exercise prices of stock options granted under the 1996 Plan were at least equal to
the fair market value of our common stock on the dates of grant. Options issued under the 1996 Plan
expire five to ten years after the options were granted and generally vest and become exercisable
ratably over a four-year period foliowing the date of grant. The 1996 Plan was terminated in May
2005 with the approval of the 2005 Plan. A total of 7,900,000 shares of common stock were
reserved for issuance under the 1996 Plan. Of these shares, options to purchase 3,706,460 shares
are outstanding as of December 31, 2008.

2000 Equity Incentive Plan (the "2000 Plan”) — In August 2000, our board of directors adopted
the 2000 Plan which provides for the grant of options to our employees or consultants who are
neither directors nor officers. The exercise prices of the options granted under the 2000 Plan were
equal to the quoted market value of our common stock at the date of grant. Options issued under
the 2000 Plan expire ten years after the options were granted and generally vest and become
exercisable ratably over a four year period following the date of grant. The 2000 Plan was amended
in 2002 to increase the shares reserved for issuance under the plan from 1,850,000 to 4,950,000.
The plan was terminated in May 2005 with the approval of the 2005 Plan. A total of 4,950,000
shares of common stock were reserved for issuance under the 2000 Plan. Of these shares, options
to purchase 2,846,039 shares are outstanding as of December 31, 2005.

1996 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the "ESPP’) — The ESPP is intended to qualify under
Section 423 of the Internal Revenue Code. Under the ESPP, eligible employees may purchase
shares of our common stock through payroll deductions of up to 15% of his or her compensation (as
defined in the plan), at a price per share equal to 95% of the fair market value of our common stock
at the end of the purchase period. This plan was amended in 2001 by our shareholders to establish
two year offering periods with six-month purchase periods and to increase the plan shares issuable
from 500,000 to 800,000. This plan was amended again in 2004 to increase the plan shares
issuable to 1,200,000 shares. in February 2005, our board of directors approved an amendment to
our ESPP which became effective May 1, 2005. The amendment: a) changed the duration of
offering periods under the plan from two years to six months b) reduced the discount to market price
used to determine purchase price for shares of our common stock under the plan from 15% to 5%,
and c) eliminated the “lookback” feature that allowed the purchase price to be determined as of the
beginning of an offering period, or enroliment date, if the market price as of the enroilment date was
lower than the market price at the end of the offering period. The number of shares issuable under
the ESPP as of December 31, 2005 was 94,723, and 1,105,277 shares have been previously
issued.

ACX 1993 Stock Option Plan (the "ACX Plan”) — We assumed the ACX Stock Option Plan upon
completion of the acquisition of ACX in February 2001. Outstanding options may be exercised
solely for shares of our common stock, according to the conversion ratio established in the terms of
the acquisition. The outstanding ACX options were converted to options to purchase 336,109 of our
shares, at exercise prices ranging from $2.08 to $38.71 per share. The ACX Plan provided for the
grant of incentive and nonstatutory options to purchase shares of common stock to employees,
directors and consultants at exercise prices not less than 100% of the fair market value of common
stock on the dates the options were granted. Options issued under the ACX Pian expire five to ten
years after the options were granted and generally vest and become exercisable ratably over a four-
year period following the date of grant. No further options will be issued under the ACX Plan. As of
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December 31, 2005, options to purchase 14,360 shares are outstanding under the ACX Plan.

In 1996, we adopted a 7996 Director Option Plan (the “Director Option Plan”) whereby 200,000
shares were reserved for option grants to our directors. There were 80,000 options issued under the
Director Option Plan in 1997. The Director Option Plan was terminated in October 1997; however,
20,000 of these options remain outstanding as of December 31, 2005.

A summary of the stock option activity under all stock option plans is as follows (in thousands,
except per share data):

Options Outstanding

Stock Options Weighted Average

Available Number of Exercise Price

for Grant Shares Per Share
Balance at January 1, 2003 2,650 8,122 $ 28.20
Granted (1,496) 1,496 $ 32.01
Exercised - (1,899) $ 23.22
Cancelled 493 (493) $ 27.38
Expired {53) - $ -
Balance at December 31, 2003 1,594 7,226 $ 30.36
Granted {1,053) 1,053 $ 36.73
Exercised - (502) $ 23.34
Cancelled 315 (315) $ 3297
Expired (4) - $ -
Balance at December 31, 2004 852 7,462 $ 3162
Reserved for 2005 Plan 1,000 -
Granted (732) 732 $ 29.90
Exercised - (928) $ 24.27
Cancelled 342 (342) $ 36.62
Expired (799) -
Balance at December 31, 2005 663 6,924 $ 32.15
Exercisable at December 31, 2005 5,603 $ 32.63

F-30




CYMER, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12,

The following table summarizes information as of December 31, 2005 concerning currently
outstanding and exercisable options (number of shares in thousands):

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Weighted Average

Remaining Weighted Weighted

Range of Number Contractual Life Average Number Average
Exercise Prices Outstanding (years) Exercise Price Exercisable Exercise Price
$11.65 - $15.50 24 1.67 $ 12.56 24 $ 12.56
$16.32 - $23.25 1,132 4.55 $ 20.35 1,025 3 2042
$23.38 - $34.87 3,014 7.08 $ 29.38 1,981 $ 29.29
$34.94 - $52.31 2,733 5.59 $ 40.10 2,552 $ 40.13
$54.00 - $60.00 21 4.25 $ 54.42 21 $ 54.42
$11.65 - $60.00 6,924 6.05 $ 3215 5,603 $ 32.63

In February 2005, our board of directors approved the acceleration of the vesting of stock options
that had exercise prices of $30.50 per share or higher held by employees. This acceleration of stock
options excluded directors, executive officers and certain vice presidents. The purpose of this
acceleration of vesting was to enable us to eliminate the recognition in our statement of operations
of the compensation expense associated with these stock options in future periods upon the
adoption of SFAS No. 123R which will be effective for us on January 1, 2006. As the result of the
acceleration of the vesting of these stock options, approximately 709,000 shares of our common
stock became immediately exercisable as of February 17, 2005.

INCOME TAXES

Total income taxes for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005 were allocated as
follows (in thousands):
Years ended December 31,

2003 2004 2005
To income on continuing operations $§ (21,464) $ 15,144 $ 262
To stockholder’s equity and goodwill (13,005) (2,748) (736)
Total income taxes $  (34,469) $ 12,396 $ (474)
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The breakdown of income (loss) before income tax provision (benefit) and minority interest and the
components of the provision (benefit) for income taxes on continuing operations on U.S. and foreign
pre-tax income are summarized as follows (in thousands):

U.S. pre-tax income
Foreign pre-tax income

Total

Current income taxes:
Federal
State
Foreign

Total

Deferred income taxes:
Federal
State
Fareign

Total

Income tax provision (benefit)

Years ended December 31,

2003 2004 2005
$ (46,536) $ 48,369 $ 43,002
10,763 12,205 2,786
$ (35773) $ 60574 $ 45788
$ (4,082 $ (794)  § 1,576
(714) 78 (11)
3,989 1,838 1,032
(807) 1,122 2,597
(14,904) 16,455 328
(4,418) (1.226) (2,338)
(1,335) (1,207) (325)
(20,657) 14,022 (2,335)
$ (21464) § 15144 $ 262

The income tax provision (benefit) is different from that which would be obtained by applying the
statutory federal income tax rate (35%) to income before income tax expense. The items causing
this difference for each period are as follows (in thousands):

Provision at statutory rate

Foreign provision in excess of (less than)
federal statutory rate

State income taxes, net of federal benefit

Extraterritorial income exclusion benefit

Federal tax credits

Change in cash surrender value of life insurance

Change in valuation allowance

Other

Provision (benefit) atbeffective tax rate

Years ended December 31,

2003 2004 2005

$ (12,520 $ 21,201 $ 16,026
312 2,958 (1,443)

(2,903) (135) (2,035)
(4,108) (7,305) (7,571)
(2,123) (1,139) (3,896)

- - (883)

- - 293

(122) (436) (229)
$  (21,464) $ 15144 $ 262
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Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax
purposes. Significant components of our net deferred tax assets are as follows (in thousands):

December 31,
2004 2005
Deferred tax assets:
Reserves and accruals not currently deductible $ 20,045 $ 19,216
Difference between book and tax basis of inventory 3,390 5,667
Tax carryforwards 46,175 39,363
Tax effect of foreign transactions 2,138 6,192
Foreign deferred tax assets 3,444 3,731
Total gross deferred tax assets 75,192 74,169
Valuation allowance - (293)
Net deferred tax assets 75,192 73,876
Deferred tax liabilities:
Difference between book and tax basis of property and equipment (6,237) (5,986)
Reserves and accruals not currently taxable (708) (123)
Total deferred tax liabilities (6,943) (6,109)
Net deferred tax assets $ 68,249 $ 67,767

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, we consider whether it is more likely than not
that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. With regard to the net
operating loss (“NOL”) carryforwards of our joint venture, TCZ, we believe there is insufficient
evidence to conclude that realization of the benefit is more likely than not, and therefore we have
provided a full valuation allowance of $293,000 against this asset. With regard to all other deferred
tax assets, we believe that it is more likely than not that the results of future operations will generate
sufficient taxable income to realize the benefit, and therefore no valuation allowance has been
provided for these assets.

At December 31, 2005, we had federal tax NOL carryforwards of $29.3 million and federal tax
credits of $19.2 million, both of which begin to expire in 2020. At December 31, 2005, we had state
tax credit carryforwards of $15.2 million, of which $3.5 million begin to expire in 2009, and $11.7
million may be carried forward indefinitely. At December 31, 2005, we had foreign NOL
carryforwards of $1.8 million which may be carried forward indefinitely.

During the fourth quarter of 2005, the expiration of certain statutes of limitations related primarily to
U.S. federal tax credits and deductions allowed us to release tax reserves in the amount of $4.2
million. As a result, our fourth quarter of 2005 annualized effective tax rate was a benefit rate of
11% resulting in an annual effective tax rate of less than 1%. See Note 17.

We benefit from a tax holiday in Korea where we manufacture certain products. The tax holiday is
awarded by Korea’s Ministry of Finance and Economy to promote capital investment in certain
qualified high-technology businesses. The holiday is effective for a 10-year period, from 2003
through 2012, and provides exemption from corporate income tax of 100% of eligible income
through 2009 and 50% of eligible income from 2010 through 2012. Since its inception, the tax
holiday has produced tax benefits to us totaling $3.0 million.
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We have not provided U.S. federal income and foreign withholding taxes on $53.3 million of
undistributed earnings from non-U.S. operations as of December 31, 2005 as it is our intention to
reinvest undistributed earnings of our foreign subsidiaries and thereby indefinitely postpone their
remittance. Accordingly, no provision has been made for foreign withholding taxes or U.S. income
taxes which may become payable if undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries were paid to us
as dividends. Currently, we are not considering the repatriation of any foreign earnings and as
such, no impact is reported in the financial statements as of December 31, 2005. It is not
practicable to estimate the amount of the deferred tax liability on such unremitted earnings.

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Leases ~ We lease certain facilities under non-cancelable operating leases. The lease terms on
these facilities are through January 1, 2010 and provide for certain rent abatements and minimum
annual increases and options to extend the terms. In addition, we have a land lease in Korea with a
lease term through December 2020. This land lease is exempt from lease payments because the
building meets certain investment and operational criteria of the Korean government. We also lease
certain equipment under capital and short-term operating lease agreements. These capital leases
expired in 2005. The net book value of assets under capital leases at December 31, 2004 was
approximately $12,000, which is net of accumulated amortization of approximately $135,000.

Rent expense under operating leases net of sublease rental income is recognized on a straight-line
basis over the life of the related leases, and totaled approximately $4,773,000, $6,495,000 and
$679,000 for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005, respectively. Rent expenses for
2004 and 2005 include $3.0 million and $384,000 in costs recorded for lease losses associated with
our subleasing activities for our San Diego and Charlestown facilities, respectively. Sublease rental
income totaled $972,000, $1,085,000 and $4,044,000 for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2004
and 2005, respectively.

Total future minimum lease commitments under operating leases are as follows (in thousands):

Years ending December 31, . Operating

2006 $ 4999
2007 $ 3965
2008 $ 3,380
2009 $ 3,278
2010 $ 71
Total $ 15,693
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The following represents future minimum rentals to be earned under our noncancelable subleases
(in thousands). These amounts are directly offset to the operating lease amounts above.

Sublease
Years ending December 31, Payments
2006 $ 3471
2007 $ 3,604
2008 $ 1,526
2009 $ 1,124
Total $ 9,725

Employee Savings Plan — We have a 401(k) plan that allows participating employees to contribute
a percentage of their salary, subject to annual limits. The plan is available to substantialiy all full-
time U.S. employees. Beginning January 1, 2000 we made a matching contribution of up to 4% of
each participating employee’s compensation, not to exceed $4,000 per year. Effective January 1,
2004, our board of directors amended the 401(k) plan to increase our maximum matching
contribution to 5% of each participating employee’s compensation, not to exceed $5,000 per year.
Under the Plan, we contributed $1,558,000, $2,811,000 and $2,440,000 for the years ended
December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005, respectively.

Executive Deferred Compensation Plan — We have an executive deferred compensation plan for
certain officers and key executives. Beginning in 2001, we used corporate owned life insurance to
finance the plan. Compensation expense under this plan totaled $310,000, $182,000 and $222,000
for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005, respectively. Our liability for deferred
compensation totaled $2,958,000 and $4,126,000 as of December 31, 2004 and 2005, respectively,
and is included in other liabilities. The cash surrender value of the life insurance policies totaled
$1,455,000 and $2,523,000 as of December 31, 2004 and 2005, respectively, and is included in
other assets.

Executive Option and Group Health Coverage Extension Program — \We have an executive
option and health coverage extension program for eligible executives who meet certain minimum
service and age requirements. This program is designed to provide extended benefits to eligible
executives who retire and cease to serve us on a full-time basis. Under the terms of the plan, the
executive acts as our consultant for a term of four years. In return for these services, the program
allows the executive to continue vesting in his or her stock options after the retirement separation
date. The program also provides the executives with specified health insurance continuation
benefits. One former executive participated in this program in 2005. The cost for this program was
not material in 2003, 2004 or 2005.

Retirement Plans — Cymer Japan has a Retirement Allowance and Pension Plan (“pension plan”)
for all Cymer Japan employees, as well as a retirement allowance for Japanese directors (“directors’
plan”). Expense under these plans totaled approximately $526,000, $536,000 and $321,000 for the
years ended December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005, respectively. The expenses for the pension plan
are recorded pursuant to the accounting requirements under Statements of Financial Standards No.
87, 88 and 132R. We use November 30 as the measurement date. Our liability for both plans totaled
approximately $1.5 million and $1.4 million as of December 31, 2004 and 2005, respectively.
Although the total expenses and liability balances provided above inciude both plans, the directors’
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plan is immaterial to all amounts and years provided. The projected benefit obligation at December
31, 2004 and 2005 was approximately $1.3 million for both years. The accumulated benefit
obligation at December 31, 2004 and 2005 was approximately $928,000 and $1.0 million,
respectively. The actuarial loss was approximately $69,000 at December 31, 2005.

The pension plan is an unfunded plan and includes no plan assets. The net periodic pension costs
for the year 2006 are estimated at $225,000, and the projected benefit obligation is estimated at $1.4
million as of December 31, 2006. Estimated future benefit payments expected under the pension
plan from 2006 through 2010, and thereafter are $80,000, $90,000, $101,000, $109,000, $179,000
and $709,000, respectively. The following assumptions were used in the actuarial calculations for
both 2004 and 2005: salary increases 4.0% per year, and mortality rates using the Japanese 19"
Life Table. The discount rates used in the actuarial calculations were 1.25% and 1.50% for 2004 and
2005, respectively.

Korea Customs Investigation — The customs agency in Korea had asserted that parts being
imported into Korea from our corporate office in San Diego were classified improperly for customs
and duties purposes and some used items, which were returned to San Diego, were valued
improperly during the period from 1997 through July 2003. Although we did not agree with these
assertions, Korean customs assessed and required us to pay additional duties reiated to shipments
during this time period. As a result of these assertions and discussions that we had with the
customs agency in Korea, we accrued a liability of $4.7 million through December 31, 2003. The
expense resulting from this recorded liability was included in cost of product sales in the
accompanying consolidated statements of operations. Payments made to the customs agency in
Korea were $2.5 million and $1.9 million during 2003 and 2004, respectively. The 2004 payment was
net of a $289,000 refund received from the Korea customs agency. In 2004, we received notification
from the Korean customs agency that we would receive a refund of a portion of duties previously
paid. As a result, we recorded a $2.3 million reduction to cost of product sales and $100,000 to
interest income in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations for the year ended
December 31, 2004 related to this refund. The accrual for this refund was recorded in accounts
receivable-net in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2004. No
balances related to this refund were outstanding as of December 31, 2005.

Contingencies — We are party to legal actions in the normal course of business. Based in part on
the advice of legal counsel, our management does not expect the outcome of legal action in the
normal course of business to have a material impact on our financial position, liquidity, or results of
operations.

Our former Japanese manufacturing pariner, Seiko, and one of our Japanese customers have been
notified that our light source systems in Japan may infringe certain Japanese patents held by
another Japanese company. We have agreed to indemnify our former Japanese manufacturing
partner and our customers against patent infringement claims under certain circumstances, even
after the termination date of the contract manufacturing agreement. We believe, based upon the
advice of counsel, that our products do not infringe any valid claim of the asserted patents or that we
are entitled to prior use claims in Japan.

PATENT LICENSE AGREEMENTS
in May 2001, we acquired certain patents for use in our deep ultraviolet (“DUV”) light source

applications. The total consideration for this transaction was $10.3 million, which included a $6.0
million cash payment and the issuance of 200,000 warrants valued at $4.3 million. The warrants
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were valued on the date of issuance using the Black-Scholes pricing model using the following
assumptions: 87% volatility, 5.0% risk-free interest rate and 4.6 years expected life. The total value
of these patents are being amortized over eight years which represents the remaining life of the
patents purchased under the agreement. The amortization of these patents is included in cost of
product sales on the accompanying statements of operations since they are used in products which
are currently being shipped to customers.

In November 2003, we acquired the rights to the same list of patents as in the May 2001 agreement
but for a different field of use, for a total amount of $6.0 million in cash. This license agreement
allows us to use the patents for EUV and other future applications. The total value of these patents
are being amortized over a period of 5.5 years which represents the remaining life of the patents
purchased under the agreement. The amortization of these patents is included in research and
development expenses on the accompanying statements of operations since the field of use
involves applications which are still in the research and development stages.

in November 2005, we acquired certain patents for use in our DUV light source applications in mask
based lithography for a total of $2.5 million in cash. The total value of these patents are being
amortized over a period of 14.65 years which represents the average remaining life of the patents
purchased under the agreement. The amortization of these patents is included in cost of product
sales on the accompanying statements of operations since they are mainly being used in products
which are currently being shipped to customers.

As of December 31, 2004 and 2005, the net carrying amount related to all of these patent license
agreements was $10.4 million and $10.5 million, respectively.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Collaborative Arrangement — We have a collaborative arrangement with a Japanese company that
was also a stockholder of ours until 2000. The arrangement, entered into in August 1992, includes a
product license agreement and contract manufacturing agreement. The general provisions of these
agreements are as follows:

Product License Agreement — We granted to the stockholder the exclusive right in Japan and the
non-exclusive right outside Japan to manufacture and sell one of our products and any subsequent
enhancements. We also granted the stockholder the right of first refusal to license and fund the
development of new technologies not developed with funding from other parties. In exchange for
these rights, we received up-front license fees and were entitled to royaities of 5% on related product
sales through September 1999, after which the royalty rate was subject to renegotiation. To date
there has been no renegotiation of the royalty rate. The license agreement aiso provides that
product sales between us and the stockholder will be at a 15% discount from the respective
companies’ list price. The agreement terminates in August 2012. There was no activity under this
agreement in 2003, 2004 and 2005.

Contract Manufacturing Agreement — The stockholder agreed to manufacture certain products for us
and we were required to purchase from the stockholder a specified percentage of our total annual
product, as defined. We mutually agreed to the termination of this contract effective March 31, 2003.
We made $351,000 in purchases under this agreement in 2003 prior to its termination.

Joint Venture Agreement — As a result of the TCZ joint venture which was formed in July 2005,

Zeiss is now a related party. In addition to transactions that occur among us, Zeiss and TCZ related
to the joint venture, we also purchase certain optical parts directly from Zeiss and sell our light
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source system products to Zeiss periodically. We had an accounts receivable balance of $588,000
and an accounts payable balance of $5.0 million as of December 31, 2005 and recorded revenue of
$400,000 for the year ended December 31, 2005, all of which were associated with these related
party transactions with Zeiss.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Our primary business is to design, manufacture and sell excimer light source systems, replacement
parts, and support services for use in photolithography systems used in the manufacture of
semiconductors. In addition, as discussed in Note 2, we entered into a JV Agreement in July 2005
with Zeiss and formed TCZ GmbH. TCZ is currently developing a process tool for use in the
manufacture of flat panel displays. TCZ is owned 60% by us and 40% by Zeiss and we consolidate
the financial position and results of operations of TCZ into our consolidated financial statements.

In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 131 (“SFAS No, 1317),
“Disclosure about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information”, we determined that our
business consists of two operating segments. Although the TCZ business is one of our operating
segments, we have not provided separate segment disclosures for TCZ for the year ended
December 31, 2005 since its assets and results of operations for 2005 were below the established
quantitative thresholds included in SFAS No. 131.

Geographic Information

Presented below is information regarding sales to unaffiliated customers, long-lived assets, ail other
identifiable assets and total identifiable assets, classified by operations located in the U.S., Japan,
Korea, Taiwan, Singapore, the People’s Republic of China, the Netherlands, and Switzerland. Long-
lived assets include net property, plant and equipment attributed to the geographic location in which
they are located. Intercompany sales to our subsidiaries are generally priced between 90% to 95%
of the price of products sold to outside customers.

Sales to unaffiliated customers consist of sales generated from each of the geographic locations as

detailed below. These sales exclude export sales to other geographic locations. All significant
intercompany balances are eliminated in consolidation.
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Year ended December 31, 2003
(in thousands )

Asia Europe
(Korea, Taiwan, (the Netherlands and
U.S. Japan Singapore and China) Switzerland) Consolidated
Sales to unaffiliated customers 3 90,986 $ 116,530 $ 45,225 $ 13,132 $ 265,873
Long lived assets 120,452 1,918 5,727 752 128,849
All other identifiable assets 587,953 46,649 33,884 11,909 680,395
Total identifiable assets $ 708,405 $ 48,567 $ 39,611 $ 12,661 $ 809,244

Year ended December 31, 2004
(in thousands )

Asia Europe
{Korea, Taiwan, (the Netherlands and
U.S. Japan Singapore and China) Switzerland) Consolidated
Sales to unaffiliated customers 3 212,283 $ 132,512 3 53,623 $ 19,661 3 418,079
Long lived assets 114,134 3,115 5,249 1,050 123,548
All other identifiable assets 575,696 52,470 54,037 13,085 695,288
Total identifiable assets $ 689,830 $ 55585 $ 59,286 $ 14,135 3 818,836
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Year ended December 31, 2005
{ in thousands )

Asia Europe
{Korea, Taiwan, {the Netherlands and
U.S. Japan Singapore and China) Switzerland) Consolidated
Sales to unaffiliated customers $ 180,804 § 118,563 $ 63,612 $ 20,669 $ 383,648
Long lived assets 108,892 2,231 5,129 999 117,251
All other identifiable assets 528,969 49,644 54,638 40,874 674,125
Total identifiable assets $ 637,861 $ 51,875 $ 59,767 $ 41,873 $ 791,376
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17.

SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)

QUARTERLY RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
(in thousands, except for per share data)

Year ended December 31, 2004

1st 2nd 3rd 4th (2)
Revenues $ 87,921 $ 94,907 $ 107,140 $ 128,111
Operating income $ 10905 $ 16,027 $ 22,093 $ 12,881
Net income $ 7156 $ 10201 $ 15421 $ 10,376
Basic earnings per share (1) $ 020 $ 028 §% 042 $ 0.28
Diluted earnings per share (1) $ 019 $ 027 §$ 041 $ 0.28

QUARTERLY RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
(in thousands, except for per share data)

Year ended December 31, 2005

1st 2nd 3rd 4th (3)
Revenues $ 84810 $ 96,392 $ 99,653 $ 102,793
Operating income $ 5077 $ 8925 $ 12,181 $ 14493
Net income $ 538 % 11,015 $ 12,684 $ 17,468
Basic earnings per share (1) $ 015 $ 031 $ 036 $ 0.49
Diluted earnings per share (1) $ 014 $ 030 $ 035 $ 0.48

(1) Earnings per share are computed separately for each quarter and the full year using the respective weighted average
shares. Therefore, the sum of the quarterly earnings per share amounts may not equal the annual amounts reported.

(2) During the fourth quarter of 2004, we corrected our accounting treatment for our parts refurbishment activities and all
amounts associated with this correction were recorded in the quarter ended December 31, 2004. This adjustment
resulted in a $28.5 million increase in 2004 product revenue, a $25.6 million increase in 2004 cost of product sales and a
$2.0 miliion increase in 2004 net income. See further discussion on change in accounting method for refurbishment
activities under ttem 7 “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” under
the caption “Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates” and Item 8 “Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” Note
1 to our consolidated financial statements under “Parts Refurbishment”.

(3) Includes additional net income of approximately $804,000 due to the correction of our income tax provision as a result of
our ineffective internal controls over our accounting for income taxes. These contro! deficiencies resulted in undetected
errors in our consolidated income tax provision. Such errors were corrected in the fourth quarter of 2005, resulting in a
reduction to income tax expense.
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18.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On January 2, 2006, we acquired the remaining 19% minority interest in our majority-owned
subsidiary, Cymer Korea. We paid a total of $7.0 million for this 19% interest. This transaction
increased our total interest in Cymer Korea from 81% to 100%.

In the ordinary course of business, we maintain life insurance policies on certain executives as a
means of funding our executive deferred compensation plan. In January 20086, one of our senior
executives for whom we hold such a policy passed away. As a result, we received a net $3.2 million
in insurance proceeds in the first quarter of 2006. These net proceeds will be included in other
income on our statement of operations for the three months ended March 31, 20086.
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CYMER, INC.
SCHEDULE i

VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

Years Ended December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005

(in thousands)

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
Accounts and Notes

Year ended December 31, 2003
Year ended December 31, 2004
Year ended December 31, 2005

Inventory Allowance

Year ended December 31, 2003
Year ended December 31, 2004
Year ended December 31, 2005

(1) Includes reversals of allowance amounts as deemed necessary.

Additions

Balance at Balance

Beginning (net) at End

of Year 1) Deductions of Year
$ 1,756 3 250 $ (42) $ 1,964
$ 1,964 $ 199 $ (1,543) (2) % 620
$ 620 $ 136 $ - $ 756
$ 14,700 $ 4,324 $ (6,996) $ 12,028
$ 12,028 $ 9,474 $ (8,842) $ 12,660
$ 12,660 $ 3,221 $ (5,436) $ 10,445

(2) Represents write-off of note receivable and accrued interest.

See accompanying report of independent registered public accounting firm.




Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors
Cymer, Inc.:

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the registration statements (No. 333-16559, No. 333-
99975, No. 333-88616, No. 333-67491, No. 333-48242, No. 333-69736, No. 333-58554, No. 333-109544,
No. 333-118496, and No. 333-127748) on Form S-8 and in the registration statements (No. 333-88496
and No. 333-39101) on Form S-3 of Cymer, Inc. of our report dated March 8, 2006, with respect to the
consolidated balance sheets of Cymer, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the
related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity and comprehensive income (loss),
and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2005, and the related
financial statement schedule 1, management’'s assessment of internal control over financial reporting as
of December 31, 2005, and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2005, which reports appear in the December 31, 2005 Annual Report on Form 10-K of
Cymer, Inc.

Our report dated March 8, 2006 on management's assessment of the effectiveness of internal control
over financial reporting and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2005 expresses our opinion that Cymer, Inc. did not maintain effective internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2005 because of the effect of a material weakness on the
achievement of the objectives of the control criteria and contains an explanatory paragraph that states the
Company had inadequate internal controls over the accounting for income taxes.

/s/ KPMG LLP

San Diego, California
March 13, 2006
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ieadquarters

“ymer, Inc.

17075 Thornmint Court

san Diego, CA 92127
Jnited States

lel: +1.858.385.7300
Fax: +1.858.385.7100
WWW.Cymer.com

Cymer B.V.

European Headquarters
Planetenbaan 16-BG

3606 AK Maarssen

The Netherlands

Tel: +31.346.58.2000
Fax: +31.346.58.2002
europe(@cymer.com

Cymer Japan, Inc.

Cosmos Motoyawata Bldg.
4-17-8, Minamiyawata,
Ichikawa-shi

Chiba 272-0023 Japan

Tel: +81.47.393.5668
Fax: +81.47.393.5672
japan@cymer.com

Cymer Korea, Inc.
Eoyeon-Hansan

Industrial Park

833-1 Hansan-Ri,
CheongBook-Myeon
Pyungtaek, KyungKi-Do
Korea 451-833

Tel: +82.31.680.1500
Fax: +82.31.680.1510
korea@cymer.com

Cymer Semiconductor

Equipment (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.

King Tower 806

No. 28, Xinjingiao Rd.
Pudong, Shanghai 201206
China

Tel: +86.21.5032.6300
Fax: +86.21.5032.6301
china@cymer.com

Cymer Singapore Pte., Ltd.
101 Thomson Road
#23-01 United Square
Singapore, 307591

Tel: +65.6259.9792
Fax: +865.6258.9036
singapore@cymer.com

Cymer Southeast Asia Ltd.
3F, No. 49, Lane 2
Kuang-Fu Road, Sec, 2
Hsin-Chu, Taiwan, R.0.C.
Tel: +886.3.573.9960
Fax: +886.3.573.9961
taiwan(@cymer.com
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SHAREHOLDER

INFORMATION

DIRECTORS

Robert P. Akins, Ph.D.
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer,
Cymer, Inc.

Charles J. Abbe

Former President and
Chief Operating Officer,
JDS Uniphase Corporation

Edward H. Braun
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer,
Veeco Instruments, Inc.

Michael R, Gaulke
President and Chief Executive Officer,
Exponent, Inc.

William G. Oldham, Ph.D.
Department of Electrical Engineering
and Computer Science,

University of California, Berkeley

Peter J. Simone
Consultant

Young K. Sohn
Consultant

Jon D. Tompkins
Former Chairman,
KLA-Tencor Corporation
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Independent Registered Public
Accounting Firm

KPMG LLP

San Diego, CA

Counsel
Cooley Godward LLP
San Diego, CA

Transfer Agent and Registrar
American Stock Transfer and
Trust Company

59 Maiden Lane

New York, NY 10038

Tel: +1.800.937.5449

Direct Inquiries to:

Cymer Investor Relations
Tel: +1.858.385.6591
Fax: +1.858.385.6090
investorinfo@cymer.com
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OFFICERS

Robert P, Akins, Ph.D.
Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer

Edward J. Brown, Jr.
President and
Chief Operating Officer

Nancy J. Baker
Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

Albert Cefalo
Senior Vice President and Chief
Intellectual Property Counsel

William Partlo, Ph.D.
Senior Vice President and
Chief Technical Officer

Richard L. Sandstrom, Ph.D.
Senior Vice President and
Chief Technical Advisor

Bill N. Alexander
Executive Vice President,
Worldwide Customer Operations

Takeshi Watanabe
President
Cymer Japan, Inc.

Rae Ann Werner
Vice President, Controller and
Chief Accounting Officer
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